
 1  
 Governing Board Meeting  Agenda of the South Florida Water Management District – January 15, 2015 

 

 

 

 South Florida Water Management District 

 

GOVERNING BOARD MONTHLY MEETING  
AGENDA 

This meeting is open to the public 

January 15, 2015 
9:00 AM 

Murray Nelson Government Center 
102050 Overseas Highway 

Key Largo, FL 33037 
 

FINAL  
 

Pursuant to Section 373.079(7), Florida Statutes, all or part of this meeting may be conducted 
by means of communications media technology in order to permit maximum participation of 
Governing Board members. 
 
The Governing Board may take official action at this meeting on any item appearing on this 
agenda and on any item that is added to this agenda as a result of a change to the agenda 
approved by the presiding officer of the meeting pursuant to Section 120.525, Florida Statutes. 
The order of items appearing on the agenda is subject to change during the meeting and is at 
the discretion of the presiding officer. Public Comment will be taken after each presentation and 
before any Governing Board action(s) except for Governing Board hearings that involve the 
issuance of final orders based on recommended Orders received from the Florida Division of 
Administrative Hearings. 

1. Call to Order - Dan O'Keefe, Chairman, Governing Board 

2. Pledge of Allegiance - Dan O'Keefe, Chairman, Governing Board 

3. Local Government Officials - Dan O'Keefe, Chairman, Governing Board 

4. Agenda Revisions - Jacki McGorty, District Clerk 

5. Abstentions by Board Members from items on the Agenda 

6. Water Resources Advisory Commission (WRAC) Report - Jim Moran, Chair 



 2  
 Governing Board Meeting Agenda of the South Florida Water Management District – January 15, 2015 

 

Consent Agenda 

 
Members of the public wishing to address the Governing Board are to complete a Public 
Comment Card and submit the card to the front desk attendant. You will be called by the Board 
Chair or designee to speak. If you want to request that an item be removed from the Consent 
Agenda and be discussed by the Governing Board, please advise the Governing Board when 
you are called upon to speak. Governing Board directives limit comments from the public to 3 
minutes unless otherwise determined by the Governing Board Chair. Your comments will be 
considered by the Governing Board prior to adoption of the Consent Agenda. 
 
Unless otherwise determined by the Chair, Board action on pulled Consent Agenda items will 
occur at or after 9:00 a.m. on Thursday. Regulatory items pulled from the Consent Agenda for 
discussion will be heard during the Discussion Agenda. Unless otherwise noted, all Consent 
Agenda items are recommended for approval. 

7. Public Comment on Consent Agenda 

8. Pull Items for Discussion from Consent Agenda 

9. Board Comment on Consent Agenda 

10. Approval of the Minutes for the December 11, 2014, Governing Board 
Regular Business meeting held in West Palm Beach, Florida. 

11. Waivers for Water Resource Advisory Commission (WRAC) members 
pursuant to Section 112.313, Florida Statutes. 

12. Regulatory Consent Items 

 Consent Orders 

o Park Square Homes; Sonoma Resort - Phase 1 (Osceola County) - Settlement of 

an enforcement action regarding unauthorized off-site discharge into Shingle Creek. 

o Avatar Properties, Inc.; Waterview - Phase 3 Mod & Lot Size (Osceola County) - 

Settlement of an enforcement action regarding unauthorized off-site discharge into 
adjacent wetlands. 



 Conservation Easements, Amendments and Releases 

o City of Pembroke Pines, City of Pembroke Pines F P L Easement Parking 

(Broward County) - Staff recommends the approval of a request for the release of a 
32.48 acre existing conservation easement related to the Pembroke Pines City Hall 
Additional Parking project in the City of Pembroke Pines (City) in Broward County.  
On July 5, 2011, to offset wetland impacts associated with the City Hall Additional 
Parking project, the District issued Environmental Resource Permit No. 06-06270-P 
authorizing the construction of a 32.48 acre wetland mitigation area at the offsite 
Raintree development. While the conservation easement was subsequently 
recorded, construction of the offsite permitted wetland mitigation area was never 
initiated. The City has now applied to both modify the onsite parking design 
(Application Number 140718-2) and to relocate the required wetland mitigation area 
to the offsite Foxcroft Property (Application Number 141125-11). Therefore, the 
32.48 acre existing conservation easement is requested to be released.   

o Reef Enterprizes, LLC, Enclave on Riviera (Monroe County) - Staff recommends 

the approval of a request for the release of a 3.23 acre existing conservation 



 3  
 Governing Board Meeting Agenda of the South Florida Water Management District – January 15, 2015 

 

easement for the Enclave on Riviera project located in the City of Key West in 
Monroe County.  On June 8, 2010, the District issued Environmental Resource 
Permit (ERP) No. 44-00460-P (Application No. 080509-15) for construction of the 
Chabad of Key West institutional development on a 4.25 acre parcel.  This ERP 
authorized wetland impacts, on-site wetland mitigation and wetland preservation.  
Subsequently a 3.23 acre conservation easement over the wetland mitigation, buffer, 
and preservation areas was recorded with Monroe County. On October 31, 2013, the 
District received an application (Application No. 131031-3) requesting to transfer the 
ERP to the new property owner, modify the ERP for construction of the Enclave on 
Riviera multi-family residential development, and release the recorded conservation 
easement. Based upon more detailed site specific environmental information for the 
site, a new modified conservation easement will be recorded as part of the pending 
application that is being processed for the Enclave on Riviera.

13. Resolution No. 2015 - 0101  Approve release of canal and mineral 
reservations. (RE, Kathy Massey, ext. 6835) 

Summary: 
The District has jurisdiction over certain reserved rights to construct canal and road 
right of ways, and mineral rights, together with the right of ingress, egress and 
exploration.  Applications requesting releases of these reservations are routinely 
received from landowners, attorneys, title companies and lending institutions, who 
consider the reservations to be title defects. Applications are reviewed by appropriate 
District staff and applicable local governmental agencies to determine that there is no 
present or future need for the reservations. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends approval of the following: 
 

 Release of District canal reservations for Boynton Beach Associates XXIV, LLLP, a 
Florida limited liability limited partnership, (File No. 18608) for 412.13 acres in Palm 
Beach County 

 Release of District mineral reservations for Steven Clunk and Priscilla Campbell, 
Husband and Wife (File No. 18607) for 0.65 acres in Palm Beach County 

14. Resolution No. 2015 - 0102  Approve the release of  portions of two 
Irrigation, Drainage and Crossing Easement Agreements encumbering 0.36  
acre, more or less, located in Sections 34, 35 and 36, Township 42 South, 
Range 30 East and Section 31, Township 42 South, Range 31 East, Glades 
County,  adjacent to the Caloosahatchee River Basin Water Quality 
Treatment & Testing Facility Project; to the Florida Department of 
Transportation.  (RE, Ray Palmer, ext. 2246) 

Summary: 
The Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) is implementing its State Road 80 
Project F.P. No.: 4082865, in Glades County, which includes widening of State Road 
80 and modifications of the existing bridges over Barron Water Control District’s 
Canals C-2 and C-3 located adjacent to the Caloosahatchee River Basin Water 
Quality Treatment & Testing Facility Project (SFWMD’s project).  FDOT has 
determined that it is necessary to obtain a release of  easement interest comprising 
0.36 acre, more or less, from South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD) of 
its interest in the Barron Water Control District Canals C-2 and C-3 (bridge release 
parcels) located adjacent to the SFWMD’s project (see attached map).  FDOT has 
filed eminent domain proceedings against the SFWMD to obtain such easement 



 4  
 Governing Board Meeting Agenda of the South Florida Water Management District – January 15, 2015 

 

interests. SFWMD staff has reviewed FDOT’s request and determined that releasing 
these parcels will have no impact on present or future use of SFWMD’s project.  
SFWMD and FDOT staff have agreed to the release of bridge release parcels 
contingent upon a) payment to SFWMD of $1,000 application fee, b) FDOT acquiring 
fee title to the bridge release parcels from Barron Water Control District; c) dismissal 
with prejudice of SFWMD from eminent domain proceedings filed in Glades County; 
and d) compliance with these requirements by, but no later than, March 9, 2015.               
.     
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Approve the release of portions of two Irrigation, Drainage and Crossing Easement 
Agreements encumbering 0.36 acre, more or less, located in Sections 34, 35 and 36, 
Township 42 South, Range 30 East and Section 31, Township 42 South, Range 31 
East, Glades County, adjacent to the Caloosahatchee River Basin Water Quality 
Treatment & Testing Facility Project; to the Florida Department of Transportation; 
providing an effective date.  

15. Resolution No. 2015 - 0103  Authorizing a one (1) year agreement with the 
City of Naples in an amount not to exceed $325,000 for construction of the 
Lake Manor Restoration project, for which dedicated Big Cypress Basin ad 
valorem funds are budgeted; providing an effective date. (Agreement No. 
4600003151) (BCB, Lisa Koehler, ext. 7603) 

Summary 
Since FY06, the District has provided financial assistance to local governments 
within the Big Cypress Basin for flood control, natural system restoration, water 
quality improvement, and alternative water supply projects that meet objectives of 
the Big Cypress Basin 5-Year Strategic Plan. This item is being brought before the 
Governing Board for authorization by resolution to enter into a one-year cost share 
agreement with the City of Naples, which has requested financial assistance for 
restoration of Lake Manor. 
 
Lake Manor is a 5-acre stormwater lake within the City of Naples that receives runoff 
from the surrounding 81-acres. Lake Manor discharges to nearby Gordon River 
which empties into Naples Bay. Naples Bay has been identified as an impaired water 
body with respect to dissolved oxygen, fecal coliform, copper, iron, and mercury in 
fish tissue. An accumulation of organic detritus within Lake Manor has created a 
muck layer that has impaired pollutant removal abilities of the lake. Based on water 
quality monitoring data available since 2008; the City of Naples has determined that 
significant reductions in loading of total nitrogen, total phosphorus, fecal coliform, 
copper, and suspended solids to Naples Bay can be achieved through restoration of 
Lake Manor. The estimated total project cost for Lake Manor Restoration is 
approximately $1.3 million. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
Staff recommends execution of a one-year Agreement (4600003151) that will 
provide up to $325,000 or 25% of actual eligible project costs, whichever is less, to 
the City of Naples for Lake Manor Restoration. 



 5  
 Governing Board Meeting Agenda of the South Florida Water Management District – January 15, 2015 

 

16. Resolution No. 2015 - 0104  Authorize entering into a 3-year cooperative 
agreement with the University of Florida Institute of Food and Agricultural 
Sciences for the C-111 Spreader Canal Western Project Groundwater 
Monitoring and Analysis in the amount of $381,874, of which $145,583 are 
budgeted; and the remainder is subject to Governing Board approval of the 
FY16-17 budgets; providing an effective date. (Contract Number 
4600003189) (EPC, Matt Morrison, ext. 6844) 

Summary 
The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) issued a Section 404 permit under the 
Clean Water Act for the C-111 Spreader Canal Western Project on October 14, 2009. 
Special Conditions 7 and 9 of the permit require the District to conduct 
hydrometeorological monitoring as identified in the Project Monitoring Plan - Annex E 
of the January 2011 Final Integrated Project Implementation Report and 
Environmental Impact Statement (FPIR/EIS) and ensure that operation of project 
features do not adversely affect adjacent agricultural lands. The University of Florida 
Institute of Food and Agricultural Sciences (IFAS) is specifically designated as the 
organization to conduct this work by reference in the monitoring plan. This agreement 
provides for the continuation of one of the monitoring elements required by permit and 
described in Annex E of the FPIR/EIS.  Specifically, IFAS will develop soil water 
retention curves and correlate soil moisture data to local groundwater levels and canal 
stages in areas east of the C-111 Spreader Canal Western Project. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
Staff recommends approval of this contract with IFAS. The work is required by permit, 
determines the effects of the project and addresses concerns from agricultural 
interests on project operations and local agricultural production. 

17. Resolution No. 2015 - 0105  Approving the Underwriting Team for a period 
of five years for the purpose of marketing the Certificates of Participation 
(COPs) and other debt instruments to be issued in order to refund the current 
Certificates of Participation.  (AS, Lucie Weinberg, ext. 2808) 

Summary 
In an effort to reduce recurring annual debt service payments, the District has issued 
an RFP to update its financial underwriters listing; which puts us in position to 
advance refund a portion or all of the outstanding Series 2006 COPs depending on 
market conditions.  These COPs were issued to provide for the lease-purchase 
financing of the acquisition, construction, installation and equipping of certain 
facilities and improvements to land for the restoration, protection and preservation of 
the Everglades ecosystem; primarily the expansion of STA 2, expansion of STA 5/6, 
and the construction of the EAA A-1 Flow Equalization Basin.  The selected financial 
underwriters will assist in the structuring and timing of fixed rate COP transactions.   
 
Staff Recommendation 
Staff recommends approval of this ranked list of underwriters.  

18. Resolution No. 2015 - 0106  Approving the update to Chapter 130 of the 
District Policies Code, reducing the seventeen page policy to two pages, 
addressing the administration, responsibilities, and appropriate use for all 
Information Technology resources.  (AS, Duane Piper, ext. 2638) 

Summary 
A minor revision to the Information Technology Policy was adopted in March 2012; 



 6  
 Governing Board Meeting Agenda of the South Florida Water Management District – January 15, 2015 

 

however, the last comprehensive revision was in March 2008.  The policy must be 
revised to simplify the language while remaining applicable as information 
technology continuously evolves.  Therefore, the seventeen page policy was reduced 
to two pages addressing the administration, responsibilities, and appropriate use for 
all Information Technology resources. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
Staff recommends approving the new Information Technology Policy to explain the 
administration, responsibility, and appropriate use regarding all District Information 
Technology resources. 

19. Board Vote on Consent Agenda 

20. General Public Comment 

21. Board Comment 



 7  
 Governing Board Meeting Agenda of the South Florida Water Management District – January 15, 2015 

 

Discussion Agenda 

22. Technical Reports 

A)  Water Conditions Report - Jeff Kivett, Division Director, Operations, 
Engineering and Construction Division (ext. 2680) 
 
B)  Ecological Conditions Report - Terrie Bates, Division Director, Water 
Resources Division (ext. 6952) 

23. Operations, Maintenance and Construction Update (part 3) - Jeff Kivett, 
Division Director, Operations, Engineering and Construction Division (ext. 
2680) 

Summary 
The presentation will be the third in a series of presentations detailing OMC’s Field 
Operations and Maintenance. Last month’s presentation highlighted the District’s 
progression from past, present and just touched on the future of maintaining and 
operating the infrastructure. This month will cover how we are looking at efficiencies 
that can be utilized to continue improving the District’s Water Management System 
and associated assets through logistics and technology. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
This item is for information only; no action is required.  

24. Resolution No. 2015 - 0107  Approving the finalized Inter-Local Agreement 
with other agency/governmental partners for the expanded Indian River 
Lagoon National Estuary Program. (Contract No. 4600003137) (EXO, Dan 
DeLisi, ext. 6232) 

Summary 
The Indian River Lagoon National Estuary Program (IRL NEP) was established in 
1990 through the Environmental Protection Agency’s (EPA) designation of the IRL as 
an “estuary of national significance.” The IRL NEP provides a non-regulatory, 
stakeholder-driven, collaborative approach to coastal watershed restoration and 
protection. In 1991, a Management Conference was established to guide 
development of the IRL NEP Comprehensive Conservation Management Plan 
(CCMP) and its future implementation. The St. Johns River Water Management 
District (SJRWMD) was selected as IRL NEP’s local sponsoring agency and has 
provided administrative, personnel and facility support to the IRL NEP since its 
inception in 1991. 
 
In August 2014, the SFWMD Governing Board was briefed on proposed 
organizational changes designed to increase community participation and expand 
project opportunities. In September 2014, the Governing Board approved an initial 
investment of funds and was updated on development of an Inter-local Agreement.  
 
In December 2014, the IRL NEP advisory board, an interagency and stakeholder 
body that oversees the program, reviewed and approved the finalized Inter-local 
Agreement presented here. The Agreement increases community participation and 
expands project opportunities to benefit the IRL. It also creates the Indian River 
Lagoon Council, an entity under Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, to oversee the 



 8  
 Governing Board Meeting Agenda of the South Florida Water Management District – January 15, 2015 

 

revised and expanded IRL NEP program. This month staff is requesting Governing 
Board approval of the finalized Inter-local Agreement.  
 
Staff Recommendation 
Staff recommends approval of this item as the project leverages state dollars with 
federal and local cost-share funds to implement water resource projects/programs 
that directly benefit the Indian River Lagoon.  

25. Status Update on the Kissimmee Basin Water Reservations Rule 
Development - Terrie Bates, Division Director, Water Resources Division (ext. 
6952) 

Summary 
Staff will provide a status update on the ongoing rule development process 
associated with the Kissimmee Basin Water Reservations. An integral component of 
the Kissimmee River Restoration Project (KRRP) is the protection of water for fish 
and wildlife. The water identified for fish and wildlife will be protected through a water 
reservation as authorized by Florida law. The KRRP will restore over 40 square miles 
of river/floodplain ecosystem including 43 miles of meandering river channel and 
27,000 acres of wetlands and is a joint partnership between the District and U.S. 
Army Corps of Engineers (USACE).  Consumptive use permitting rules for potential 
allocation of water supplies above that needed for the protection of fish and wildlife 
are proposed and may play a role in developing future water supply for the Central 
Florida Water Initiative area.  
 
Staff Recommendation 
This item is for information only; no action is required.   

26. Resolution No. 2015 - 0108  Authorize entering into a 300 day contract with 
Florida Design Contractors, Inc., the lowest responsive and responsible 
bidder, for the Information Technology Shelters Replacement Project Central 
Package, for a total amount of $2,344,000, for which ad valorem funds are 
budgeted in FY15.  (Contract number 4600003192) (OEC, John P. Mitnik, 
P.E., ext. 2679) 

Summary 

The District operates and maintains an expansive water management network of 
canals and levees, including pump stations and water control structures.  The data 
obtained from this infrastructure is relayed via communication towers and network 
systems. As communication towers and equipment are being upgraded, shelters at 
four (4) locations including Clewiston Field Station, West Palm Beach Field Station, 
S5A Pump Station, and ACME Tower Site, need to be replaced as the existing 
shelters do not have the capacity to allow for further expansion to accommodate any 
equipment upgrades. 
 
The project is located in Palm Beach County and Hendry County.  It consists of 
installing five (5) precast concrete buildings and integrating or installing emergency 
power to these new buildings.  The IT equipment integration will be completed by the 
District.   
 
Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval to enter into a 300 day contract in the amount of 
$2,344,000 with Florida Design Contractors, Inc., the lowest responsive and 



 9  
 Governing Board Meeting Agenda of the South Florida Water Management District – January 15, 2015 

 

responsible bidder, for the construction of the Information Technology Shelters 
Replacement Project Central Package. 

27. Resolution No. 2015 - 0109  Authorize entering into a 425 day contract with 
Mitchell & Stark Construction Co., Inc. For The C-43 Reservoir Early Start 
Demolition and Berm Construction Project, in the amount of $1,937,860, for 
which $1,937,860 of dedicated funds (Save Our Everglades Trust Fund 
and/or State Appropriations) are budgeted in FY15. (Contract number 
4600003193) (OEC, John P. Mitnik, P.E., ext. 2679) 

Summary 
The Caloosahatchee River C-43 West Basin Storage Reservoir project was 
authorized in the Water Resources and Reform Development Act (WRRDA) 2014 
facilitating the ability of the state to move forward with early start construction of the 
authorized project. The C-43 Early Start project will initiate efforts to begin realizing 
the benefits of the Caloosahatchee River (C43) West Basin Storage Reservoir. The 
Early Start project will consist of a temporary storage facility located in the southwest 
corner of the Reservoir project site with an objective to provide interim shallow 
storage on the site.   
 
This phase of the Early Start project involves demolition of existing features (buried 
pipes, underdrains, culverts and above ground facilities) along an east - west 
alignment that is approximately 15,000 feet long and approximately 100 feet wide.  
Within the same footprint, this phase includes the construction of the north berm, 
which will be approximately 3 miles in length and will provide the northern boundary 
for the 3,500 acre impoundment.  The height of the berm will range between 3 feet to 
approximately 8 feet and provide a maximum resulting pool depth of 4 feet.   
 
Staff Recommendation 
Board approval is requested at the January Governing Board meeting to initiate 
construction of the north berm of the C-43 Early Start Project. Not implementing the 
Caloosahatchee River (C-43) West Basin Storage Reservoir - Early Start Project will 
delay the ability to capture runoff from the basin and regulatory releases from Lake 
Okeechobee in order to improve timing, quantity, and quality of freshwater flows to 
the river and estuary. 

28. Healthcare Insurance Update - Doug Bergstrom, Division Director, 
Administrative Services Division (ext. 6214) 

Summary 
Cam Potter of Aon Hewitt Benefits Consulting will be on-hand to present Aon’s 
Health Plan Analysis and key findings/recommendations for the District’s insurance 
benefits program. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
This item is for information only; no action is required.  

29. General Public Comment 



 10  
 Governing Board Meeting Agenda of the South Florida Water Management District – January 15, 2015 

 

Public Hearing 

30. Resolution No. 2015 - 0110  Adopt the SFWMD Florida Forever Work Plan, 
2015 Annual Update, contained in Chapter 6A, Volume II of the 2015 South 
Florida Environmental Report.  (RE, Ben Ward, ext. 6314) 

Summary: 
 
Highlights 
The 2015 SFER - Volume II, Chapter 6A presents the 2015 Florida Forever Work 
Plan. This chapter identifies projects eligible for funding under the Florida Forever 
Act (Section 259.105, Florida Statutes) as well as projects eligible for land acquisition 
funding from state-appropriated accounts or trust funds under Section 373.139(3)(c), 
Florida Statutes. Land acquisition activity during FY2014 is also provided in this 
chapter, while the land acquisition status of Florida Forever/Save Our Rivers 
(FF/SOR) projects is presented in Chapter 6B of this volume. 
 
Work Plan Updates 
There were 46 eligible projects identified under the Florida Forever Program, 
Northern Everglades and Estuaries Protection Program, Comprehensive Everglades 
Restoration Plan, and other water resource projects.  
 
Four of the projects were added for implementation of Restoration Strategies: 

 Stormwater Treatment Area 1W Expansion 

 Lainhart & Masten Dam Conveyance 

 Bolles Canal (G-341)  

 G-716 Structure Expansion (S-375) 
 
 Several project modifications were made: 

 The Indian River Lagoon - South, Palmar Complex - Natural Storage and Treatment 
Area feature was updated in accordance with the December 11, 2014 adopted 
amendment to 2014 Florida Forever Work Plan modifying the project boundary. 

  The C-111 South Dade Project boundary was modified to incorporate approximately 
6,020 acres associated the Southern Glades, FF/SOR project and approximately 
5,274 acres associated within the Frog Pond, FF/SOR project for the purpose of 
Everglades restoration and flood protection. 

 The Sam Jones/Abiake Prairie has been established as a FF/SOR project, using 
approximately 15,000 acres of previously acquired District-owned lands, to provide 
hydrologic benefits to groundwater, surface water and water supply, once the lands 
are restored as part of the C-139 Annex Restoration Project. 



 11  
 Governing Board Meeting Agenda of the South Florida Water Management District – January 15, 2015 

 

Staff Reports 

31. Monthly Financial Report - Doug Bergstrom, Division Director, Administrative 
Services Division 

32. Executive Director's Report - Blake Guillory 

 Report of permits issued by authority delegated to the Executive Director from 
December 1-31, 2014.  

33. Board Comment 



 12  
 Governing Board Meeting Agenda of the South Florida Water Management District – January 15, 2015 

 

Attorney Client Sessions 

34. Attorney Client Session - USA 

Attorney client session pursuant to Section 286.011(8), Florida Statutes 
(2013), to discuss strategy related to litigation expenditures and/or settlement 
negotiations in United States of America v. South Florida Water Management 
District, et al., United States District Court, Southern District of Florida, Case 
No. 88-1886-CIV-Moreno.  
 
ATTENDEES: Governing Board Members F. Barber, S. Batchelor, M. 
Hutchcraft, M. Peterson, J. Moran, D. O’Keefe, J. Portuondo, K. Powers; 
Executive Director B. Guillory; District attorneys K. Burns, J. Collier, C. 
Kowalsky, J. Nutt.  (Kirk Burns, ext. 6546) 
 
Action Items, (if any), Stemming from Attorney/Client Session 
 
Attorney client session pursuant to Section 286.011(8), Florida Statutes 
(2013), to discuss strategy related to litigation expenditures and/or settlement 
negotiations in United States of America v. South Florida Water Management 
District, et al., United States District Court, Southern District of Florida, Case 
No. 88-1886-CIV-Moreno.  (Kirk Burns, ext. 6546) 

35. Adjourn 



CONSENT AGENDA TABLE OF CONTENTS
REGULATORY ITEMS FOR GOVERNING BOARD ACTION

January 15, 2015
  

              I

             II

CONSENT ORDERS

CONSERVATION EASEMENT AMENDMENTS AND RELEASES

12.a

Packet Pg. 13

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 c

a_
re

g
_r

m
_1

00
_s

d
 (

II)
  (

22
35

 :
 R

eg
u

la
to

ry
 C

o
n

se
n

t 
A

g
en

d
a)

jbozeman
Typewritten Text
PAGE



 REGULATION AGENDA ITEMS 
 
PERMIT DENIAL: Those listed on the consent agenda are routine in nature and non-controversial.  Such 
denials are typically due to failure of applicant to complete the application.  Unique or controversial projects or 
those requiring a policy decision are normally listed as discussion items. Permit types include: 
  
 Environmental Resource (ERP):  Permits that consider such factors as the storage of storm water 

to prevent flooding of a project (upstream or downstream projects); the treatment of stormwater prior 
to discharge from the site to remove pollutants; and the protection of wetlands on the project site. 

  
 Surface Water Management:  Permits for drainage systems, which address flood protection, water 

quality, and environmental protection of wetlands. 
 
 Water Use:  Permits for the use of ground and/or surface water from wells, canals, or lakes. 
 
 Lake Okeechobee Works of the District:  Permits that set concentration  limits for total 

phosphorus in surface discharge from individual parcels  in the Lake Okeechobee Basin.       
 
 EAA Works of the District:  Permits to reduce the total phosphorus load  from the EAA by 25 

percent in water discharged to Works of the District. 
 
 Wetland Resource:  Permits for dredge and fill activities within Waters of the State and their 

associated wetlands. 
  
 
ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING: A case in litigation conducted pursuant to the Administrative Procedures Act 
(Chapter 120, Florida Statutes) involving the determination of a suit upon its merits.  Administrative hearings 
provide for a timely and cost effective dispute resolution forum for interested persons objecting to agency 
action. 
 
FINAL ORDER: The Administrative Procedures Act requires the District to timely render a final order for an 
administrative hearing after the hearing officer submits a recommended order. The final order must be in 
writing and include findings of fact and conclusions of law. 
 
CONSENT ORDER: A voluntary contractual agreement between the District and a party in dispute which 
legally binds the parties to the terms and conditions contained in the agreement. Normally used as a vehicle 
to outline the terms and conditions regarding settlement of an enforcement action. 
 
CONSERVATION EASEMENT: A perpetual interest to the District in real property that retains land or water 
areas in their existing, natural, vegetative, hydrologic, scenic, open or wooded condition and retains such 
areas as suitable habitat for fish, plants, or wildlife in accordance with Section 704.06, F.S. 
 
TECHNICAL DENIAL:  This action normally takes place when a proposed project design does not meet 
water management criteria or the applicant does not supply information necessary to complete the technical 
review of an application. 
 
EMERGENCY ORDER and AUTHORIZATION: An immediate final order issued without notice by the 
Executive Director, with the concurrence and advice of the Governing Board, pursuant to  (Section 
373.119(2), Florida Statutes, when a situation arises that requires timely action to protect the public health, 
safety or welfare and other resources enumerated by rule and statute. 
 
MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT/UNDERSTANDING:  A contractual arrangement between the District 
and a named party or parties.  This instrument typically is used to define or explain parameters of a long-term 
relationship and may establish certain procedures or joint operating decisions. 

12.a

Packet Pg. 14

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 c

a_
re

g
_r

m
_1

00
_s

d
 (

II)
  (

22
35

 :
 R

eg
u

la
to

ry
 C

o
n

se
n

t 
A

g
en

d
a)



 
PETITION: An objection in writing to the District, requesting either a formal or an informal administrative 
hearing, regarding an agency action or a proposed agency action. Usually a petition filed pursuant to Chapter 
120, Florida Statutes, challenges agency action, a permit, or a rule. Virtually all agency action is subject to 
petition by substantially affected persons.  
 
SEMINOLE TRIBE WORK PLAN: The District and the Seminole Indians signed a Water Use Compact in 
1987.  Under the compact, annual work plans are submitted to the District for review and approval. This plan 
keeps the District informed about the tribe plans for use of their land and the natural resources. Although this 
is not a permit, the staff has water resource related input to this plan. 
 
SITE CERTIFICATIONS: Certain types of projects (power plants, transmission lines, etc.) are permitted by 
the Governor and Cabinet under special one-stop permitting processes that supercede normal District 
permits. The Water Management Districts, DEP, DCA, FGFWFC, and other public agencies are mandatory 
participants. DEP usually coordinates these processes for the Governor and Cabinet. 
 
VARIANCES FROM, OR WAIVERS OF, PERMIT CRITERIA: The Florida Administrative Procedures Act 
provides that persons subject to an agency rule may petition the agency for a variance from, or waiver of, a 
permitting rule.  The Governing Board may grant a petition for variance or waiver when the petitioner 
demonstrates that 1) the purpose of the underlying statute will be or has been achieved by other means and, 
2) when application of the rule would create a substantial hardship or would violate principles of fairness. 
 

12.a

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 c

a_
re

g
_r

m
_1

00
_s

d
 (

II)
  (

22
35

 :
 R

eg
u

la
to

ry
 C

o
n

se
n

t 
A

g
en

d
a)



1.

2.

RESPONDENT:

RESPONDENT:

SEC 7,8  TWP 25S  RGE 29E

SEC 11,14  TWP 26S  RGE 28E

OSCEOLA COUNTY

OSCEOLA COUNTY

___________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________
CONSENT ORDERS

PROJECT:

PROJECT:

SONOMA RESORT - PHASE 1

WATERVIEW - PHASE 3 MOD & LOT SIZE

PARK SQUARE HOMES

AVATAR PROPERTIES, INC.

SETTLEMENT OF AN ENFORCEMENT ACTION REGARDING UNAUTHORIZED OFF-SITE DISCHARGE 
INTO SHINGLE CREEK

SETTLEMENT OF AN ENFORCEMENT ACTION REGARDING UNAUTHORIZED OFF-SITE DISCHARGE 
INTO ADJACENT WETLANDS

12.a

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 c

a_
re

g
_r

m
_1

00
_s

d
 (

II)
  (

22
35

 :
 R

eg
u

la
to

ry
 C

o
n

se
n

t 
A

g
en

d
a)



1.

2.

PERMITTEE:

PERMITTEE:

BROWARD COUNTY

MONROE COUNTY

___________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________
CONSERVATION EASEMENT AMENDMENTS AND RELEASES

PROJECT:

PROJECT:

CITY OF PEMBROKE PINES F P L EASEMENT PARKING

ENCLAVE ON RIVIERA

CITY OF PEMBROKE PINES

REEF ENTERPRIZES, LLC

APPROVE A REQUEST FOR RELEASE OF A 32.48 ACRE EXISTING CONSERVATION EASEMENT 
RELATED TO THE PEMBROKE PINES CITY HALL ADDITIONAL PARKING PROJECT IN THE CITY 
OF PEMBROKE PINES (CITY) IN BROWARD COUNTY.  ON JULY 5, 2011, TO OFFSET WETLAND 
IMPACTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE CITY HALL ADDITIONAL PARKING PROJECT, THE DISTRICT 
ISSUED ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCE PERMIT NO. 06-06270-P AUTHORIZING THE CONSTRUCTION
OF A 32.48 ACRE WETLAND MITIGATION AREA AT THE OFFSITE RAINTREE DEVELOPMENT. 
WHILE THE CONSERVATION EASEMENT WAS SUBSEQUENTLY RECORDED, CONSTRUCTION OF THE 
OFFSITE PERMITTED WETLAND MITIGATION AREA WAS NEVER INITIATED. THE CITY HAS NOW 
APPLIED TO BOTH MODIFY THE ONSITE PARKING DESIGN (APPLICATION NUMBER 140718-2) 
AND TO RELOCATE THE REQUIRED WETLAND MITIGATION AREA TO THE OFFSITE FOXCROFT 
PROPERTY (APPLICATION NUMBER 141125-11). THEREFORE, THE 32.48 ACRE EXISTING 
CONSERVATION EASEMENT IS REQUESTED TO BE RELEASED.

APPROVE A REQUEST FOR RELEASE OF A 3.23 ACRE EXISTING CONSERVATION EASEMENT FOR 
THE ENCLAVE ON RIVIERA PROJECT LOCATED IN THE CITY OF KEY WEST IN MONROE COUNTY.
ON JUNE 8, 2010, THE DISTRICT ISSUED ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCE PERMIT (ERP) NO. 
44-00460-P (APPLICATION NO. 080509-15) FOR CONSTRUCTION OF THE CHABAD OF KEY 
WEST INSTITUTIONAL DEVELOPMENT ON A 4.25 ACRE PARCEL.  THIS ERP AUTHORIZED 
WETLAND IMPACTS, ON-SITE WETLAND MITIGATION AND WETLAND PRESERVATION.  
SUBSEQUENTLY A 3.23 ACRE CONSERVATION EASEMENT OVER THE WETLAND MITIGATION, 
BUFFER, AND PRESERVATION AREAS WAS RECORDED WITH MONROE COUNTY. ON OCTOBER 31, 
2013, THE DISTRICT RECEIVED AN APPLICATION (APPLICATION NO. 131031-3) REQUESTING
TO TRANSFER THE ERP TO THE NEW PROPERTY OWNER, MODIFY THE ERP FOR CONSTRUCTION 
OF THE ENCLAVE ON RIVIERA MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT, AND RELEASE THE 
RECORDED CONSERVATION EASEMENT. BASED UPON MORE DETAILED SITE SPECIFIC 
ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION FOR THE SITE, A NEW MODIFIED CONSERVATION EASEMENT 
WILL BE RECORDED AS PART OF THE PENDING APPLICATION THAT IS BEING PROCESSED FOR 
THE ENCLAVE ON RIVIERA.

12.a

Packet Pg. 17

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 c

a_
re

g
_r

m
_1

00
_s

d
 (

II)
  (

22
35

 :
 R

eg
u

la
to

ry
 C

o
n

se
n

t 
A

g
en

d
a)



M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 
TO:  Governing Board Members 
 
FROM: Ben Ward, Director, Real Estate Division 
 
DATE:  January 15, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: Release of Reservations 
 
 
Summary: 
The District has jurisdiction over certain reserved rights to construct canal and road right of 
ways, and mineral rights, together with the right of ingress, egress and exploration.  Applications 
requesting releases of these reservations are routinely received from landowners, attorneys, 
title companies and lending institutions, who consider the reservations to be title defects. 
Applications are reviewed by appropriate District staff and applicable local governmental 
agencies to determine that there is no present or future need for the reservations. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends approval of the following: 
 

 Release of District canal reservations for Boynton Beach Associates XXIV, LLLP, a Florida 
limited liability limited partnership, (File No. 18608) for 412.13 acres in Palm Beach County 

 Release of District mineral reservations for Steven Clunk and Priscilla Campbell, Husband 
and Wife (File No. 18607) for 0.65 acres in Palm Beach County 
 

 
Additional Background: 
See Memorandum Exhibit “A” and maps attached hereto and made a part hereof, which contain 
the details and locations of the releases to be approved and issued. 
 
Core Mission and Strategic Priorities: 
Pursuant to Section 373.096 of the Florida Statutes, the Governing Board of the District may 
release any reservation for which it has no present or apparent use under terms and conditions 
determined by the Board. 
 
Funding Source: 
None; the reservations were acquired at no cost to the District. 
 
Staff Contact and/or Presenter: 
Kathy Massey, kmassey@sfwmd.gov <mailto:kmassey@sfwmd.gov>, 561-682-6835 

13

Packet Pg. 18



MEMORANDUM - EXHIBIT “A” 
 
 

File No.:  18608 
Applicant: Boynton Beach Associates XXIV, LLLP, a Florida limited liability limited 

partnership 
Reserving Deed: T-2889 (DB 327-155, 12/15/1926) 
Fee Paid:  $250.00 
Action:   Approve release of District canal reservations  
Acres:   412.13 acres, more or less 
Legal Description: Portion of Tracts 17 through 24, 43 through 53, and 65 through 128, 

PALM BEACH FARMS CO. PLAT 1, PB 2-26, Section 30, Township 46 
South, Range 42 East 

Location: West of Lyons Road, East of State Road 7, and South of Atlantic Avenue, 
Delray Beach, Palm Beach County 

Reviewed By: Water Supply Development Section, Right of Way Section, Environmental 
Resource Permitting Bureau, Survey Section, Office of Everglades Policy 
and Coordination, and Lake Worth Drainage District 

 
File No.: 18607 
Applicant: Steven Clunk and Priscilla Campbell, Husband and Wife 
Reserving Deed: QCD (DB 910-675, 6/13/1950) 
Fee Paid: $250.00 
Action: Approve release of District mineral reservations  
Acres: 0.65 acres, more or less 
Legal Description: Portion of Lots 54 and 55, Block 29, THE PALM BEACH FARMS 

COMPANY PLAT NO. 3, PB 2-45 
Location: 40 Canton Road, Lake Worth, Palm Beach County 
Reviewed By:  No external or internal routing required for mineral releases 

13

Packet Pg. 19



SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

Resolution No. 2015 - 0101  

 

A Resolution of the Governing Board of the South Florida Water 
Management District approving release of canal and mineral 
reservations; providing an effective date.  

 
WHEREAS, certain underlying landowners have requested that the South Florida 

Water Management District (District) release certain canal and mineral reservations; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the District is empowered to grant such releases pursuant to Section 

373.096, Florida Statutes. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BOARD OF 

THE SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT: 
 

Section 1.   The Governing Board of the South Florida Water Management District 
hereby approves the release of canal and mineral reservations, as described in 
Resolution Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and made a part hereof. 
 
Section 2.      This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 
 
PASSED and ADOPTED this 15th day of January, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
_________________________ 
District Clerk/Secretary 

SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT 
DISTRICT, BY ITS GOVERNING BOARD 
By: 
___________________________________ 

Chairman 
 
Legal form approved: 
By: 
___________________________________ 

Office of Counsel 
 
Print name: 
 
___________________________________ 
 

 

13

Packet Pg. 20



RESOLUTION - EXHIBIT “A” 
 
 
 
RELEASE OF DISTRICT CANAL RESERVATIONS: 
 
File No.: 18608 
Applicant: Boynton Beach Associates XXIV, LLLP, a Florida limited liability limited 

partnership 
Reserving Deed: T-2889 (DB 327-155, 12/15/1926) 
Acres: 412.133 acres, more or less 
Legal Description: Portion of Tracts 17 through 24, 43 through 53, and 65 through 128, 

PALM BEACH FARMS CO. PLAT 1, PB 2-26, Section 30, Township 46 
South, Range 42 East 

Location: West of Lyons Road, East of State Road 7, and South of Atlantic Avenue, 
Delray Beach, Palm Beach County 

 
RELEASE OF DISTRICT MINERAL RESERVATIONS: 
 
File No.: 18607 
Applicant: Steven Clunk and Priscilla Campbell, Husband and Wife 
Reserving Deed: QCD (DB 910-675, 6/13/1950) 
Acres: 0.65 acres, more or less 
Legal Description: Portions of Lots 54 and 55, Block 29, THE PALM BEACH FARMS 

COMPANY PLAT NO. 3, PB 2-45 
Location: 40 Canton Road, Lake Worth, Palm Beach County 
 

13.a

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 c

a_
re

_2
00

_E
x 

A
_R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

_M
as

se
y_

R
el

ea
se

 o
f 

R
es

er
va

ti
o

n
s 

 (
R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 N
o

. 2
01

5 
- 

01
01

  :
 R

el
ea

se
 o

f 
R

es
er

va
ti

o
n

s)



13.b

Packet Pg. 22

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 c

a_
re

_2
00

_1
86

07
_M

as
se

y_
R

el
ea

se
 o

f 
R

es
er

va
ti

o
n

s 
 (

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 N

o
. 2

01
5 

- 
01

01
  :

 R
el

ea
se

 o
f 

R
es

er
va

ti
o

n
s)

aschlut
Typewritten Text
RELEASE OF RESERVATIONS18607PALM BEACH COUNTY

aschlut
Typewritten Text

aschlut
Typewritten Text

aschlut
Typewritten Text

aschlut
Typewritten Text

aschlut
Typewritten Text

aschlut
Typewritten Text

aschlut
Typewritten Text



13.c

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 c

a_
re

_2
00

_1
86

08
_M

as
se

y_
R

el
ea

se
 o

f 
R

es
er

va
ti

o
n

s 
 (

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 N

o
. 2

01
5 

- 
01

01
  :

 R
el

ea
se

 o
f 

R
es

er
va

ti
o

n
s)

aschlut
Typewritten Text
RELEASE OF RESERVATIONS18608PALM BEACH COUNTY



M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 
TO:  Governing Board Members 
 
FROM: Ben Ward, Director, Real Estate Division 
 
DATE:  January 15, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: Approve the release of portions of two irrigation, drainage and crossing 
easement agreements 
 
 
Summary: 
The Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) is implementing its State Road 80 Project 
F.P. No.: 4082865, in Glades County, which includes widening of State Road 80 and 
modifications of the existing bridges over Barron Water Control District’s Canals C-2 and C-3 
located adjacent to the Caloosahatchee River Basin Water Quality Treatment & Testing Facility 
Project (SFWMD’s project).  FDOT has determined that it is necessary to obtain a release of  
easement interest comprising 0.36 acre, more or less, from South Florida Water Management 
District (SFWMD) of its interest in the Barron Water Control District Canals C-2 and C-3 (bridge 
release parcels) located adjacent to the SFWMD’s project (see attached map).  FDOT has filed 
eminent domain proceedings against the SFWMD to obtain such easement interests. SFWMD 
staff has reviewed FDOT’s request and determined that releasing these parcels will have no 
impact on present or future use of SFWMD’s project.  SFWMD and FDOT staff have agreed to 
the release of bridge release parcels contingent upon a) payment to SFWMD of $1,000 
application fee, b) FDOT acquiring fee title to the bridge release parcels from Barron Water 
Control District; c) dismissal with prejudice of SFWMD from eminent domain proceedings filed in 
Glades County; and d) compliance with these requirements by, but no later than, March 9, 
2015.               .     
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Approve the release of portions of two Irrigation, Drainage and Crossing Easement Agreements 
encumbering 0.36 acre, more or less, located in Sections 34, 35 and 36, Township 42 South, 
Range 30 East and Section 31, Township 42 South, Range 31 East, Glades County, adjacent to 
the Caloosahatchee River Basin Water Quality Treatment & Testing Facility Project; to the 
Florida Department of Transportation; providing an effective date.  
 
Additional Background: 
N/A  
 
Core Mission and Strategic Priorities: 
The subject releases will not impact implementation of the project since the remainder of the 
District’s easement encumbering the Barron Water Control District Canals C-2 and C-3, as well 
as canals located internally within the SFWMD project, will be adequate to meet the needs of 
the project.  
 
 
Funding Source: 
This release of SFWMD interest will be at no cost and SFWMD will receive $1000 for 
processing this release as compensation.  

14

Packet Pg. 24



 
Staff Contact and/or Presenter: 
Ray Palmer, rpalmer@sfwmd.gov <mailto:rpalmer@sfwmd.gov>, 561-682-2246. 

14

Packet Pg. 25



SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

Resolution No. 2015 - 0102  

 

A Resolution of the Governing Board of the South Florida Water 
Management District to approve the release of  portions of two 
Irrigation, Drainage and Crossing Easement Agreements 
encumbering 0.36  acre, more or less, located in Sections 34, 35 and 
36, Township 42 South, Range 30 East and Section 31, Township 42 
South, Range 31 East, Glades County,  adjacent to the 
Caloosahatchee River Basin Water Quality Treatment & Testing 
Facility Project; to the Florida Department of Transportation;  
providing an effective date. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) is implementing its 
State Road 80 Project F.P. No.: 4082865, in Glades County, which includes widening of 
State Road 80 and modifications of the existing bridges over Barron Water Control 
District’s Canals C-2 and C-3 and  has determined that it is necessary to obtain a 
release from the District of portions of two Irrigation, Drainage and Crossing Easement 
Agreements encumbering 0.36 acres, more or less, located in Sections 34, 35 and 36, 
Township  42 South, Range  30 East and Section 31, Township 42 South, Range 31 
East,  adjacent to the Caloosahatchee River Basin Water Quality Treatment & Testing 
Facility Project, Glades County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the FDOT has filed eminent domain proceedings in Civil Action No.: 
2014 CA-50, Parcel No.: 100, 102, in the Circuit Court of the 20th Judicial Circuit in and 
for Glades County, Florida to obtain the 0.36 acre interest of the District within the 
Barron Water Control District’s Canals C-2 and C-3. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Governing Board has determined that the 0.36 acre portion of 
the District’s interest in these irrigation, drainage and crossing easement agreements is 
not required by the District for present or future use; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Governing Board has determined that it is in the public interest 
to release the District’s interest within the 0.36 acre portion of Barron Water Control 
District’s Canals C-2 and C-3 to FDOT; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Governing Board, pursuant to Section 373.096, Florida Statutes, 
may release any easement for which it has no present or apparent use under terms and 
conditions determined by the Board; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Governing Board, pursuant to Section 373.056(4), Florida 

Statutes, has the authority to convey to any governmental entity land, or rights in land, 
owned by the District not required for its purposes, under terms and conditions 
approved by the Governing Board; and  

 

14

Packet Pg. 26



WHEREAS, the applicant will pay all fees and costs associated with the release 
of the easement. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE 
SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT: 
 
Section 1. The Governing Board of the South Florida Water Management District 
hereby approves the release of portions of two Irrigation, Drainage and Crossing 
Agreements encumbering 0.36  acres, more or less, located in Sections 34, 35 and 36 , 
Township 42 South, Range 30 East, and Section 31, Township 42 South, Range 31 
East, Glades County,  adjacent to the Caloosahatchee River Basin Water Quality 
Treatment & Testing Facility Project, to the Florida Department of Transportation at no 
cost to the applicant, provided all of the following terms, conditions, and requirements 
are satisfied, by the FDOT at its sole cost and expense, to the satisfaction of the 
District, in its sole and absolute discretion: 

a. Payment to the District of the $1,000 application fee. 
b. Acquisition by Florida Department of Transportation of the underlying 

fee interest to the subject release parcels. 
c. Dismissal with prejudice by Florida Department of Transportation of 

South Florida Water Management District from Civil Action No.: 2014-
CA-50 Parcel No.: 100, 102 filed in the Circuit Court of the 20th Judicial 
Circuit in and for Glades County, Florida. 

d. All of the foregoing terms, conditions, and requirements set forth in 
subparagraphs (a.) through (c.), inclusive, must be satisfied to the 
satisfaction of the District in its sole and absolute discretion before, but 
no later than March 9, 2015. 

 
Section 2. The Governing Board of the South Florida Water Management District 
hereby authorizes the Chairman to execute the release document. No release 
document shall be delivered to the applicant, or shall be effective, until all of the 
foregoing requirements have been fully completed and fulfilled to the District’s 
satisfaction. 
 
Section 3. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 
 
PASSED and ADOPTED this 15th day of January, 2015. 
 

14

Packet Pg. 27



 
 
 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
_________________________ 
District Clerk/Secretary 

SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT 
DISTRICT, BY ITS GOVERNING BOARD 
By: 
___________________________________ 

Chairman 
 
Legal form approved: 
By: 
___________________________________ 

Office of Counsel 
 
Print name: 
 
___________________________________ 
 

 

14

Packet Pg. 28



14.a

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 c

a_
re

_2
02

_m
ap

_P
al

m
er

_B
ar

ro
n

C
2_

C
3 

 (
R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 N
o

. 2
01

5 
- 

01
02

  :
 A

p
p

ro
ve

 t
h

e 
re

le
as

e 
o

f



M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 
TO:  Governing Board Members 
 
FROM: Tom Teets, 
 
DATE:  January 15, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: City of Naples Lake Manor Restoration Agreement 
 
 
Summary 
Since FY06, the District has provided financial assistance to local governments within the Big 
Cypress Basin for flood control, natural system restoration, water quality improvement, and 
alternative water supply projects that meet objectives of the Big Cypress Basin 5-Year Strategic 
Plan. This item is being brought before the Governing Board for authorization by resolution to 
enter into a one-year cost share agreement with the City of Naples, which has requested 
financial assistance for restoration of Lake Manor. 
 
Lake Manor is a 5-acre stormwater lake within the City of Naples that receives runoff from the 
surrounding 81-acres. Lake Manor discharges to nearby Gordon River which empties into 
Naples Bay. Naples Bay has been identified as an impaired water body with respect to 
dissolved oxygen, fecal coliform, copper, iron, and mercury in fish tissue. An accumulation of 
organic detritus within Lake Manor has created a muck layer that has impaired pollutant removal 
abilities of the lake. Based on water quality monitoring data available since 2008; the City of 
Naples has determined that significant reductions in loading of total nitrogen, total phosphorus, 
fecal coliform, copper, and suspended solids to Naples Bay can be achieved through restoration 
of Lake Manor. The estimated total project cost for Lake Manor Restoration is approximately 
$1.3 million. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
Staff recommends execution of a one-year Agreement (4600003151) that will provide up to 
$325,000 or 25% of actual eligible project costs, whichever is less, to the City of Naples for Lake 
Manor Restoration. 
 
Additional Background 
The Lake Manor Restoration project will include excavation of approximately 7,500 cubic yards 
of muck and sediment trapped within the lake, recontouring the sides and bottom of the lake, 
removal of approximately 1.17 acres of invasive vegetation along the shoreline and creation and 
planting of approximately 0.18 acres of littoral zone. 
 
Core Mission and Strategic Priorities 
The Lake Manor Restoration project compliments the District’s core mission of flood protection 
and improvement of water quality as set forth in the priorities of the Big Cypress Basin 5-Year 
Strategic Plan. Once complete, the project will provide additional flood protection to the City of 
Naples and measurable reductions in nutrient loading to Naples Bay. The Office of Everglades 
Policy and Coordination will support the Big Cypress Basin through execution and management 
of Agreement 4600003151. 
 
Funding Source 

15

Packet Pg. 30



The District’s contribution is not to exceed $325,000 or 25% of actual eligible project costs in 
dedicated Big Cypress Basin ad valorem funds that have been budgeted for FY15. 
 
Staff Contact and/or Presenter  
Lisa Koehler, (239) 263-7615 x7603, lkoehler@sfwmd.gov 

15

Packet Pg. 31



SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

Resolution No. 2015 - 0103  

 

A Resolution of the Governing Board of the South Florida Water 
Management District authorizing a one (1) year agreement with the 
City of Naples in an amount not to exceed $325,000 for construction 
of the Lake Manor Restoration project, for which dedicated Big 
Cypress Basin ad valorem funds are budgeted; providing an 
effective date.  

 

WHEREAS, the Governing Board of the South Florida Water management 
District deems it necessary, appropriate and in the public interest to authorize entering 
into a one-year agreement with the City of Naples for construction of the Lake Manor 
Restoration project, in an amount not to exceed $325,000, for which dedicated Big 
Cypress ad valorem funds are budgeted; providing an effective date. (Agreement 
Number 4600003151) 
  
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE 
SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT: 
 

Section 1. The Governing Board of the South Florida Water Management District 
hereby authorizes the execution of Agreement Number 4600003151 with 
the City of Naples. 

 

Section 2. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 
 

PASSED and ADOPTED this15th day of January, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
_________________________ 
District Clerk/Secretary 

SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT 
DISTRICT, BY ITS GOVERNING BOARD 
By: 
___________________________________ 

Chairman 
 
Legal form approved: 
By: 
___________________________________ 

Office of Counsel 
 
Print name: 
 
___________________________________ 
 

 

15

Packet Pg. 32



M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 
TO:  Governing Board Members 
 
FROM: Tom Teets, 
 
DATE:  January 15, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: C-111 Spreader Canal Western Project - Groundwater Monitoring and Analysis 
 
 
Summary 
The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) issued a Section 404 permit under the Clean Water 
Act for the C-111 Spreader Canal Western Project on October 14, 2009. Special Conditions 7 and 
9 of the permit require the District to conduct hydrometeorological monitoring as identified in the 
Project Monitoring Plan - Annex E of the January 2011 Final Integrated Project Implementation 
Report and Environmental Impact Statement (FPIR/EIS) and ensure that operation of project 
features do not adversely affect adjacent agricultural lands. The University of Florida Institute of 
Food and Agricultural Sciences (IFAS) is specifically designated as the organization to conduct 
this work by reference in the monitoring plan. This agreement provides for the continuation of one 
of the monitoring elements required by permit and described in Annex E of the FPIR/EIS.  
Specifically, IFAS will develop soil water retention curves and correlate soil moisture data to local 
groundwater levels and canal stages in areas east of the C-111 Spreader Canal Western Project. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
Staff recommends approval of this contract with IFAS. The work is required by permit, 
determines the effects of the project and addresses concerns from agricultural interests on project 
operations and local agricultural production. 
 
Core Mission and Strategic Priorities 
This project is managed under the Office of Everglades Policy and Coordination, and is included 
in the Comprehensive Everglades Restoration Plan Program. 
 
Funding Source 
This is a 3-year cooperative agreement in the amount of $381,874, of which $145,583 is budgeted 
in FY15, and the remainder is subject to Governing Board approval of the FY16 and FY17 
budgets. 
 
Staff Contact and/or Presenter 
Matt Morrison, Section Administrator, Office of Everglades Policy and Coordination, 
mjmorris@sfwmd.gov, (561) 682-6844 

16

Packet Pg. 33



SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

Resolution No. 2015 - 0104  

 

A Resolution of the governing Board of the South Florida Water 
Management District to authorize entering into a 3-year cooperative 
agreement with the University of Florida Institute of Food and 
Agricultural Sciences (IFAS) for the C-111 Spreader Canal Western 
Project Groundwater Monitoring and Analysis in the amount of 
$381,874, of which $145,583 are budgeted; and the remainder is 
subject to Governing Board approval of the FY16-17 budgets; 
providing an effective date.  

 
WHEREAS, the Governing Board of the South Florida Water Management District 

deems it necessary, appropriate and in the public interest to authorize entering into a 3-
year cooperative agreement with the University of Florida Institute of Food and 
Agricultural Sciences for C-111 Spreader Canal Western Project - Groundwater 
Monitoring, Modeling and Analysis in the amount of $381,874, of which $145,583 is 
budgeted, and the remainder is subject to Governing Board approval of the FY16-17 
budgets, providing an effective date; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE 
SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT: 
 
Section 1. The Governing Board of the South Florida Water Management District 

hereby authorizes the execution of Contract No. 4600003189. 
 
Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 
 
PASSED and ADOPTED this 15th day of January, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
_________________________ 
District Clerk/Secretary 

SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT 
DISTRICT, BY ITS GOVERNING BOARD 
By: 
___________________________________ 

Chairman 
 
Legal form approved: 
By: 
___________________________________ 

Office of Counsel 
 
Print name: 
 
___________________________________ 
 

 

16

Packet Pg. 34



M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 
TO:  Governing Board Members 
 
FROM: Doug Bergstrom, Director, Administrative Services Division 
 
DATE:  January 15, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: Recommendation to approve Financial Underwriting firms for COPS refunding 
 
 
Summary 
In an effort to reduce recurring annual debt service payments, the District has issued an RFP to 
update its financial underwriters listing; which puts the District in position to advance refund a 
portion or all of the outstanding Series 2006 COPs depending on market conditions.  These 
COPs were issued to provide for the lease-purchase financing of the acquisition, construction, 
installation and equipping of certain facilities and improvements to land for the restoration, 
protection and preservation of the Everglades ecosystem; primarily the expansion of STA 2, 
expansion of STA 5/6, and the construction of the EAA A-1 Flow Equalization Basin.  The 
selected financial underwriters will assist in the structuring and timing of fixed rate COP 
transactions.   
 
Staff Recommendation 
Staff recommends approval of this ranked list of underwriters.  
 
Additional Background 
The RFP goal is to select three large, national underwriting firms along with a total of four mid-
sized, regional and small firms.  The highest ranked firm in the national category will be 
designated as the senior manager.  The remaining firms will be designated as co-managers. It 
is expected that the selected firms will be utilized in these respective roles for the first advance 
refunding. In the event that the District chooses to issue multiple or a single large transaction, it 
reserves the right to rotate the position of senior manager underwriter among the two highest 
scoring national firms in the order of their ranking and also reserves the right to use additional 
national/large and mid-sized, regional and small firms as needed in rank order. 
 
Core Mission and Strategic Priorities 
As an infrequent issuer in the municipal bond marketplace, underwriting services are essential 
to the successful completion of these transactions. The underwriters will aid in educating 
investors, rating agencies and bond insurers on the District and its core functions as well as its 
solid track record of making semiannual debt service payments on current COPs.   
 
Funding Source 
The fees for underwriting services will be paid from the proceeds of the COPS refunding and is 
considered a standard cost of debt issuance.  
 
Staff Contact and/or Presenter 
Staff Contact: Lucie Weinberg, ext 2808 
Presenter: Doug Bergstrom, ext 6214 

17

Packet Pg. 35



SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

Resolution No. 2015 - 0105  

 

A Resolution of the Governing Board of the South Florida Water 
Management District approving the Underwriting Team for a period 
of five years for the purpose of marketing the Certificates of 
Participation (COPs) and other debt instruments to be issued in 
order to refund the current Certificates of Participation; providing an 
effective date. 
 

WHEREAS, the District requires the assistance of financial underwriters in order 

to prepare and market the COPs or other debt instruments;  

 

WHEREAS, the District engaged in a competitive process to select a team of 

underwriters to provide the services that are required by the District; and 

 

WHEREAS, a selection committee comprised of District staff members evaluated 

and scored proposals submitted to the District by underwriting firms interested in 

providing the services required by the District to refund current COPs and realize debt 

service savings; and 

 

WHEREAS, the team that was selected through this competitive process is 

reflected on Exhibit “A” to this resolution;  

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE 

SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT: 

 

Section 1. The Governing Board of the South Florida Water Management District 

hereby approves the financial underwriting team reflected on Exhibit “A” to this 

resolution.  

Section 2. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption.  

 

PASSED and ADOPTED this 15th day of January, 2015. 

 

17

Packet Pg. 36



 
 
 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
_________________________ 
District Clerk/Secretary 

SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT 
DISTRICT, BY ITS GOVERNING BOARD 
By: 
___________________________________ 

Chairman 
 
Legal form approved: 
By: 
___________________________________ 

Office of Counsel 
 
Print name: 
 
___________________________________ 
 

 

17

Packet Pg. 37



                EXHIBIT A

RFP NUMBER 6000000663
FINANCIAL UNDERWRITERS

LARGE/NATIONAL FIRMS
CitiGroup
Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Inc., DBA Bank of America Merrill Lynch
RBC Capital Markets, LLC
Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc.
J.P. Morgan Securities, Inc.
Goldman, Sachs & Co.
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.

MID-SIZED/SMALL FIRMS
Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Inc
Suntrust Robinson Humphrey, Inc.
Raymond James & Associates, Inc.
Loop Capital Markets, LLC
Rice Securities, LLC
Estrada Hinojosa & Company, Inc.
Blaylock Beal Van, LLC
Academy Securities, Inc.

17.a

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

xh
 A

 F
in

 U
n

d
er

  (
R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 N
o

. 2
01

5 
- 

01
05

  :
 R

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
 t

o
 a

p
p

ro
ve

 F
in

an
ci

al
 U

n
d

er
w

ri
ti

n
g

 f
ir

m
s 

fo
r 

C
O

P
S

 r
ef

u
n

d
in

g
)



M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 
TO:  Governing Board Members 
 
FROM: Doug Bergstrom, Director, Administrative Services Division 
 
DATE:  January 15, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: Information Technology Policy – Chapter 130 
 
 
Summary 
A minor revision to the Information Technology Policy was adopted in March 2012; however, the 
last comprehensive revision was in March 2008.  The policy must be revised to simplify the 
language while remaining applicable as information technology continuously evolves.  
Therefore, the seventeen page policy was reduced to two pages addressing the administration, 
responsibilities, and appropriate use for all Information Technology resources. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
Staff recommends approving the new Information Technology Policy to explain the 
administration, responsibility, and appropriate use regarding all District Information Technology 
resources. 
 
Additional Background  
The objectives of this policy are to:  

1. Define authorities, responsibilities, and accountabilities for the use of information 
technology resources.  

2. Maximize productivity and prevent risks to network security and performance.  

3. Protect the security of the District’s information and certain confidential information.  

4. Ensure compliance with information and technology-related laws, policies and 
procedures.    

5. Protect against unauthorized access to, use, or sharing of, systems or information 
 

Core Mission and Strategic Priorities 
Information Technology resources are used to implement and support the District’s core mission 
and strategic priorities. 
 
Funding Source 
Not applicable.  There is no cost associated with this policy change. 
 
Staff Contact and/or Presenter 
Doug Bergstrom ext. 6214 or Duane Piper ext. 2638 

18

Packet Pg. 39



SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

Resolution No. 2015 - 0106  

 

A Resolution of the Governing Board of the South Florida Water 
Management District approving the update to Chapter 130 of the 
District Policies Code, reducing the seventeen page policy to two 
pages, addressing the administration, responsibilities, and 
appropriate use for all Information Technology resources; providing 
an effective date.  

 

WHEREAS, the Governing Board of the South Florida Water Management 
District deems it necessary, appropriate, and in the public interest to approve the update 
to Chapter 130 of the District Policies Code, reducing the seventeen page policy to two 
pages, addressing the administration, responsibilities, and appropriate use for all 
Information Technology resources. 
  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE 
SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT: 
 

Section 1. The Governing Board adopts the following revision to Section 130 of the 
District Policies Code: 

 

CHAPTER 130 - INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY POLICY 
Sec. 130-1   Scope 
Sec. 130-2   Objectives  

Sec. 130-3   Policy  

Sec. 130-4   Responsibilities  

Sec. 130-5   Violations  

  
SEC. 130-1   SCOPE 

South Florida Water Management District hereinafter referred to as “SFWMD” or “District” Information 
Technology “IT” policy deals with the District’s administration of its IT resources, describes the 
responsibilities of all users of District IT resources, and identifies prohibited behavior and uses of IT 
resources.  The prohibited uses identified are illustrative, not exhaustive, and the District reserves the 
right to discipline employees for improper use of resources not specifically enumerated in this policy.  This 
policy applies to the District’s Information Technology Resources (IT Resources) and all employees and 
other parties using District IT resources.    

SEC. 130-2   OBJECTIVES 

The objectives of this policy are to:  

1. Define authorities, responsibilities, and accountabilities for the use of information technology 
resources.  

2. Maximize productivity and prevent risks to network security and performance.  

3. Protect the security of the District’s information and certain confidential information.  

4. Ensure compliance with information and technology-related laws, policies and procedures.    

5. Protect against unauthorized access to, use, or sharing of, systems or information. 

SEC. 130-3   POLICY 

To achieve these objectives, the District adheres to the following principles and users of IT resources are 
expected to follow them:   

18

Packet Pg. 40



1. The District relies on best practices, policies, and procedures to ensure IT services are delivered 
effectively. 

2. The District will maximize the synergies of system security, physical asset protection, privacy, 
business continuity planning, and records management. 

3. The District will obtain and operate IT resources in a cost efficient manner.   

4. The District maintains its IT resources for the primary purpose of conducting public business and 
users of District IT resources have no right to privacy when using them. 

5. The District in its sole discretion may block any and all access to individuals, systems, and web 
sites without notice. 

SEC. 130-4   RESPONSIBILITIES  

1. Employees and other users of District IT resources shall comply with all of the District's Policies 
and Procedures and shall make a conscientious effort to keep informed of changes as they occur.  
The Executive Director is responsible for ensuring compliance with this policy and has directed 
Information Technology staff to oversee the information technology cycle to locate, foster, and 
monitor key issues, opportunities, and investments in all information technology infrastructure, 
systems, and services.  The Executive Director shall designate staff to administer and manage 
this policy including, but not limited to designing and implementing procedures and other 
materials.  The Governing Board is responsible for ensuring compliance with this policy by the 
Executive Director and the Inspector General. 

2. Users of IT resources shall ensure that: 

a. IT resources are operated in a manner that reasonably minimizes the threat of internal or 
external compromises to the security, confidentiality, or integrity of SFWMD systems 
information; 

 

b. IT resources are protected by strong passwords;  

c. passwords are protected in a responsible fashion;  

d. IT resources are used primarily to conduct District business; 

e. at all times they use IT resources in a responsible, efficient, professional, and ethical 
manner in compliance with all laws and District policies and procedures. 

f. Employees whose job requires them to dispense, receive, and store confidential 
information, and personally identifiable information (PII), must take necessary actions to 
prevent it from disclosure, modification, destruction, and unauthorized access, whether 
accidental or intentional.   

3. Users of District IT resources must not:  
a. interfere with the intended use of information technology resources; 

b. seek to gain unauthorized access to information technology resources; 

c. destroy, alter, dismantle, disfigure, prevent rightful access to, or otherwise interfere with 
the integrity of information and/or information resources; 

d. infringe upon intellectual property protected by copyright, patent, license or other 
contract; 

e. violate any laws, including Florida laws regarding Government in the Sunshine and Public 
Records; 

f. use IT resources for private commercial purposes, financial gain, the promotion of “for 
profit” or privately owned businesses, except for limited use allowed through the 
Employee Bulletin Board;   

g. use IT resources in a manner that interferes with or disrupts network users, services or 
equipment including distributing unsolicited advertising, propagating computer worms or 
viruses, and using the network to make unauthorized entry to other computational, 
information, or communication devices or resources; 

h. communicate or act under the guise, name, identification, email address, signature, or 

18

Packet Pg. 41



indicia of another person without proper authorization; 

i. use IT resources in any manner that could damage, disable, overburden, or impair any 
equipment or place the District at risk or loss; 

j. use IT resources to reproduce or distribute copyrighted or patented materials regardless 
of whether the materials are licensed to the District as District property.  Exceptions must 
be approved by Information Technology Management;  

k. circumvent data protection schemes or uncover security loopholes; 

l. buy, procure, or contractually bind the District for any IT resources, systems, or services 
without the approval of IT Management; or 

m. access, store, possess, download, view, or otherwise communicate inappropriate 
material in any form.  Inappropriate material includes, but is not limited to, material that is 
sexual, pornographic, harassing, debasing, intimidating, racist, sexist, or disrespectful 
based on race, color, religion, sex, age, pregnancy, disability, marital status, sexual 
orientation, or other status protected by law. 

4. Users of IT resources may undertake the following activities under the conditions described: 

a. Users of District IT resources may use them for limited personal use, provided the use 1) 
is lawful, and 2) does not negatively impact upon the user’s work performance, hinder the 
work of other users, burden the District with incremental costs, or damage the reputation, 
image, or operations of the District.  The District accepts no responsibility for loss or 
damage arising from personal use of the District's IT Resources. 

b. Employees and other users of IT resources may access IT resources with their 
personally owned device, as long as they remain in continuous compliance with all laws 
and this policy. 

SEC. 130-5   VIOLATIONS  

Employees may be subject to disciplinary action up to and including separation from employment for 
violating this policy. 

 

Chapter 130 - INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

 ARTICLE I. - IN GENERAL 

 Sec. 130-1. - Definitions. 
 Secs. 130-2-130-20. - Reserved. 
 ARTICLE II. - ACCEPTABLE USE OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND 

TELECOMMUNICATIONS 

 Sec. 130-21. - Scope. 
 Sec. 130-22. - Objectives. 
 Sec. 130-23. - Statements of Policy. 
 Sec. 130-24. - Policy Violations. 
 Sec. 130-25. - Responsibilities. 
 Sec. 130-26. - Reserved. 
 Secs. 130-27-130-40. - Reserved. 
 ARTICLE III. - RESERVED 

 Secs. 130-41-130-60. - Reserved. 
 ARTICLE IV. - INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY AND WORKS-MADE-FOR-HIRE 

 Sec. 130-61. - Scope. 
 Sec. 130-62. - Objectives. 
 Sec. 130-63. - Introduction. 

18

Packet Pg. 42



 Sec. 130-64. - Statements of Policy. 
 Sec. 130-65. - Compliance. 
 Sec. 130-66. - Policy Violations and Enforcement. 
 Sec. 130-67. - Responsibilities. 
 Secs. 130-68-130-80. - Reserved. 
 ARTICLE V. - SECURITY 

 Sec. 130-81. - Scope. 
 Sec. 130-82. - Objective. 
 Sec. 130-83. - Statement of Policy. 
 Sec. 130-84. - Responsibilities. 
 Sec. 130-85. - Policy Violations. 
 Sec. 130-86. - Reserved. 
 Secs. 130-87-130-100. - Reserved. 
 ARTICLE VI. - REMOTE ACCESS 

 Sec. 130-101. - Scope. 
 Sec. 130-102. - Objective. 
 Sec. 130-103. - Statement of Policy. 
 Sec. 130-104. - Responsibilities. 
 Sec. 130-105. - Policy Violations. 

Chapter 130 - INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY  
FOOTNOTE(S): 

--- (1) ---  

Cross reference- Technology procedures, ch. 230. (Back) 
ARTICLE I. - IN GENERAL  
 
Sec. 130-1. - Definitions.  

For the purpose of this chapter, the following words and terms shall have the meanings respectively 
ascribed:  

Analog means a voice transmission mode that is not digital in which information is transmitted in its 
original form by converting it to a continuously variable electrical signal.  

Asset means a resource or item with a purchase value of $1,000 or greater.  

Authentication means a function controlling access and transactions between computer systems to 
validate information or the identities of users, terminals, computers, and peripheral devices.  

Authorized Access means approved permission to approach, view, communicate with, store data in, 
retrieve data from, or otherwise make use of IT resources.  

Backup means files copied from the hard disk to another destination, such as floppy disks or 
magnetic tape, for the purposes of recovery, safekeeping, archiving or data transfer.  

Cable Modem is an external device that provides connectivity via a cable connection. Instead of 
establishing an Internet connection through a telephone wire, a connection is established through a cable 
network (the same source as your cable TV connection). Cable modems translate radio frequency (RF) 
signals to and from the cable plant into Internet Protocol (IP), the communications protocol spoken by all 
computers connected to the Internet.  

Challenge Handshake Authentication Protocol (CHAP) is an authentication method that uses a one-
way hashing function.  

Computing Resources means all computing equipment, stationary or mobile, used to create data or 
access data stored in databases or files, including hardware and software.  

18

Packet Pg. 43



Confidential Information means data, documents or any other material maintained by the District that 
is exempt from disclosure under state and, in some instances, federal law.  

Copy, in terms of information technology systems and resources, may mean a duplicate instance of 
software files or data or the result of transferring or duplicating software files or data from one medium to 
another.  

Copyright means an exclusive right to an original work set in a tangible, reproducible medium or 
expression.  

Daemon is a process lurking in the background, usually unnoticed, until something triggers it into 
action.  

Data Link Connection Identifier (DLCI) is a unique number assigned to a Permanent Virtual Circuit 
(PVC) end point in a frame relay network. DLCI identifies a particular PVC endpoint within a user's access 
channel in a frame relay network, and has local significance only to that channel.  

Dial-in Modem is a peripheral device that connects computers to each other for sending 
communications via the telephone lines. The modem modulates the digital data of computers into analog 
signals to send over the telephone lines, then demodulates back into digital signals to be read by the 
computer on the other end; thus the name "modem" for modulator/demodulator.  

Digital Subscriber Line (DSL) is a form of high-speed Internet access competing with cable modems. 
DSL works over standard phone lines and supports data speeds of over two Mbps downstream (to the 
user) and slower speeds upstream (to the Internet).  

Direct Inward Dial (DID) is an analog circuit intended for use with voice or data. DID circuits allow 
inward directed calls to reach a specific extension without human intervention.  

Direct Outward Dial (DOD) is an analog circuit intended for use with voice or data. DOD circuits 
enable the extension users to dial directly outside the system without human intervention.  

Download means to transfer data or programs from a central computer to a peripheral computer or 
device.  

Dual Homing means having concurrent connectivity to more than one network from a computer or 
network device.  

E-mail means electronic mail, electronic messages or information sent through the District 
information technology network or over the Internet to specified addressees.  

Encryption means the conversion of clear data and data files into enciphered (concealed meaning) 
data.  

End User/User Group means the person or group for whom a hardware or software product is 
designed or designated for use.  

Firewall means a set of related programs located at a network gateway server that protect the 
resources of a private network from users of other networks. District users may access the wider Internet 
while the firewall prevents external access to the District's intranet, the IWEB.  

Frame Relay is a method of communication that incrementally can go from the speed of an ISDN to 
the speed of a T1 line. Frame Relay has a flat-rate billing charge instead of a per time usage. Frame 
Relay connects via the telephone company's network.  

Hardware means the physical inventory of IT resources.  

Inappropriate Content is a subject matter in written or graphical form that can be construed as 
harassing or intimidating, debasing, defamatory, discriminatory, racist or racially motivated, threatening or 
derogatory in nature, including but not limited to such topics as race, sex, sexual orientation, age, religion, 
politics, national origin, disability or any other legally protected status.  

Infrastructure also means IT infrastructure, which is the data communication networks connectivity 
software, and hardware, database systems, computing platforms, application development tools, security 

18

Packet Pg. 44



hardware and software, and other components that support the District's technology systems and the 
services that support and are supported by these systems and tools, including: Client Services (Help 
desk/Service Requests, Planning and Administration, Geographic Information Systems, Web Support, 
Management Information Support, Technical Support, Network Systems, and Systems Administration.  

Intellectual Property can be divided into four categories:  

(1) Copyrights; 

(2) Trademarks; 

(3) Trade secrets; 

(4) Patents. 

Integrated Services Digital Network (ISDN) is a wide area network (WAN) oriented data 
communication service provided by telephone companies. ISDN is unique among WAN services in that it 
provides access both to the circuit switched public switched telephone network and to packet switched 
services, such as X.25 and frame relay. ISDN utilizes digital local facilities and provides out-of-band 
signaling capabilities.  

Internet Service Provider (ISP) is a company that provides Internet access to individuals, 
organizations and businesses.  

IPSec VPN is a method of access that requires the use of client side application to negotiate and set 
up the secure virtual network connection between two end points; commonly referred to by just VPN.  

IT Infrastructure means the information resources and facilities needed for the function of District 
technology systems.  

IT Resources means the systems or supporting infrastructures relating to or used by information 
technology equipment, including telecommunication devices, telecommunication services, equipment or 
interconnected systems used in the development, automatic acquisition, storage, display, manipulation, 
management, transmission or reception of data.  

Note: Usage of some IT resources or telecommunication devices, although not owned by the District, 
may also be governed by this policy (e.g., any device utilizing the District telecommunications 
infrastructure).  

Logical Security means restricted electronic access to computers, networks, software and/or 
peripheral equipment. Also: The capability for the prevention of electronic access to computers, networks, 
software and/or peripheral equipment.  

Maintenance means an activity providing for the operational upkeep of District systems and services.  

Meta Data means information about data-the underlying facts or description of the data itself.  

Pager means a wireless messaging unit.  

Private Branch Exchange (PBX) is a private telephone network used within an enterprise. Users of 
the PBX share a certain number of outside lines for making telephone calls external to the PBX.  

Production Systems means the computer, network, telephone and voicemail systems; IT 
applications, server, database, microwave, radio, and network environments; and any other information 
resources supporting the real-time performance and operations of the communications infrastructure.  

Public Records Request means requests for documents that are subject to Public Records Law, 
Chapter 119, Florida Statutes.  

Reasonable Incidental Use means infrequent and brief personal connection and use of a District 
resource.  

Remote Access means any access to the District's corporate network through a remote connection 
medium that establishes communications between the remote device and a District IT resource.  

Resource means any HTML document or other item or service available via the web. Resources are 

18

Packet Pg. 45



what URLs point to.  

Secure Socket Layer Virtual Private Network (SSL VPN) is a secure method of remote access that 
leverages the use of a common Web browser to gain access or connectivity to the District's network.  

Software means computer programs and applications existing as data files on a computer hard drive 
or network and their peripheral accessory files.  

Software License means a license agreement governing the authorized use of software, including 
but not limited to: individual (single copy) licenses, shareware, freeware, bulletin board or demonstration 
software licenses, which may be available in the public domain, software upgrades, and font licenses.  

Split-tunneling is simultaneous direct access to a non-District network (such as the Internet, or a 
home network) from a remote device (PC, PDA, WAP phone, etc.) while connected into the District's 
corporate network via a VPN tunnel.  

Telecommunication Devices means telephony (receiver) sets, wireless telephones, pages, radios, 
personal communication devices (e.g., personal digital assistants), laptops/PCs, video conferencing 
devices, facsimile machines, etc., with on-site or remote access to District telecommunications systems 
and data.  

Telecommunication Services means wireless phone service carriers, LAN/WAN equipment and 
facilities, voice (telephone) service carriers (local and long distance), microwave network equipment and 
facilities, computer data, etc.  

Telnet is client software that allows a user to login from a local desktop computer to a remote server 
and use its resources, providing the remote server is running a Telnet daemon.  

Token is an object that represents something else, such as another object (either physical or virtual). 
A security token is a logical or physical entity, such as a special smart card, that together with something 
that a user knows, such as a PIN, will enable authorized access to a computer system or network. 
Currently, SFWMD uses Defender tokens for remote access authentication.  

Users means District employees, the Governing Board, temporary staff and contractors engaged to 
conduct business on the District's behalf, and in some cases, the general public, using or accessing 
District IT resources.  

Virtual Card (V-Card) means a virtual business card, also referred to as a "signature file" attached to 
electronic mail messages to supply detailed information about the message sender. V-Cards may include 
the sender's name, organizational affiliation, title, phone number, e-mail address and other pertinent 
contact information. They are available as a feature of Microsoft Outlook as "personal cards".  

Virtual Private Network (VPN) is a private connection between two systems or two groups of systems 
that sends private data traffic over a shared or public network, like the Internet.  

Wireless Telephone means a mobile, wireless telephone.  

Work Products means all results of work performed, including documents, technical reports, 
research notes, scientific data, computer and source and object code, processes, designs, formulae, 
techniques, work in progress, etc., in draft and final form.  

Works-Made-For-Hire means work products resulting from the obligation of employment or 
requirements under a contract or agreement to perform work.  

(R.M. No. 61; Res. No. 2008-328, 3-13-2008)  

Cross reference- Definitions and rules of construction, § 100-2.  

Secs. 130-2-130-20. - Reserved.  
ARTICLE II. - ACCEPTABLE USE OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND TELECOMMUNICATIONS  
 

Sec. 130-21. - Scope.  
This article applies to the acceptable use of South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD or 

District) information technology and telecommunication devices and services. These devices and services 

18

Packet Pg. 46



can be either provided or owned by the District or be specific devices and services not owned by SFWMD 
but being utilized by District users accessing District data or files.  

(R.M. No. 202; Res. No. 2008-328, 3-13-2008)  

Sec. 130-22. - Objectives.  
The objectives of this article are to ensure that:  

(1) The District's information technology and telecommunication devices are utilized in an 
acceptable, efficient and effective manner.  

(2) Users are informed about the applicability of policies and laws pertaining to information 
technology and telecommunication device utilization.  

(3) Managers review utilization to ensure compliance with those policies and laws enforce effective 
usage controls.  

(4) District information technology and telecommunication devices are utilized incurring minimal 
cost to the District.  

(5) Users of District IT resources have no right to privacy or expectation of privacy when using 
District IT resources, and the institution or utilization of passwords or encryption or deletion 
functions to protect or limit access to use of District IT resources is not a guarantee of past, 
present or future confidentiality or privacy. The District may monitor, inspect, review, search, 
remove, or otherwise alter any information communicated or stored using District IT resources 
at any time and without notice. In addition, all communications are subject to the public records 
laws.  

(R.M. No. 202; Res. No. 2004-845, 8-11-2004; Res. No. 2008-328, 3-13-2008)  

Sec. 130-23. - Statements of Policy.  
The District considers IT resources to be District resources. It shall be the policy of the District to 

maintain these corporate resources in a consistent, predictable, and reliable manner to serve the District 
as business communications tools. All users of these IT resources are expected to conduct themselves in 
a responsible, efficient, professional, ethical manner and in accordance with District policies and 
procedures, as well as federal, state and local laws.  

(1) Acceptable Use: District IT resources are the property of the District. They are provided to 
facilitate communications required to accomplish official District business and as a result should 
be used primarily for the purposes of conducting bona fide District business; however the 
District will permit reasonable incidental use of these resources. Reasonable incidental use is 
infrequent and brief personal connection and use of a District resource. No employee shall 
cause the District to incur costs for incidental personal use. Incidental personal use shall not 
interfere or otherwise conflict with District employee's job performance.  

(2) Prohibited Use of IT Resources: The following is not an all-inclusive list of prohibited behavior, 
and management reserves the right to discipline employees for improper use of District IT 
resources even if the prohibited acts are not enumerated in this policy. District staff is prohibited 
from using IT resources for inappropriate activities, which include but are not limited to unlawful 
activities, political activities, or misrepresentation of identity. Staff is also prohibited from using 
District IT resources for commercial purposes which do not fall under the auspices of the District 
which includes but is not limited to personal financial gain, the promotion of "for profit" and/or 
privately owned businesses or the sale of private property. District staff shall not use IT 
resources to gain unauthorized access to non-District-owned systems or resources or to modify 
IT resources without proper IT Bureau authorization. District full time and contract staff are 
prohibited from permitting the unauthorized access or modification of IT resources by a non-
District employee.  

(a) District staff is prohibited from using IT resources to store, possess, view, produce, 
reproduce, download, print, distribute or otherwise communicate inappropriate material in 
written, graphic, audio, or any other medium. Inappropriate material includes, but is not 
limited to, material that is sexual, pornographic, harassing, debasing, intimidating, racist, 

18

Packet Pg. 47



sexist, or disrespectful based on race, color, religion, sex, age, pregnancy, disability, 
marital status, sexual orientation or other status protected by law.  

(b) District staff is prohibited from using IT resources to reproduce or distribute copyrighted or 
patented materials whether the materials are licensed to the District as District property or 
not. The exception to this prohibition is for District personnel directly responsible for 
installing, copying, or distributing licensed computer software. Approval to reproduce or 
distribute non-District licensed materials must be obtained from the IT Bureau. Approval to 
reproduce or distribute such material will also require written authorization from the owner 
of the intellectual property.  

(c) District staff is prohibited from using IT resources to download or install non-District-
approved software, programs, executables, scripts or electronic files for District or non-
District (personal) use. Such programs include but are not limited to freeware, shareware, 
demonstration software, bulletin board software and other open-license software available 
in the public domain; banking software, games, digital media (such as music files, 
MP3/MP4 files, video files, etc.). Staff is also prohibited from loading, downloading or 
viewing streaming media (including but not limited to radio, video and TV streams, etc.), for 
non-District/personal use. IT resources shall not be used to install or configure wireless 
access points, peer-to-peer ports, instant messaging services, Internet Service Provider 
and/or e-mail client software (such as for personal e-mail accounts, or for similar 
purposes). IT resources shall not be used to configure District-standard utilities or 
applications for personal use or to access or participate in internet relay chat (IRC) or chat 
room forums. District staff exempt from this prohibition must receive authorization from the 
Executive Director.  

(d) District staff is prohibited from using IT resources to use or implement any computing 
software, program or utility designed to circumvent or gain unauthorized access to systems 
or accounts or passwords. District staff shall not scan for inventory ports, create, break into 
or deconstruct electronic viruses nor infiltrate or violate normal system services or 
functions for any purpose (malicious or otherwise). This prohibition includes but is not 
limited to peer to peer software, port scanners, network sniffers, password crackers, 
hacker tools/virus creation tools, keyloggers, and keylogger removal tools.  

(e) District staff is prohibited from using IT resources for producing, reproducing, propagating, 
downloading, distributing, circulating or otherwise communicating unacceptable 
correspondence, which includes but is not limited to, non-business related electronic 
correspondence such as junk mail, SPAM, pyramid mail, chain mail, letter bombs, or denial 
of service attacks.  

(f) District staff is prohibited from using IT resources for any other use that violates the 
District's Standards of Conduct Policy or other District policies or procedures or in any 
manner which may interfere with the user's employment, another employees's employment 
or other District or business obligations.  

(g) Only District staff who are frequently at locations apart from their normal duty stations or at 
duty stations that do not have IT network connections may receive District-owned remote-
access IT resources (such as wireless telephones, PDAs, or portable computers, etc.) on 
an ongoing basis.  

(h) Only IT resources sanctioned or authorized by the IT Bureau should be used to access the 
telecommunications infrastructure and the District's data.  

(i) District staff is prohibited from storing information in a foreign language with information 
only being stored in English.  

(j) District staff is prohibited from using personal devices to store, or transfer District data.  

Prohibited uses of IT resources, as described in this policy are for illustrative purposes only. Not 
all prohibited activities have been identified and described in this policy. District management 
reserves the right to determine that behavior not explicitly proscribed or prohibited herein, may 

18

Packet Pg. 48



in fact be an unacceptable use of IT resources.  

(3) Cost Effectiveness: Users shall choose the most cost-effective IT resources available at the 
time, including toll-free or local access numbers, whenever possible.  

(4) Transmission of Confidential Information: The District is proactive in its obligations related to the 
public access of information governed by Public Records Laws. Users are reminded that almost 
all information transmitted using District IT resources is public record. Confidential information 
(e.g., passwords, security measures, etc.) or other protected information should not be 
communicated using telecommunication devices, and users are reminded to comply with the 
District's Information Technology Security Policy in this regard.  

(5) Ownership and Audit of IT Resources, Records or Files: All data, voice messages or multi-
media files created or transmitted while using District IT resources remain the property of the 
District. As such, all e-mail and voicemail messages created, transmitted or received using 
District IT resources are and remain the property of the District. By using District IT resources, 
users have no right of privacy or expectation of privacy in electronic and stored communications 
(including e-mail and voicemail) and thereby consent to monitoring. The District may monitor, 
inspect, review, search, remove, or otherwise alter any information communicated or stored 
using District IT resources at any time and without notice. In addition, all communications shall 
be subject to the public records laws.  

(R.M. No. 202; Res. No. 2004-845, 8-11-2004; Res. No. 2008-328, 3-13-2008; Res. No. 2012-306, § 
1(Exh. A), 3-15-2012)  

Sec. 130-24. - Policy Violations.  
Employees may be subject to disciplinary action up to and including separation from employment for 

violating this policy or any other District policy or procedure.  

(R.M. No. 202; Res. No. 2004-845, 8-11-2004; Res. No. 2008-328, 3-13-2008)  

Sec. 130-25. - Responsibilities.  
The Executive Director is charged with the overall responsibility for ensuring compliance with this 

policy.  

(R.M. No. 202; Res. No. 2008-328, 3-13-2008; Res. No. 2012-306, § 1(Exh. A), 3-15-2012)  

Sec. 130-26. - Reserved.  

Editor's note-  

Res. No. 2012-306, § 1(Exh. A), adopted March 15, 2012, repealed § 130-26 which pertained to policy 
administration guidelines and derived from R.M. No. 202 and Res. No. 2008-328, adopted March 13, 
2008.  

Secs. 130-27-130-40. - Reserved.  
ARTICLE III. - RESERVED  
 

FOOTNOTE(S): 

--- (2) ---  

Editor's note- Res. No. 2008-328, adopted March 13, 2008, repealed art. III, §§ 130-41-130-47, which 
pertained to electronic mail (e-mail) and derived from R.M. No. 37.  

Secs. 130-41-130-60. - Reserved.  
ARTICLE IV. - INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY AND WORKS-MADE-FOR-HIRE  
 

Sec. 130-61. - Scope.  
This article applies to all South Florida Water Management District personnel and contracted workers 

regarding the intellectual property of the District and works made for hire on the District's behalf.  

(R.M. No. 41)  

18

Packet Pg. 49



Sec. 130-62. - Objectives.  
The objectives of this policy are to ensure that:  

(1) The ownership of intellectual property and works made for hire is clearly established; 

(2) Contracted workers understand their responsibilities regarding the final disposition of intellectual 
property and works made for hire developed on the District's behalf; and  

(3) District personnel understand their obligations regarding the proper distribution of copyrighted 
materials and other intellectual property not owned by the District.  

(R.M. No. 41)  

Sec. 130-63. - Introduction.  
The ownership and dissemination of intellectual property, work products and works-made-for-hire is 

one of the most highly disputed and controversial topics in the information technology industry. The right 
to copy, distribute or sell information or work products is not clear until ownership is ascertained. 
Unfortunately, the ownership of intellectual property and works-made-for-hire is often dependent upon a 
variety of factors unless it is established before the work product is developed.  

(R.M. No. 41)  

Sec. 130-64. - Statements of Policy.  
(a) Ownership: All work products, works-made-for-hire and/or intellectual property created or developed 

by District workers in connection with and within the scope of their employment or contractual 
obligations to the District are the property of the District. Unless stated otherwise in writing, the 
District shall retain exclusive title, copyright and other proprietary rights in all such work products, 
including but not limited to:  

(1) All work products, works-made-for-hire and/or intellectual property created on District premises 
utilizing District IT resources.  

(2) All work products, works-made-for-hire and/or intellectual property created or developed by 
District workers in addition to their obligations to the District at the request of the District.  

(3) All work products, works-made-for-hire and/or intellectual property resulting from the activities of 
District workers for which they are paid by the District.  

(4) All intellectual property, work products and works-made-for-hire that are offered to the District 
voluntarily.  

(b) Reproduction and Distribution:  

(1) Work products, intellectual property and works-made-for-hire owned by the District may only be 
reproduced or distributed as authorized to fulfill District business activities or obligations.  

(2) Copyrighted and patented materials that are not the property of the District may not be 
reproduced or distributed without written authorization from the owner of the rights thereto and 
in accordance with local, state and federal laws.  

(c) Additional Compensation: The District is not obligated to provide additional compensation for 
intellectual property, work products and works-made-for-hire that are offered to the District 
voluntarily, including ideas or suggestions that are used by the District.  

(d) Deconstructing and Copying Source Codes. Under no circumstances shall users be permitted to 
"reverse engineer" or deconstruct a proprietary software package for which the District does not own 
the intellectual property rights for the purpose of copying source code. Applications developed from 
proprietary software packages may not employ a reverse-engineering approach. Such actions will be 
held in violation of the provisions of the District's intellectual property and works-made-for-hire policy 
and federal law.  

(R.M. No. 41)  

Sec. 130-65. - Compliance.  

18

Packet Pg. 50



(a) Acknowledgement of Responsibility: District workers who are not District employees will be informed 
of the District's intellectual property and works-made-for-hire policy and will be required to sign an 
acknowledgement of responsibility and ownership thereto prior to commencing work for the District.  

(b) Licensed Use: Strict compliance with intellectual property rights is required in all cases where the 
District obtains a license for the use of intellectual property or copyrighted materials (e.g., computer 
software, training programs, etc.). Licensed materials should not be duplicated or distributed unless 
specifically authorized by the respective license agreement.  

(R.M. No. 41)  

Sec. 130-66. - Policy Violations and Enforcement.  
All violations of information systems policies, standards and procedures will be reviewed for 

appropriate disciplinary and/or corrective action. Violations will be handled in accordance with the 
guidelines and procedures established in the District's Standards of Conduct and Corrective Action 
Policy.  

(R.M. No. 41)  

Sec. 130-67. - Responsibilities.  
(a) The Executive Director is charged with the overall responsibility for ensuring compliance with this 

policy.  

(b) District workers are responsible for compliance to this and other District policies and federal, state 
and local laws.  

(c) Contractors and contracted employees performing work on the District's behalf are responsible to 
assist the District in its compliance with bona fide public records requests or to effect compliance 
with public records law or the Government-in-the-Sunshine Law, as directed by the District.  

(R.M. No. 41; Res. No. 2012-306, § 1(Exh. A), 3-15-2012)  

Secs. 130-68-130-80. - Reserved.  
ARTICLE V. - SECURITY  
 

Sec. 130-81. - Scope.  
This policy is designed to address the physical and logical security requirements of all information 

technology (IT) systems and related resources of the South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD 
or District). These resources can be either provided or owned by the District or be specific devices and 
services not owned by SFWMD but being utilized to access the District's information technology 
infrastructure.  

(Res. No. 2008-328, 3-13-2008)  

Sec. 130-82. - Objective.  
The objectives of this policy are to ensure that:  

(1) District personnel and contract workers appropriately recognize why, when and how to 
implement information technology security measures; and,  

(2) District personnel and contract workers understand information technology security from the 
perspectives of:  

(a) Physical Harm. Preventing damage to information technology resources;  

(b) Integrity. Safeguarding against the corruption of District data and services; and  

(c) Confidentiality. Defending against inadvertent or unauthorized disclosure or alteration of 
information legally exempt from public records.  

District personnel and contract workers have no right to privacy or expectation of privacy when using 
District IT resources. Additionally, the institution or utilization of passwords or encryption or deletion 
functions to protect or limit access to District IT resources is not a guarantee of past, present or future 
confidentiality or privacy. The District may monitor, inspect, review, search, remove, or otherwise alter any 

18

Packet Pg. 51



information communicated or stored using District IT resources at any time and without notice. In addition, 
all communications are subject to the public records laws.  

(Res. No. 2008-328, 3-13-2008)  

Sec. 130-83. - Statement of Policy.  
The District will implement security measures to protect District information and IT resources against 

accidental or unauthorized modification, destruction, disclosure, or loss. Security measures will also be 
used to protect District IT resources from fraudulent use or other criminal acts. Finally, security measures 
will be used to secure IT resources and information from natural disasters, such as fire and flood.  

(1) Acceptable Use: District IT resources are the property of the District. They are provided to 
facilitate communications required to accomplish official District business and as a result should 
be used primarily for the purposes of conducting bona fide District business; however the 
District will permit reasonable incidental use of these resources. Reasonable incidental use is 
infrequent and brief personal connection and use of a District resource. No employee shall 
cause the District to incur costs for incidental personal use. Incidental personal use shall not 
interfere or otherwise conflict with District employee's job performance. Incidental use is subject 
to all District policies, procedures and public record laws.  

2) Physical Security of Assets: Hardware and peripheral devices must be kept safe from physical 
harm including accidental damage, theft, abuse, or loss. The physical location of District IT 
resources (Hardware and other physical assets) must be adequately designed and constructed 
to restrict unauthorized access and use (theft, vandalism and sabotage, etc.), prevent damage 
due to environment factors (such as heat, moisture or electrical charge), or avoid accidental 
physical damage. Similarly, data reserved for long-term storage on diskettes or hard drives 
must be protected from loss due to magnetic fields or electrical pulses, in addition to preventing 
physical damage or loss.  

(3) Data Integrity: The logical security of District information and critical data files that are essential, 
sensitive or confidential will be safeguarded from unauthorized access, disclosure, modification 
or destruction, in addition to the following security measures:  

(a) Access and Authorizations. User accounts, passwords, permissions, access authorizations 
and appropriate levels of authority will be implemented wherever necessary to sufficiently 
restrict access to IT resources and data to authorized Users and equipment only. User 
accounts and access privileges will be reviewed periodically and upon a user's change in 
employment status (such as a promotion, change of job responsibilities or termination of 
employment, etc.) to ensure that the appropriate levels of access authorizations are still in 
effect.  

(b) Backups. To protect against the interruption of District operations and the loss or corruption 
of critical data, routine backups will be performed as often as necessary to capture copies 
of resident data, critical data files, software and computer applications (as appropriate) and 
other essential information for the purposes of complete recovery, if data are lost or 
destroyed. Employees may not disable these processes without proper authorization.  

(c) Virus Protection. Virus protection measures will be implemented, including the use of virus-
detection/correction software to identify viruses and clean infected files, and best practices 
security guidelines and procedures will be observed to prevent the infection and spread of 
computer viruses.  

(d) Encryption. Encryption shall be implemented whenever passwords, user IDs, permissions, 
etc., are transmitted for the purposes of authentication.  

(e) Power Supply. The data integrity of District's IT resources are dependent, in part, upon an 
adequate and uninterrupted supply of electricity. Protective equipment that ensures an 
interruption-resistant power supply shall be installed in all data center facilities and at all 
appropriate workstations to prevent voltage disturbances to computer and telephone 
servers and critical data files.  

18

Packet Pg. 52



(f) Change Control Management. The District's change control policy and procedures will be 
observed as appropriate as a security measure to ensure that change has a minimum 
impact upon the integrity and availability of IT resources and data.  

(g) Validation of Data. In terms of volume, errors and omissions are the greatest cause of 
incorrect information processing. Administrators are responsible for ensuring that data is 
validated, and to verify that it comes from a source appropriate to its intended use.  

(h) Remote Access. No remote access technology or device is to be attached to District IT 
resources or the information technology systems infrastructure to gain remote access 
without the express authorization of the IT Bureau Chief or Chief IT Security Officer or their 
duly authorized delegates.  

(4) Confidential Information: Users are reminded that information transmitted using District IT 
resources is generally public record. There are some legal exemptions from public records 
requiring special security measures to protect the information from disclosure. One important 
example of such confidential information is the security measures used to safeguard District IT 
resources from unauthorized access, use or modification in order to maintain the integrity of 
critical data files or the physical safety of resources. This legally exempt information under 
public records laws should be kept confidential using appropriate security measures including in 
part:  

(a) Passwords, permissions, access/user IDs, transaction controls, firewall configurations, 
encryption, and extended authentication;  

(b) Observing the District's prohibition of transmitting legally exempt information via IT 
resources; and,  

(c) Nondisclosure. 

(5) Risk Analysis: A risk analysis shall be performed routinely to identify systems and resources 
that pose a risk to the continuation of District services and business processes.  

(6) Audits: Audits of information technology resources and services shall be conducted to assess 
the validity and timeliness of security measures in effect. The audits should take risk analyses 
into consideration as a standard against which the effectiveness of the District security program 
is measured. Systems or resources identified as high-risk areas should be a primary focus of 
security audits, and shall be the primary consideration of contingency and recovery plans. 
Where audits reveal ineffective or insufficient security controls, additional security measures 
shall be developed and implemented to reduce the risk to information technology systems and 
resources.  

(7) Contingency and Recovery Plans: All IT resources identified as critical to the continuity of 
District operations shall have a written and cost-effective contingency plan that will provide for 
the continuation of critical District functions in the event of service interruption. Recovery plans, 
including natural disaster and emergency management plans, will be implemented for the 
prompt and effective recovery of critical District data and services in the event of loss.  

(8) Appropriate Measures: The degree to which security and safeguards are implemented should 
be commensurate with the value of the asset, or the level of risk associated with the loss of data 
and/or the potential damage to information systems or resources. In all cases, the consequence 
of loss and/or damage should be the primary factor in determining appropriate security 
measures.  

(9) Training and Awareness: The District will implement a training program to ensure that all users 
accessing or modifying District IT resources are aware of the security requirements of the 
systems made available to them, and that users have been adequately trained to fulfill the 
expectations of the District's security policy, standards and procedures.  

(Res. No. 2008-328, 3-13-2008; Res. No. 2012-306, § 1(Exh. A), 3-15-2012)  

Sec. 130-84. - Responsibilities.  

18

Packet Pg. 53



The Executive Director is charged with the overall responsibility for ensuring compliance with this 
policy.  

(Res. No. 2008-328, 3-13-2008; Res. No. 2012-306, § 1(Exh. A), 3-15-2012)  

Sec. 130-85. - Policy Violations.  
Employees may be subject to disciplinary action up to and including separation from employment for 

violating this policy or any other District policy or procedure.  

(Res. No. 2008-328, 3-13-2008)  

Sec. 130-86. - Reserved.  

Editor's note-  

Res. No. 2012-306, § 1(Exh. A), adopted March 15, 2012, repealed § 130-86 which pertained to policy 
administration and derived from Res. No. 2008-328, adopted March 13, 2008.  

Secs. 130-87-130-100. - Reserved.  
ARTICLE VI. - REMOTE ACCESS  
 

Sec. 130-101. - Scope.  
This policy defines the requirements and methods available to remotely access South Florida Water 

Management District (District) networks and information systems, and the intranet. Compliance and 
enforcement of this policy will prevent unauthorized access to District data stores while mitigating the 
introduction of malicious code into District information technology (IT) resources.  

This policy applies to all District employees, contractors, vendors and agents with a District-owned or 
personally-owned computer or workstation used to connect to the District's network. This policy applies to 
remote access connections used to do work on behalf of the District, including reading or sending email, 
accessing files, running applications and viewing intranet web resources.  

Remote access implementations that are covered by this policy include, but are not limited to, frame 
relay, ISDN, DSL, VPN, SSH, and cable modems, etc.  

(Res. No. 2008-328, 3-13-2008)  

Sec. 130-102. - Objective.  
The objective of this policy is to define standards for connecting to the District's network from any 

remote host. These standards are designed to minimize the potential exposure to District from damages 
which may result from unauthorized use or access to District computer resources. Damages include the 
loss of sensitive or company confidential data, intellectual property, damage to public image, damage to 
critical District data repositories or compromise of the flood control system.  

Remote Access Users have no right to privacy when using District IT resources. Additionally, the 
institution or utilization of passwords or encryption or deletion functions to protect or limit access to District 
IT resources is not a guarantee of past, present or future confidentiality or privacy. The District may 
monitor, inspect, review, search, remove, or otherwise alter any information communicated or stored 
using District IT resources at any time and without notice. In addition, all communications are subject to 
the public records laws.  

(Res. No. 2008-328, 3-13-2008)  

Sec. 130-103. - Statement of Policy.  
The District will allow remote access to District networks and systems for employees and authorized 

third parties working from external locations to reduce travel cost, increase productivity, and provide for 
optimal use of District networks and systems. Security measures will be implemented to protect District 
information and IT resources against accidental or unauthorized modification, destruction, disclosure, or 
loss. Security measures will also be used to protect District IT resources from inappropriate fraudulent 
use or other criminal acts.  

(1) General Provisions:  

18

Packet Pg. 54



(a) Secure remote access must be strictly controlled. 

(b) Remote access will require the use of two factor authentication. District issued RSA tokens 
is the current two factor standard in use at the District.  

(c) At no time should any District employee provide their login, PIN or email password to 
anyone, not even family members.  

(d) District employees, contractors, vendors and agents with remote access privileges to the 
District's corporate network are prohibited from accessing the Internet for personal use.  

(e) District employees, contractors, vendors and agents with remote access privileges to 
District's corporate network must ensure that their remote access connection is given the 
same consideration as the user's on-site connection to the District.  

(f) District employees and contractors with remote access privileges must ensure that their 
District-owned or personal computer, which is remotely connected to District's corporate 
network, is not connected to any other network at the same time, with the exception of 
personal networks that are under the complete control of the user.  

(g) District employees and contractors with remote access privileges to the District's corporate 
network must not use non-District email accounts (i.e., Hotmail, Yahoo, AOL), or other 
external resources to conduct District business, thereby ensuring that official business is 
never confused with personal business and making their personal email subject to public 
record laws.  

(h) Routers for dedicated ISDN lines configured for access to the District network must meet 
minimum authentication requirements of CHAP.  

(i) Configuration of a home user's equipment for the purpose of split-tunneling or dual homing 
is not permitted at any time.  

(j) Frame Relay must meet minimum authentication requirements of DLCI standards. 

(k) Non-standard hardware configurations must be approved by the Chief Information Security 
Officer (CISO).  

(l) Remote access to the SCADA network will require additional authorization by the Bureau 
Chief - Water Control Operations.  

(m) All hosts that are connected to District internal networks via remote access technologies 
will be subjected to posture validation in accordance with the current requirements and 
best practices established by the CISO. The District will require the temporary installation 
of host validation software to ensure the remote device meets the minimum configuration 
and security requirements.  

(n) Organizations or individuals who wish to implement nonstandard remote access solutions 
to the District production network must obtain prior approval from the District's CISO.  

(2) Acceptable Use: District IT resources are the property of the District. They are provided to 
facilitate communications required to accomplish official District business and as a result should 
be used primarily for the purposes of conducting bona-fide District business; however the 
District will permit reasonable incidental use of specified resources. Reasonable incidental use 
is infrequent and brief personal connection and use of a District resource. No employee shall 
cause the District to incur costs for incidental personal use. Incidental personal use shall not 
interfere or otherwise conflict with District employee's job performance. Incidental use is subject 
to all District policies and procedures and public records laws.  

(3) Physical Security of Assets: Hardware and peripheral devices must be kept safe from physical 
harm including damage, theft, abuse, or loss. The physical location of District IT resources 
(Hardware and other physical assets) must be adequately designed and constructed to restrict 
unauthorized access and use (theft, vandalism and sabotage, etc.), prevent damage due to 
environment factors (such as heat, moisture or electrical charge), or avoid physical damage. 

18

Packet Pg. 55



Similarly, data reserved for long-term storage on diskettes or hard drives must be protected 
from loss due to magnetic fields or electrical pulses, in addition to preventing physical damage 
or loss.  

(4) External Connection Methods and Guidelines:  

(a) Modems. 

(i) DUN technology (modem bank) is presently being discontinued at the District. 

(ii) Use of telephone modems installed on District computers are prohibited unless there 
is specific business need and they are granted an exception by the CISO.  

(iii) Fax machine analog connections are to be used by the fax equipment only. 
Unauthorized use of the fax line for connection to a computer modem is strictly 
prohibited.  

(b) Virtual Private Network (VPN). 

(i) It is the responsibility of remote access users with VPN privileges to ensure that 
unauthorized users are not allowed access to District internal networks by protecting 
their computer, passwords, tokens, and accounts.  

(ii) VPN user must be authenticated using two-factor authentication such as a token 
device and password.  

(iii) When actively connected to the District networks, the VPN will force all traffic to and 
from the PC over the VPN tunnel. All other traffic will be dropped.  

(iv) Dual (split) tunneling is prohibited in the District computer environment; only one 
network connection is allowed while a user is connected to the District VPN.  

(v) All computers connected to District internal networks via VPN must have an up-to-
date anti-virus software which shall be checked by universal access control (UAC) 
and forwarded to the appropriate site when District standards are not met. UAC is in 
the process of being implemented.  

(vi) VPN users will be automatically disconnected from District network after 20 minutes of 
inactivity or immediately if any security policy violation is detected. If disconnected due 
to inactivity, the user must then logon again to reconnect to the network. Automatic 
network processes are prohibited from being used to keep the connection open.  

(vii) The VPN concentrator is limited to an absolute connection time of 24 hours. After that, 
the VPN concentrator should require the user to reconnect and re-authenticate to the 
VPN.  

(viii) Users of computers that are not District issued equipment must configure their 
equipment to comply with District VPN and security procedures.  

(ix) Only District approved and installed VPN clients may be used. 

(x) By using VPN technology with personal equipment, users should understand that the 
District internal network has been extended to include their remote devices. Because 
of this, the systems are subject to the same rules and regulations that apply to 
District-owned equipment. User's machines must be configured to comply with District 
standards.  

(xi) VPN implementations must maintain point-to-point hardware encryption of at least 128 
bits.  

(xii) VPN implementations must support a hardware address that can be registered and 
tracked, i.e., a MAC address.  

(xiii) VPN Implementation must support and employ strong user authentication which 
checks against an external database such as TACACS+, RADIUS, or a similar 

18

Packet Pg. 56



product.  

(xiv) VPN access must be obtained with District Supervisor or District Management 
Sponsor approval in support of a demonstrated legitimate business need.  

(xv) VPN accounts/access is prohibited from being shared with other users. 

(c) Broadband Access.  

(i) Broadband connection types are used by remote access users when connecting to 
the District VPN. These types of connections include but are not limited to wireless 
networks provided by District, hotels and service providers (T- mobile hotspots, 
internet cafes, etc), Sprint AirNet wireless networking cards, and satellite connections 
(such as DirectPC).  

(ii) While broadband connections are a legitimate method for accessing the internet, they 
also present several security risks. DSL and cable modem connections are "always 
on" connections. This means that as long as a computer is turned on, it is connected 
to the Internet. Always-on connections allow computers susceptible to attack at any 
hour of the day, providing the computer is powered on. The mandatory use of a 
District authorized client required when using broadband access will help mitigate the 
risk associated with DSL and modem connections.  

(iii) The remote access mechanisms provided by the District VPN must adhere to District 
timeout guidelines.  

(d) Mobile Device Access.  

(i) Mobile computing devices are any type of device that can move or be moved and is 
capable of collection, storing, transmitting, or process electronic data or images. 
Movement in this case refers to the device generally not having a fixed connection to 
the network. Personal digital assistant (PDA) combines computing, telephone, fax, 
internet and other networking features.  

(ii) Mobile devices such as Blackberries, Palm Treo devices, and PDAs may be provided 
with access to internal resources at District. These devices should be configured as 
securely as possible so that in the event of loss or theft, potential compromise of 
District data is minimized.  

(iii) Modern mobile devices contain nearly as much functionality as laptop or desktop 
computers. They can access many of the same network resources including 
documents, email, and web resources as a user connected to the internal network 
through other mechanisms such as the VPN. Because of this, mobile devices should 
follow many of the same guidelines for security as laptop and desktop computers.  

(iv) Mobile Device connectivity must be accomplished through the IT Bureau responsible 
for support of these devices. Currently, these mechanisms include corporate email 
access from Blackberry devices, Palm Treo devices and Personal Digital Assistants.  

(v) Mobile devices should receive updates and security patches from the operating 
system vendor. This must occur on a regular basis as necessary to prevent operating 
system patches from becoming out of date or vulnerable to attacks.  

(vi) Mobile devices should use encryption capabilities to protect data stored on the device. 

(vii) If application-level firewall package is available, it should be installed and activated on 
mobile devices.  

(viii) Mobile devices that are lost or stolen must be reported immediately to the IT System 
Administration Group so that actions may be taken to minimize potential risk.  

(e) Wireless Access.  

(i) District wireless access for employees and contractors is allowed for accessing the 

18

Packet Pg. 57



District's Enterprise Network, Internal systems, Internet, and intranet using District 
laptops which have been loaded with the District standard firewall, anti-virus and 
odyssey pc client software to enhance computer security and to direct Internet access 
through the District's enterprise network.  

(ii) Public wireless access for contractors, vendors, partners, and the general public is 
allowed for accessing the "internet only". This wireless access does not traverse the 
District's Enterprise Network. District contract employees are allowed to use the public 
wireless access to the "internet only" to communicate with their employers for 
business purposes only. The District assumes no liability for use or the security of this 
service. Users of this service are encouraged to have an up-to-date firewall and 
antivirus loaded and operational on their non-District laptop.  

(f) Internet Service Providers (ISP). District employees and contractors may also access their 
District e-mail by using their personal IPS and accessing https://exmail.sfwmd.gov. All 
applicable District policies and procedures apply to this access.  

(5) Remote Access Methods for Internal Systems:  

(a) Connections required for systems outside of the District's perimeter firewall must be 
accessed using a secure connection facility, with a suitable form of encryption to secure 
the connection. Examples of suitable mechanisms include SSH2, SSL, or Triple-DES 
encrypted remote desktop protocol (RDP).  

(b) Connections required for systems outside of the District's perimeter firewall must be 
accessed using a secure connection facility, with a suitable form of encryption to secure 
the connection. Examples of suitable mechanisms include SSH2, SSL, or Triple-DES 
encrypted remote desktop protocol (RDP).  

(c) Remote administration of routers, switches or other critical network attached appliances 
shall be accomplished using router software containing a version of the SSH server for 
remote administration of these devices. Telnet shall not be used and is no longer 
authorized for network appliance management. Whenever available the SSH2 protocol 
should be leveraged for remote network device administration.  

(d) Mission critical systems (e.g., SCADA, router systems, windows domain controllers), 
management or administrative access must only be allowed through secure (i.e. 
encrypted) sessions.  

(Res. No. 2008-328, 3-13-2008; Res. No. 2012-306, § 1(Exh. A), 3-15-2012)  

Sec. 130-104. - Responsibilities.  
The Executive Director is charged with the overall responsibility for ensuring compliance with this 

policy.  

(Res. No. 2008-328, 3-13-2008; Res. No. 2012-306, § 1(Exh. A), 3-15-2012)  

Sec. 130-105. - Policy Violations.  
Employees may be subject to disciplinary action up to and including separation from employment for 

violating this policy or any other District policy or procedure.  

(Res. No. 2008-328, 3-13-2008)  

Sec. 130-106. - Reserved.  

Editor's note-  

Res. No. 2012-306, § 1(Exh. A), adopted March 15, 2012, repealed § 130-106 which pertained to policy 
administration and derived from Res. No. 2008-328, adopted March 13, 2008.  

 

 
Section 2. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 

18

Packet Pg. 58



  
 

PASSED and ADOPTED this 15th day of January, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
_________________________ 
District Clerk/Secretary 

SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT 
DISTRICT, BY ITS GOVERNING BOARD 
By: 
___________________________________ 

Chairman 
 
Legal form approved: 
By: 
___________________________________ 

Office of Counsel 
 
Print name: 
 
___________________________________ 
 

 

18

Packet Pg. 59



M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 
TO:  Governing Board Members 
 
FROM: Dan DeLisi, Chief of Staff 
 
DATE:  January 15, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: IRL NEP Update 
 
 
Summary 

The Indian River Lagoon National Estuary Program (IRL NEP) was established in 1990 through 
the Environmental Protection Agency’s (EPA) designation of the IRL as an “estuary of national 
significance.” The IRL NEP provides a non-regulatory, stakeholder-driven, collaborative 
approach to coastal watershed restoration and protection. In 1991, a Management Conference 
was established to guide development of the IRL NEP Comprehensive Conservation 
Management Plan (CCMP) and its future implementation. The St. Johns River Water 
Management District (SJRWMD) was selected as IRL NEP’s local sponsoring agency and has 
provided administrative, personnel and facility support to the IRL NEP since its inception in 
1991. 

 
In August 2014, the SFWMD Governing Board was briefed on proposed organizational changes 
designed to increase community participation and expand project opportunities. In September 
2014, the Governing Board approved an initial investment of funds and was updated on 
development of an Inter-local Agreement.  
 
In December 2014, the IRL NEP advisory board, an interagency and stakeholder body that 
oversees the program, reviewed and approved the finalized Inter-local Agreement presented 
here. The Agreement increases community participation and expands project opportunities to 
benefit the IRL. It also creates the Indian River Lagoon Council, an entity under Chapter 163, 
Florida Statutes, to oversee the revised and expanded IRL NEP program. This month staff is 
requesting Governing Board approval of the finalized Inter-local Agreement.  
 

Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of this item as the project leverages state dollars with federal and 
local cost-share funds to implement water resource projects/programs that directly benefit the 
Indian River Lagoon.  

 
Background 

In 2014, SJRWMD, SFWMD, the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP), local 
governments and other key stakeholders explored alternative organizational structures for the 
IRL NEP that would allow for program expansion and enhanced impact to benefit the IRL. 
 
In September 2014, the SFWMD Governing Board approved an allocation of $500,000 in Fiscal 
Year 2014-2015 funding as an initial investment in the restructured IRL NEP. This funding is 

24

Packet Pg. 60



proposed to be combined with funding from EPA, SJRWMD, FDEP and Volusia, Brevard, Indian 
River, St. Lucie and Martin counties. 
 
In December 2014, the IRL NEP Advisory Board voted to finalize an inter-local agreement that 
creates the Indian River Lagoon Council.  
 
How this helps meet the District’s 10-year Strategic Plan: The project is consistent with the 
goals of the Comprehensive Everglades Restoration Plan: Indian River Lagoon-South Plan and 
the Northern Everglades & Estuaries Protection Program and supports the District’s 10-Year 
Strategic Plan’s Coastal Watersheds Program goal to restore coastal watersheds and estuaries 
through local initiatives and partnerships. 
 
Funding Source: The initial investment of $500,000 in FY15 is from ad valorem funds. 

This Board item impacts what areas of the District, both resource areas and geography: 
The IRL is 156 miles long and spans five counties along the East Coast of Florida, including St. 
Lucie and Martin counties within the SFWMD. 
 
What concerns could this Board item raise? The Indian River Lagoon Council, through the 
Inter-local Agreement, will request annual funding to support ongoing implementation of the 
CCMP. 

If you have any questions, please contact Dan DeLisi at ext. 6232. 

24

Packet Pg. 61



SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

Resolution No. 2015 - 0107  

 

A Resolution of the Governing Board of the South Florida Water 
Management District approving the finalized Inter-Local Agreement  
with other agency/governmental partners for the expanded Indian 
River Lagoon National Estuary Program; providing an effective date.  

 
WHEREAS, the Indian River Lagoon National Estuary Program (IRL NEP) was 

established in 1990 through the Environmental Protection Agency’s (EPA) designation 
of the IRL as an “estuary of national significance;” and 
 

WHEREAS, during the past several months, St. Johns River Water Management 
District (SJRWMD), SFWMD, the Florida Department of Environmental Protection 
(FDEP), local governments and other key stakeholders have been exploring alternative 
organizational structures for the IRL NEP that would allow for program expansion and 
enhanced impact to benefit the IRL; and 
 

WHEREAS, In December 2014, the IRL NEP Advisory Board  voted to finalize an 
inter-local agreement that creates the Indian River Lagoon Council;  now therefore 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE SOUTH FLORIDA 
WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT: 
 

Section 1. The Governing Board of the South Florida Water Management District 
approves the finalized Inter-local Agreement (4600003137) with other 
agency/governmental partners for the expanded Indian River Lagoon National Estuary 
Program. 
 

Section 2. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 
 
PASSED and ADOPTED this 15th day of January, 2015. 
 

24

Packet Pg. 62



 
 
 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
_________________________ 
District Clerk/Secretary 

SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT 
DISTRICT, BY ITS GOVERNING BOARD 
By: 
___________________________________ 

Chairman 
 
Legal form approved: 
By: 
___________________________________ 

Office of Counsel 
 
Print name: 
 
___________________________________ 
 

 

24

Packet Pg. 63



 
 

INDIAN RIVER LAGOON NATIONAL ESTUARY PROGRAM 
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

 
This Indian River Lagoon National Estuary Program Interlocal Agreement (the 

“Agreement”) is made and entered into this _____ day of  ____________________, 2015, by 
and between the following governmental entities: 1) Volusia County, a Florida political 
subdivision, 2) Brevard County, a Florida political subdivision, 3) Indian River County, a Florida 
political subdivision, 4) St. Lucie County, a Florida political subdivision, 5) Martin County, a 
Florida political subdivision, 6) Florida Department of Environmental Protection, 7) St. Johns 
River Water Management District, 8) South Florida Water Management District (collectively the 
“Parties” and each singularly a “Party”). 
 

The following recitation of facts are provided in support of this Agreement: 
 

(A) The Indian River Lagoon National Estuary Program was designated in 1990 and  
formally established in 1991 to assist the Indian River Lagoon region located along the east-
central and south-eastern coastal area of Florida in developing a comprehensive plan to restore 
and protect the Indian River Lagoon. The Indian River Lagoon National Estuary Program is part 
of a national network of twenty-eight (28) estuary programs established under the Federal Clean 
Water Act and administered nationally by the United States Environmental Protection Agency. 
 

(B) Local and state government participants in the Indian River Lagoon National  
Estuary Program consisting of the Parties described above, as well as the United States 
Environmental Protection Agency, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Florida Fish and Wildlife 
Conservation Commission, Florida Marine Research Institute and the United States Army Corps 
of Engineers, developed a Comprehensive Conservation and Management Plan for Indian River 
Lagoon (the “CCMP”), as required by the Federal Clean Water Act.  The Parties are committed 
to successful implementation of the CCMP, as it may be amended from time to time. 
 

 (C) The Parties to this Agreement will sponsor and be responsible for the Indian River 
Lagoon National Estuary Program. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained in this Agreement, the 
receipt and adequacy acknowledged by them, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
 
 
 

 1                                                                
 

24.a

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 IR

L
 N

at
io

n
al

 E
st

u
ar

y 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 In
te

rl
o

ca
l A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 N

o
. 2

01
5 

- 
01

07
  :

 IR
L

 N
E

P
 U

p
d

at
e)



ARTICLE 1 – INTRODUCTORY PROVISIONS 
 

1.1  Recitals.  The statements contained in the recitation of facts set forth above 
(collectively the "Recitation of Facts") are true and correct, and are made a part of this 
Agreement by this reference. 

 
1.2 Exhibits. The exhibits, which are attached to this Agreement, are by this 

reference made a part of this Agreement. 
 

1.3  Abbreviations and Definitions. The following abbreviations and definitions, in 
addition to those contained in the Preamble and Recitals, will be used for purposes of this 
Agreement, and will not constitute separate agreements unless otherwise stated below: 
 

(a)   “Act” means Section 163.01, Fla. Stat., known as the “Florida Interlocal 
Cooperation Act of 1969.” 

 
(b)  “Agreement” means this Interlocal Agreement between the Parties as it is 

presently constituted or as it may be amended from time to time. 
 
(c) “Board of Directors” means the new policy board of the IRL Council, all as set 

forth in Article Five, below. 
 

(d)  “Brevard” means Brevard County, a Florida political subdivision. 
 

(e)  “CCMP” means the Comprehensive Conservation and Management Plan 
approved by the Parties, as amended from time to time. 

 
(f)  “Counties” means collectively Volusia County, Brevard County, Indian River 

County, St. Lucie County and Martin County.  
 

(g)  “Effective Date” means the date that all Parties have duly executed this 
Agreement and filing has occurred pursuant to Section 13.15 below. 

 
(h)  “EPA” means the United States Environmental Protection Agency, a federal 

agency. 
 

(i)  “FDEP” means the Florida Department of Environmental Protection, a Florida 
state agency. 

 
(j)  “Indian River” means Indian River County, a Florida political subdivision. 

 2                                                                
 

24.a

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 IR

L
 N

at
io

n
al

 E
st

u
ar

y 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 In
te

rl
o

ca
l A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 N

o
. 2

01
5 

- 
01

07
  :

 IR
L

 N
E

P
 U

p
d

at
e)



 
(k)   “IRL Council” means the interlocal entity formed pursuant to this Agreement 

and Section 163.01, Fla. Stat., which will carry out the Indian River Lagoon 
National Estuary Program. 

 
 (l)  “Martin” means Martin County, a Florida political subdivision. 

 
(m)  “NEP” means the Indian River Lagoon National Estuary Program. 

 
(n) “Regulatory Agencies” means the governmental agencies with regulatory 

authority over the activities of some of the other Parties, including the Florida 
Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP), St. Johns River Water 
Management District and South Florida Water Management District. 

 
(o)  “SFWMD” means the South Florida Water Management District, an agency of 

the Florida Legislature. 
 

(p)  “SJRWMD” means the St. Johns River Water Management District, an agency 
of the Florida Legislature. 

 
(q)  “St. Lucie” means St. Lucie County, a Florida political subdivision.            

 
(r)  “Volusia” means Volusia County, a Florida political subdivision. 

 
ARTICLE 2 – CREATION 

 
2.1 Interlocal Agreement. This Agreement is an interlocal agreement, as 

contemplated by the Act and other applicable law. All of the Parties qualify to enter into this 
Agreement under such Act.  The Parties provide for and create this new, independent 
organization, knowns as the IRL Council, which shall be responsible for the Indian River Lagoon 
National Estuary Program.  The purpose of the IRL Council is to carry out the goals of the Indian 
River Lagoon National Estuary Program as set forth below.  
 

2.2 Immunity.  Pursuant to subsection (9) of the Act, all of the privileges and 
immunities from liability, exemptions from laws, ordinances and rules, and pensions and relief, 
disability, workers' compensation, and other benefits which apply to the activity of officers, 
agents or employees of any public agent or employees of any public agency when performing 
their respective functions within the territorial limits for their respective agencies will apply to 
the same degree and extent to the performance of such actions and duties of such officers, agents, 
or employees extraterritorially under the provisions of this Agreement. 

 3                                                                
 

24.a

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 IR

L
 N

at
io

n
al

 E
st

u
ar

y 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 In
te

rl
o

ca
l A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 N

o
. 2

01
5 

- 
01

07
  :

 IR
L

 N
E

P
 U

p
d

at
e)



 
2.3 Territory.  The geographic territory of the NEP, as operated by this IRL Council, 

and as it may be amended from time to time, is situated within the Counties of Volusia, Brevard, 
Indian River, St. Lucie and Martin. 
 

ARTICLE 3 – TERM 
 

3.1 Term.  The term of this Agreement commences on the Effective Date and 
continues until terminated.  The last day of the Agreement will be the termination date more 
fully described in Article 12 below. 
 

3.2  Sunset Review.  This Agreement will be reviewed by the Board of Directors 
approximately five (5) years from the Effective Date of this Agreement and on or about each five 
(5) year period thereafter. The Board of Directors shall pass a resolution on whether to terminate 
this Agreement, amend this Agreement or continue this Agreement for another (5) five year 
period.  Notwithstanding the voting requirements contained in Article 12 below, a vote to 
terminate conducted as a part of this sunset review will be effective upon a majority vote of the 
Parties provided such vote occurs thirty (30) days before or after the expiration of the five (5) 
year period and provided a vote under this provision is specifically referenced with the meeting 
notice and appears on the meeting agenda.  Should no action occur, this Agreement will continue 
for another (5) year period. 
 

ARTICLE 4 – GOALS  
 

The goals of the Parties are those goals set forth in the CCMP, as may be amended from 
time to time pursuant to revisions to the CCMP.  The goals contained in the CCMP as of the date 
of this Agreement are set forth in Exhibit A to this Agreement. All goals are intended to be 
achieved through reasonable and cost-effective restoration and pollution reduction projects.  The 
Board of Directors shall consider whether projects are financially and technologically feasible 
and cost effective in returning the Indian River Lagoon to health.   

 
ARTICLE 5 – STRUCTURE OF THE IRL COUNCIL 

 
5.1 IRL Council.  The Parties agree to the formation of the IRL Council to carry out 

the Indian River Lagoon National Estuary Program.  
 
5.2 IRL Council Authority & Powers.  The IRL Council will have the following 

powers: 
  

 4                                                                
 

24.a

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 IR

L
 N

at
io

n
al

 E
st

u
ar

y 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 In
te

rl
o

ca
l A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 N

o
. 2

01
5 

- 
01

07
  :

 IR
L

 N
E

P
 U

p
d

at
e)



(a) To employ personnel to carry out the functions of the IRL Council and to 
determine, adopt and implement a personnel policy for the recruitment, retention, 
supervision, discipline and evaluation of employees; 
 

(b)  To make purchases and enter into contracts in the name of the IRL Council, 
which will not constitute obligations of the Parties individually; 

 
(c) To purchase, lease, receive or otherwise acquire, own, hold, sell, convey, dispose, 

divert or distribute real or personal property;  
 

(d) To accept gifts, aid, grants, assistance funds or bequests, from any source, public 
or private; 
 

(e) To sue and be sued, complain and defend in its own name in all forums,  
notwithstanding the immunity protections provided by law;  
 

(f) To adopt policies and procedures pertaining to any of its operations;  
 

(g) To exercise all privileges, immunities and exemptions accorded to Parties  
individually under law;  

 
(h) To appoint advisory, administrative or operating committees to assist the IRL  

Council in the exercise and performance of the powers and duties provided for 
under this Agreement;  

  
(i) To appear on its own behalf before boards, commissions, departments or other  

agencies of municipal, county, state or federal government;  
 

(j) To exercise all other powers as may reasonably be implied under this Agreement 
and/or necessary to carry out the purposes of the IRL Council. 

 
The IRL Council will not have the power to promulgate, issue or make rules or regulations, issue 
bonds, levy taxes, charge rates, fees or rents, condemn or assume any additional governmental 
powers by the other Parties except as specifically allowed by this Agreement. 
 

5.3 Transition.  Once the IRL Council is fully operational, as described in this 
section, all tangible personal property, assets, field equipment, funds and copies of all records of 
the SJRWMD used specifically by or for the NEP and the IRL Council employee(s) will be 
offered by SJRWMD, after consultation with EPA, to the IRL Council.  The IRL Council will 
have the opportunity, after due diligence and review, to accept the offer of SJRWMD, in whole 

 5                                                                
 

24.a

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 IR

L
 N

at
io

n
al

 E
st

u
ar

y 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 In
te

rl
o

ca
l A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 N

o
. 2

01
5 

- 
01

07
  :

 IR
L

 N
E

P
 U

p
d

at
e)



or in part.  In order to become fully operational, the Board of Directors must first (i) approve an 
Operating Procedures Manual establishing procedures the IRL Council will follow in its 
operations, including hiring/termination, pay/compensation benefits, procurement of services and 
general policies and (ii) enter into agreements with third parties to provide administrative support 
to the IRL Council and the Board of Directors.  After affirmative acceptance by and effective 
transfer to the IRL Council, responsibility for any grants, contracts, and other legal documents in 
the name of SJRWMD on behalf of the NEP will be transferred to the IRL Council and the IRL 
Council shall be bound to the terms and conditions contained therein. 
 

5.4 Board of Directors.  All powers, privileges and duties vested in or imposed upon 
the IRL Council will be exercised and performed by and through a Board of Directors; provided, 
however, that the exercise of any and all executive, administrative and ministerial powers may be 
delegated to committees and/or an Executive Director.  The Board of Directors will be 
comprised of one Director from each of the Parties to this Agreement and each Director will be 
entitled to one vote.  EPA will be requested to provide a representative to attend meetings of the 
Board of Directors to provide technical assistance and present the position of EPA on issues to 
be considered by the Board of Directors. Each Party shall appoint its Director and an alternate to 
serve as their representative immediately upon adoption of this Agreement.  Directors and 
alternates representing the Counties will be elected officials serving on the commissions or 
council of the Counties.  Directors representing SFWMD or SJRWMD will be members of the 
Governing Boards and alternates representing SFWMD or SJRWMD will be staff of SFWMD or 
SJRWMD.  The Director and alternate representing FDEP shall be at least a Deputy Director or 
equivalent position.  In the event the Director or alternate will no longer serve the Party as an 
employee or elected official, the Party shall appoint a new Director or alternate. Each Party may 
change the initial or alternative director from time to time, but must provide to the IRL Council a 
minimum of two (2) business day’s prior written notice before any meeting. The Board of 
Directors will have policy-making powers for the IRL Council, in addition to those powers 
explicitly set forth in this Agreement. The Board of Directors will serve without compensation. 
 

5.5 Committees.  The Board of Directors may appoint committees such as 
management, technical, administrative, operating or other committees to assist the IRL Council 
in the exercise and performance of the powers and duties provided for under this Agreement.  In 
the absence of express delegated authority, any committees created by the Board of Directors 
shall not have decision-making authority.  As necessary, EPA will be requested to provide a 
representative to attend meetings of such committees to provide technical assistance and present 
the position of EPA on issues to be considered by the committees.  Each of the Parties may 
change either their initial or alternate representatives on any committees from time to time, but 
must provide to the IRL Council a minimum of two (2) days prior written notice before any 
meeting.  Except as otherwise specifically set forth herein, all votes of any committee will be by 

 6                                                                
 

24.a

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 IR

L
 N

at
io

n
al

 E
st

u
ar

y 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 In
te

rl
o

ca
l A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 N

o
. 2

01
5 

- 
01

07
  :

 IR
L

 N
E

P
 U

p
d

at
e)



a simple majority of the committee members. Members of all committees will serve without 
compensation. 
 

5.6 Officers.  At its first organizational meeting and in January each year thereafter, 
the Board of Directors will elect the following officers:  

 
(a)       A chairperson of the Board of Directors who shall serve for a period of one year,  

or until a successor has been selected, whichever is later.  The chairperson shall 
preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors and carry out any other duties 
assigned by the Board of Directors. 

 
(b)       A vice-chairperson who shall serve for a period of one year, or until a successor  

has been selected, whichever is later.  In the event of absence or disability of the 
chairperson, the vice-chairperson shall assume the duties of the chairperson and 
carry out any other duties assigned by the Board of Directors.  

 
(c)       A secretary who shall serve for a period of one year, or until a successor has been  

selected, whichever is later.  In the event of absence or disability of the vice-
chairperson, the secretary shall assume the duties of the vice-chairperson and 
carry out any other duties assigned by the Board of Directors.  

 
In the event of a vacancy in any office, the Board of Directors shall elect a replacement to serve 
the balance of the unexpired term. 
 

5.7 Additional Board Members.  Should other governmental entities or Regulatory 
Agencies desire to become a party to this Agreement and have a Director on the Board of 
Directors, the representation must be unanimously approved by the Board of Directors in its sole 
and absolute discretion. Such new party must execute and comply with all of the provisions of 
this Agreement and be willing and able to contribute funding as determined by the Board of 
Directors.  The funding contributions in Article Eight below will be amended accordingly to 
reflect any new party obligations, as of the first day of the next fiscal year of the IRL Council. 
Once a new party is approved it will become a member of the IRL Council and appoint a 
Director on the Board of Directors with voting rights consistent with the other Parties.   
 
 5.8 Bylaws.  The  Board of Directors by 2/3’s vote may create and adopt Bylaws or 
appropriate rules of procedure that incorporate by reference the Operating Procedures Manual 
describe in Section 5.3 above, for the IRL Council to use in its governance and which will 
remain in effect unless modified by the Board of Directors. The Bylaws may be initially created 
and adopted at the same time or before execution of the administrative support agreement 
described in Section 5.3 above.  
 

 7                                                                
 

24.a

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 IR

L
 N

at
io

n
al

 E
st

u
ar

y 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 In
te

rl
o

ca
l A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 N

o
. 2

01
5 

- 
01

07
  :

 IR
L

 N
E

P
 U

p
d

at
e)



 
 
 

ARTICLE 6 – MEETINGS, QUORUM AND VOTING 
 
 6.1 Board Meetings.  The Board shall meet on a regular basis at such times and at 
such places as determined by the Board; provided, however, special meetings may be called by 
the chairperson and in his or her absence by the vice-chairperson.  All meetings will be 
conducted in accordance with Section 286.011, Florida Statutes. 
 
 6.2 Quorum.  A quorum for the transaction of business at any regular or special 
meeting of the Board of Directors or any committees will consist of a majority of the members of 
the Board of Directors or committee.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, a majority of the members 
of the Board of Directors or any committee delegated decision-making authority present at a 
meeting may act to continue the meeting to any date or time specified in the action.   
 

 6.3 Voting.  Each Director or member of any committee will be entitled to one vote.   
Voting by proxy is not allowed.  All Board action will require a majority vote of the Board of 
Directors present at the meeting, with the exception of the following: 
 

(a) Amendments to this Agreement, including the addition of any additional parties to 
the Agreement, will require unanimous approval by all Parties. 

  
(b)       Approval of Bylaws or appropriate rules of procedure will require a vote of 2/3rds  

of the Board of Directors present at the meeting. 
 

(c)       Termination of this Agreement will require a vote of 2/3rds of the Parties, unless  
      made in conjunction with the Sunset Review described in Section 3.2. 

 
(d)       Approval of the final budget will require a vote of 2/3rds of the Board of     

Directors present at the meeting. 
 
(e) Removal of a member from the Agreement due to default will require a 2/3rds 

vote of all non-defaulting Parties  
 

(f) Purchases of real property will require a vote of 2/3rds of the Board of Directors 
present at the meeting. 

 

 8                                                                
 

24.a

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 IR

L
 N

at
io

n
al

 E
st

u
ar

y 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 In
te

rl
o

ca
l A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 N

o
. 2

01
5 

- 
01

07
  :

 IR
L

 N
E

P
 U

p
d

at
e)



ARTICLE 7 – RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PARTIES 
 

 By entering into this Agreement, the intent of the Parties is to assure effective and timely 
implementation of recommended actions and to adjust strategies as needed in the future to keep 
the Indian River Lagoon’s recovery on track.  The Regulatory Agencies agree to expeditiously 
review permit applications and to provide the IRL Council information and procedural direction 
on permitting matters.  
 

ARTICLE 8 – BUDGETING AND FUNDING 
 

8.1 IRL Council Budgets.  The IRL Council will have a fiscal year ending 
September 30 of each year.  Prior to March 1 of each year, a tentative budget outlining the 
proposed operating and other financial requirements for the upcoming fiscal year will be 
presented and considered by the Board of Directors for approval.  The IRL Council will provide 
copies of the tentative budget to the Parties and EPA.  Prior to June 1 of each year, a final budget 
will be presented and considered by the Board of Directors for approval and a copy of the final 
budget will be provided to each Party.  The final budget will require approval by two-thirds 
(2/3rds) of all members of the Board of Directors present.  The IRL Council shall comply with 
all notice requirements under Florida law in creating and approving the tentative and final 
budgets.   
 

8.2  Budget Amendments.  The adopted budget will be balanced and will be the 
operating and fiscal guide for the IRL Council for the upcoming fiscal year.  The Board of 
Directors may from time to time amend the budget at any regular or special meeting. 

 
8.3  Funding.  Each Party will provide annual funding contributions to the IRL 

Council to assist in covering the expenses outlined in the final budget and any amendments to the 
final budget.  Except for the first fiscal year beginning on October 1, 2015, the Parties shall 
tender the annual contributions on or before September 15th of each fiscal year.  The annual 
contributions due for the first fiscal year of this Agreement will be made on or before October 
15, 2015.  The minimum annual contributions for each Party will be as follows:  
 

SJRWMD $500,000 
SFWMD $500,000 
FDEP $250,000 
Volusia County   $50,000 
Brevard County   $50,000 
Indian River County   $50,000 
St. Lucie County   $50,000 
Martin County   $50,000 

 9                                                                
 

24.a

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 IR

L
 N

at
io

n
al

 E
st

u
ar

y 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 In
te

rl
o

ca
l A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 N

o
. 2

01
5 

- 
01

07
  :

 IR
L

 N
E

P
 U

p
d

at
e)



 
 
8.4 Additional Funding.  Any gifts, grants, assistance funds or bequests from any 

source, public or private, will be in addition to the minimum funding contributions set forth 
above.   

  
8.5 Annual Approval.  Each member of the Board of Directors agrees to use its best 

efforts in securing the funding levels specified above through appropriate approvals from 
appropriate legislative or governing body each fiscal year. The Parties, however, acknowledge 
that any funding decisions remain within the sole discretion of each Party. Securing funding 
approval by the Party will be considered a condition precedent to the funding obligations of the 
Party each year. 

 
ARTICLE 9 – DEFAULT 

 
In the event any Party is determined to be in willful and significant noncompliance with 

the terms of this Agreement, the Board of Directors may, by a 2/3rds vote of all Parties except 
the Party charged with being in default, remove the non-complying Party from this Agreement. 
Prior to any such vote by the Board of Directors, the non-complying Party will be given a notice 
of its non-compliance and an opportunity to remedy the problem within a reasonable period or 
through a public meeting before the Board of Directors if there is a dispute whether a default 
exists. If a Party is found to be in noncompliance with permits by the applicable Regulatory 
Agency(ies), the permitting agencies may take actions to enforce the permits against non-
complying Party under the agency's laws and regulations. If any Party is removed under this 
Article, (i) any  monies previously paid hereunder will be conclusively deemed earned and not 
subject to return to such Party, (ii) any future funding responsibility of such Party will terminate, 
and (iii) this Agreement will continue as to the remaining Parties. Provided, however, any funds 
paid before removal not expended, will only be used by the IRL Council in accordance with the 
approved budget for which such contribution was made. 
 

ARTICLE 10 – NOTICE 
 

Any and all notices required or permitted to be given hereunder will be in writing, and 
will be considered delivered if the notice is either personally delivered to each Party at the 
address set forth in Exhibit B, transmitted by electronic facsimile machine to the fax numbers 
listed, or sent by U.S. certified or registered mail, postage prepaid, return receipt  requested, to 
such addresses, all such notices being effective upon delivery to and receipt by the Parties, unless 
the respective Party or Parties notify(ies) all other Parties in writing in accordance herewith of a 
change of address and/or representative at such address authorized to receive any and all such 
notices, in which case any and all such notices will be delivered and/or mailed as aforesaid to 

 10                                                                
 

24.a

Packet Pg. 73

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 IR

L
 N

at
io

n
al

 E
st

u
ar

y 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 In
te

rl
o

ca
l A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 N

o
. 2

01
5 

- 
01

07
  :

 IR
L

 N
E

P
 U

p
d

at
e)



said Party or Parties at such new address with respect to such Party.  In addition to the designated 
methods for delivery of notice set forth above, a copy of any and all notices may also be 
delivered by electronic mail.  

 
ARTICLE 11 – WITHDRAWAL OF A PARTY 

 
Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, any Party has the 

right to withdraw as a Party to this Agreement.  Counties shall provide ninety (90) days prior 
written notice of withdrawal and the remaining Parties shall provide one hundred eighty (180) 
days prior written notice of withdrawal.  In the event all other Parties receive written notice of 
such withdrawal from the withdrawing Party, on the day following the conclusion of the notice 
period, the withdrawing Party will no longer be considered a Party to this Agreement.  Provided 
however, even though such withdrawing Party will have withdrawn as a Party to this Agreement, 
the withdrawing Party will continue to be subject to all obligations and responsibilities of a Party 
with respect to required compliance with all applicable laws and regulations, without the benefit 
of being considered a Party to this Agreement. If a Party withdraws under this Article, (i) all 
monies previously paid hereunder will be conclusively deemed earned and not subject to return 
to such Party; (ii) the funding responsibility of such party will extend an additional one hundred 
eighty (180) days or until the next fiscal year whichever is longer, and (iii) this Agreement will 
continue as to the remaining Parties. 
 

ARTICLE 12 – TERMINATION 
 

 12.1   Termination Vote.  This Agreement may be terminated by an affirmative vote of 
two-thirds of the Parties, unless made in conjunction with the Sunset Review described in 
Section 3.2.   
 

12.2  Termination Requirements.  Termination of this Agreement and dissolution of 
the IRL Council will be effective on the date the following requirements have all been met: 

 
(a)       Upon the affirmative vote of not less than two-thirds of the Parties, the IRL  

Council shall provide written termination notices to each Party and EPA. 
 

(b) The IRL Council will pay or cause to be paid all outstanding obligations, debts or 
other liabilities and all known obligations, debts or other liabilities which may 
arise against the IRL Council in the future.  All contracts will be terminated or 
assigned to another entity willing to assume the contract, should one exist. 

 
(c)       Once all obligations, debts or other liabilities are satisfied, all remaining property,  

funds and other assets of the IRL Council will be distributed as determined by the 
Board of Directors with notice to EPA. 

 11                                                                
 

24.a

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 IR

L
 N

at
io

n
al

 E
st

u
ar

y 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 In
te

rl
o

ca
l A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 N

o
. 2

01
5 

- 
01

07
  :

 IR
L

 N
E

P
 U

p
d

at
e)



 
(d) The IRL Council will comply with all other dissolution requirements under 

Florida law. 
 

ARTICLE 13 – GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

13.1 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement will inure to the benefit of the 
Parties.  This Agreement is for the exclusive benefit of the Parties and will not be deemed to be 
made for the benefit of any other persons not so specified. 

 
13.2 Modification.  This Agreement may be modified, altered or amended only by a 

written instrument subsequently executed by the Parties as more fully described above. 
 
13.3 Complete Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the full, complete and wholly 

independent agreement among the Parties. This Agreement also supersedes all prior agreements, 
understandings, representations, and statements among the Parties with respect to the matters 
addressed in this Agreement, either written or oral. 

 
13.4 Severability Clause.  If any clause, provision or section of this Agreement is 

found to be illegal or invalid by any court, the invalidity of such clause, provision or section will 
not affect any of the remaining clauses, provisions or sections, and this Agreement will be 
construed and enforced as if such illegal or invalid clause, provision or section had not been 
contained in this Agreement. 

 
13.5 Governing Law.  Existing and future laws, rules and regulations of the United 

States and its agencies, the State of Florida and its agencies and the other Parties to this 
Agreement will take precedence over the terms and provisions of this Agreement in case of 
conflict or inconsistencies between them. The laws of the State of Florida as applicable will 
govern the validity, performance and enforcement of this Agreement. 

 
13.6   Sovereign Immunity.  The Parties intend to avail themselves of the benefits of 

Section 768.28 and 163.01(9), Florida Statues, and of other statues and the common law 
governing sovereign immunity to the fullest extent possible.  In accordance with Section 
163.01(5)(o), Florida Statutes, the Parties are not jointly liable for the torts of the officers or 
employees of the IRL Council, or any other tort attributable to the IRL Council, and that only the 
IRL Council shall be liable for torts attributable to it or for torts of its officers or employees, and 
then only to the extent of the waiver of sovereign immunity or limitation of liability specified in 
Section 768.28, Florida Statutes.   

 

 12                                                                
 

24.a

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 IR

L
 N

at
io

n
al

 E
st

u
ar

y 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 In
te

rl
o

ca
l A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 N

o
. 2

01
5 

- 
01

07
  :

 IR
L

 N
E

P
 U

p
d

at
e)



13.7 Public Purpose.  This Agreement satisfies, fulfills and is pursuant to and for a 
public purpose, is in the public interest, and is a proper exercise of each Party's power and 
authority under each Party's individual governmental authority. 

 
13.8 Performance Standards.  None of the provisions in this Agreement will be 

deemed in any manner to amend, modify or otherwise change any of the provisions, regulations 
or ordinances of any governmental agency which is a Party to this Agreement and does not allow 
a performance standard less than is otherwise required under the terms of those provisions or 
regulations or ordinances, except as specifically provided herein. 

 
13.9 Survival.  All of the representations and warranties set forth in this Agreement 

will survive the consummation of any and all of the transactions described in the Agreement and 
the termination of this Agreement, and will not be deemed to be merged in the Agreement or any 
other instrument, which may be executed and delivered pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
13.10 Authority.  None of the Parties has any authority to bind or make any oral or 

written representations on behalf of the other Parties, and nothing contained in this Agreement 
will be construed to imply that any one or more of the Parties has formed a partnership or 
become an agent for any one or more of the other Parties. 

 
13.11 Heading.  The headings contained in this Agreement are solely for convenience 

of reference, do not constitute a part of this Agreement and will not affect its meaning, 
construction or effect. 

 
13.12 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, 

each of which may be executed by less than all of the Parties but all of which will be construed 
together as a single instrument.  

 
13.13 Binding Effect.  This Agreement will bind the successors and assigns of the 

Parties. 
 
13.14 Waiver.  No waiver of any provision of this Agreement will be deemed or will 

constitute a waiver of any provision of this Agreement. 
 
13.15 Execution.  This Agreement will not be effective nor will it have any force and 

effect until all of the Parties have duly executed this Agreement and it is filed with the Clerk of 
the Circuit Court of each county where each Party is located. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties caused this Agreement to be executed, under 
seal, and will be deemed to have executed such, on the day and year designated. 
 

 13                                                                
 

24.a

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 IR

L
 N

at
io

n
al

 E
st

u
ar

y 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 In
te

rl
o

ca
l A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 N

o
. 2

01
5 

- 
01

07
  :

 IR
L

 N
E

P
 U

p
d

at
e)



VOLUSIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 

 

     By: ___________________________________ 
      Chair, County Council 

 

      ATTEST: _______________________ 

      DATE:  _______________________ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
 
______________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 14                                                                
 

24.a

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 IR

L
 N

at
io

n
al

 E
st

u
ar

y 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 In
te

rl
o

ca
l A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 N

o
. 2

01
5 

- 
01

07
  :

 IR
L

 N
E

P
 U

p
d

at
e)



BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 

     By: ___________________________________ 
      Robin Fisher, Chair 
      Board of County Commissioners 
 

      ATTEST: _______________________ 

      DATE:  _______________________ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 
______________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 15                                                                
 

24.a

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 IR

L
 N

at
io

n
al

 E
st

u
ar

y 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 In
te

rl
o

ca
l A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 N

o
. 2

01
5 

- 
01

07
  :

 IR
L

 N
E

P
 U

p
d

at
e)



     INDIAN RIVER COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 

     By: ___________________________________ 
      Chair, Board of County Commissioners 
 

      ATTEST: _______________________ 

      DATE:  _______________________ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
 

______________________  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 16                                                                
 

24.a

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 IR

L
 N

at
io

n
al

 E
st

u
ar

y 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 In
te

rl
o

ca
l A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 N

o
. 2

01
5 

- 
01

07
  :

 IR
L

 N
E

P
 U

p
d

at
e)



     ST. LUCIE COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 

     By: ___________________________________ 
      Chair, Board of County Commissioners 
 

      ATTEST: _______________________ 

      DATE:  _______________________ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
 

______________________  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 17                                                                
 

24.a

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 IR

L
 N

at
io

n
al

 E
st

u
ar

y 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 In
te

rl
o

ca
l A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 N

o
. 2

01
5 

- 
01

07
  :

 IR
L

 N
E

P
 U

p
d

at
e)



     MARTIN COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 

     By: ___________________________________ 
      Ed Fielding, Chair, Board of County 

Commissioners 
 

      ATTEST: _______________________ 

      DATE:  _______________________ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
 

______________________   
Michael D. Durham 
County Attorney 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 18                                                                
 

24.a

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 IR

L
 N

at
io

n
al

 E
st

u
ar

y 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 In
te

rl
o

ca
l A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 N

o
. 2

01
5 

- 
01

07
  :

 IR
L

 N
E

P
 U

p
d

at
e)



FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL 
PROTECTION 

 

 

     By: ___________________________________  
      Jonathan P. Steverson, Secretary 
 

      ATTEST: _______________________ 

      DATE:  _______________________ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
 

______________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 19                                                                
 

24.a

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 IR

L
 N

at
io

n
al

 E
st

u
ar

y 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 In
te

rl
o

ca
l A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 N

o
. 2

01
5 

- 
01

07
  :

 IR
L

 N
E

P
 U

p
d

at
e)



ST. JOHNS RIVER WATER MANAGEMENT 
DISTRICT 

 
 

     By: ___________________________________ 
      Hans G. Tanzler III, Executive Director 
      (per 9-9-14 delegation) 
 

      ATTEST: _____________________________ 
       William Congdon, General Counsel 

      DATE: _______________________ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 
AND LEGALITY: 

 
______________________ 
William Abrams 
Assistant General Counsel 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 20                                                                
 

24.a

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 IR

L
 N

at
io

n
al

 E
st

u
ar

y 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 In
te

rl
o

ca
l A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 N

o
. 2

01
5 

- 
01

07
  :

 IR
L

 N
E

P
 U

p
d

at
e)



SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT 
DISTRICT 

 

 

     By: ___________________________________ 
      Chair, Governing Board 
 
 

      ATTEST: _____________________ 

      DATE:  _____________________ 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
 
______________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 21                                                                
 

24.a

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 IR

L
 N

at
io

n
al

 E
st

u
ar

y 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 In
te

rl
o

ca
l A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 N

o
. 2

01
5 

- 
01

07
  :

 IR
L

 N
E

P
 U

p
d

at
e)



EXHIBIT A 
 

Goals of the Indian River Lagoon National Estuary Program1 

1. To attain and maintain water and sediment of sufficient quality to support a healthy 

estuarine lagoon ecosystem;  

2. To attain and maintain a functioning, healthy ecosystem which supports endangered and 

threatened species, fisheries, commerce and recreation;  

3. To achieve heightened public awareness and coordinated interagency management of the 

Indian River Lagoon ecosystem; and 

4. To identify and develop long-term funding sources for prioritized projects and programs 

to preserve, protect, restore and enhance the Indian River Lagoon. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1 The goals set forth above are contained within the CCMP in effect upon the date of this Agreement.  In the event 
the goals in the CCMP are modified in the future, the new goals will replace those contained within this Exhibit A. 

 22                                                                
 

                                                           

24.a

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 IR

L
 N

at
io

n
al

 E
st

u
ar

y 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 In
te

rl
o

ca
l A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 N

o
. 2

01
5 

- 
01

07
  :

 IR
L

 N
E

P
 U

p
d

at
e)



EXHIBIT B 
 

Address List 
If to Volusia County: 
  
 County of Volusia 
 County Manager 

123 W. Indiana Avenue, Room 301 
DeLand, Florida  32720 
(386) 736-5920 (telephone) 
(386) 736-5707 (facsimile) 
JDinneen@volusia.org 
 
Copy to: 
County of Volusia 
County Attorney 
123 W. Indiana Avenue, Room 301 
DeLand, Florida 32720 
(386)736-5950 (telephone) 
(386)736-5990 (facsimile) 
DEckert@volusia.org  

 
If to Brevard County: 
 

Natural Resources Management Department 
Attn:  Natural Resources Management Office Director 
Viera Government Center 
2725 Judge Fran Jamieson Way, Bldg. A 
Viera, Florida 32940 
 
Copy to: 
Stockton Whitten, County Manager 
Stockton.whitten@brevardcounty.us  

 
If to Indian River County: 
 

Indian River County 
County Administrator 
1801 27th Street 
Vero Beach, Florida 32960-3388 
 
Copy to: 
County Attorney’s Office 
1801 27th Street 
Vero Beach, Florida 32960-3388 

 23                                                                
 

24.a

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 IR

L
 N

at
io

n
al

 E
st

u
ar

y 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 In
te

rl
o

ca
l A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 N

o
. 2

01
5 

- 
01

07
  :

 IR
L

 N
E

P
 U

p
d

at
e)

mailto:JDinneen@volusia.org
mailto:DEckert@volusia.org
mailto:Stockton.whitten@brevardcounty.us


 
If to St. Lucie County: 
 

St. Lucie County 
County Administrator 
2300 Virginia Avenue  
Fort Pierce, Florida 34982 

Copy to: 
St. Lucie County 
County Attorney's Office 
2300 Virginia Avenue  
Fort Pierce, Florida 34982 

 mcintyred@stlucieco.org 
 
If to Martin County: 
 

County Administrator 
Martin County Administrative Center 
2401 SE Monterey Road 
Stuart, Florida 34996 

Copy to: 
County Attorney's Office 
Martin County Administrative Center 
2401 SE Monterey Road 
Stuart, Florida 34994 

If to Florida Department of Environmental Protection: 
 

Agency Clerk 
Office of General Counsel 
3900 Commonwealth Blvd., MS 35 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000 
(850) 245-2212 (telephone) 
(850) 245-2298 (facsimile) 
Agency.Clerk@dep.state.fl.us 
 

 24                                                                
 

24.a

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 IR

L
 N

at
io

n
al

 E
st

u
ar

y 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 In
te

rl
o

ca
l A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 N

o
. 2

01
5 

- 
01

07
  :

 IR
L

 N
E

P
 U

p
d

at
e)

mailto:mcintyred@stlucieco.org
mailto:Agency.Clerk@dep.state.fl.us


If to St. Johns River Water Management District: 
 

Executive Director 
St. Johns River Water Management District 
P.O. Box 1429 
Palatka, Florida 32178-1429 
 (386) 329-4125 (facsimile) 
HTanzler@sjrwmd.com 
 
Ground Deliveries: 
4049 Reid Street 
Palatka, Florida 32177 
  

If to South Florida Water Management District: 
 
South Florida Water Management District 
Attn:      District Clerk 
3301 Gun Club Road, MSC 3110 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33406 
 (561) 682-6200 (facsimile) 
districtclerk@sfwmd.gov  
 
Copy to: 
South Florida Water Management District 
Attn:      Daniel DeLisi, Chief of Staff 
3301 Gun Club Road, MSC 3110 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33406 
ddelisi@sfwmd.gov 

 25                                                                
 

24.a

Packet Pg. 88

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 IR

L
 N

at
io

n
al

 E
st

u
ar

y 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 In
te

rl
o

ca
l A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 N

o
. 2

01
5 

- 
01

07
  :

 IR
L

 N
E

P
 U

p
d

at
e)

mailto:HTanzler@sjrwmd.com
mailto:districtclerk@sfwmd.gov
mailto:ddelisi@sfwmd.gov


M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 
TO:  Governing Board Members 
 
FROM: Terrie Bates, Director, Water Resources Division  
 
DATE:  January 15, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: Status Update on the Kissimmee Basin Water Reservations Rule Development 
 
 
Summary 
Staff will provide a status update on the ongoing rule development process associated with the 
Kissimmee Basin Water Reservations. An integral component of the Kissimmee River 
Restoration Project (KRRP) is the protection of water for fish and wildlife. The water identified 
for fish and wildlife will be protected through a water reservation as authorized by Florida law. 
The KRRP will restore over 40 square miles of river/floodplain ecosystem including 43 miles of 
meandering river channel and 27,000 acres of wetlands and is a joint partnership between the 
District and U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE).  Consumptive use permitting rules for 
potential allocation of water supplies above that needed for the protection of fish and wildlife are 
proposed and may play a role in developing future water supply for the Central Florida Water 
Initiative area.  
 
Staff Recommendation 
No recommendation needed - status update on rule development process. 
 
Additional Background 
District staff received authorization to originally initiate rule development in June 2008.  Several 
rule development workshops were held from 2008-2009 and a draft technical was produced in 
March 2009. A peer review of this technical document was completed in April 2009. This initial 
rule development effort was suspended in 2009 to coordinate with other ongoing regulation 
schedule evaluations for the Upper Chain of Lakes. The Governing Board authorized staff to re-
commence this rule development effort on June 12, 2014. A total of two public workshops have 
been held since June 2014. The anticipated completion date to adopt the water reservation rule 
is December 2015.  
 
The Kissimmee Basin Water Reservations are listed on the 2015 Priority Water Body List and 
Schedule. This Priority List was approved by the Governing Board and presented to the Water 
Resources Advisory Commission on November 6, 2014. The Kissimmee Basin water 
reservations was also presented to the Central Florida Water Initiative Steering Committee on 
April 25, 2014 and the Kissimmee Basin reservations is a standing agenda item for each 
monthly CFWI Steering Committee Meeting.  
 
Core Mission and Strategic Priorities 
One of the District’s strategic priorities is to restore ecological integrity to the Kissimmee River 
and its floodplain. The proposed water reservation rule supports this strategic priority by 
preventing water needed for the protection of fish and wildlife from being allocated to 
consumptive uses.   
 
Funding Source 

25

Packet Pg. 89



Approximately $55,000 is budgeted for FY15 to complete a statement of estimated regulatory 
costs (SERC) to estimate the economic impact to small businesses to implement this new rule. 
 
Staff Contact and/or Presenter 
Terrie Bates, tbates@sfwmd.gov, 561-682-6952  

25

Packet Pg. 90



M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 
TO:  Governing Board Members 
 
FROM: Jeff Kivett, Division Director 
 
DATE:  January 15, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: IT Shelters Replacement, Central Package 
 
 
Summary 

The District operates and maintains an expansive water management network of canals and 
levees, including pump stations and water control structures.  The data obtained from this 
infrastructure is relayed via communication towers and network systems. As communication 
towers and equipment are being upgraded, shelters at four (4) locations including Clewiston 
Field Station, West Palm Beach Field Station, S5A Pump Station, and ACME Tower Site, need 
to be replaced as the existing shelters do not have the capacity to allow for further expansion to 
accommodate any equipment upgrades. 
 
The project is located in Palm Beach County and Hendry County.  It consists of installing five (5) 
precast concrete buildings and integrating or installing emergency power to these new buildings.  
The IT equipment integration will be completed by the District.   
 
Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval to enter into a 300 day contract in the amount of $2,344,000.00 with 
Florida Design Contractors, Inc., the lowest responsive and responsible bidder, for the 
construction of the Information Technology Shelters Replacement Project Central Package. 
 
Core Mission and Strategic Priorities 

One of the District’s most critical missions is flood control.  The Information Technology Shelters 
Replacement Project will replace and upgrade the District’s communication network and provide 
improved reliability to support the flood control mission. The District has access to the project 
lands, completed the design, and received the permits for this Information Technology Shelters 
Replacement Project Central Package.      

 
Funding Source 
The lowest responsive and responsible bidder is Florida Design Contractors, Inc. for 
$2,344,000.00, for which ad valorem funds are budgeted in FY15.   
 
Staff Contact 
John P. Mitnik, P.E., Bureau Chief, Engineering & Construction Bureau 
561-682-2679 / jmitnik@sfwmd.gov 

26

Packet Pg. 91



SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

Resolution No. 2015 - 0108  

 

A Resolution of the Governing Board of the South Florida Water 
Management District to authorize entering into a 300 day contract 
with Florida Design Contractors, Inc., the lowest responsive and 
responsible bidder, for the Information Technology Shelters 
Replacement Project Central Package, in the amount of 
$2,344,000.00, of which ad valorem funds are budgeted in FY15; 
providing an effective date.  (Contract Number 4600003192) 
 

 

WHEREAS, the Information Technology Shelters Replacement Project Central 
Package is a component of the District’s communication network upgrade.  These new 
facilities will provide the capacity to accommodate equipment upgrade in the future; and 
  

WHEREAS, construction of the Information Technology Shelters Replacement 
Project Central Package is required in providing improved reliability of the District’s 
communication network to support the flood control mission; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Governing Board of the South Florida Water Management District 

deems it necessary, appropriate, and in the public interest to award a  300 day contract 

to Florida Design Contractors, Inc. (Contract Number  4600003192), for the construction 

of the Information Technology Shelters Replacement Project Central Package, in the 

amount of $2,344,000.00; 

 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE 
SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT: 
 

Section 1. The Governing Board of the South Florida Water Management District 

hereby approves the 300 day contract with Florida Design Contractors, Inc. (Contract  

Number   4600003192), for the construction of the Information Technology Shelters 

Replacement Project Central Package, in the amount of $2,344,000.00. 

 

Section 2. This project supports the District’s flood control mission. 
 

Section 3. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 
 
 

PASSED and ADOPTED this 15th day of January, 2015. 
 

26

Packet Pg. 92



 
 
 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
_________________________ 
District Clerk/Secretary 

SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT 
DISTRICT, BY ITS GOVERNING BOARD 
By: 
___________________________________ 

Chairman 
 
Legal form approved: 
By: 
___________________________________ 

Office of Counsel 
 
Print name: 
 
___________________________________ 
 

 

26

Packet Pg. 93



M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 
TO:  Governing Board Members 
 
FROM: Jeff Kivett, Division Director 
 
DATE:  January 15, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: C-43 Early Start Demolition and Berm 
 
 

Summary 
The Caloosahatchee River C-43 West Basin Storage Reservoir project was authorized 
in the Water Resources and Reform Development Act (WRRDA) 2014 facilitating the 
ability of the state to move forward with early start construction of the authorized project. 
The C-43 Early Start project will initiate efforts to begin realizing the benefits of the 
Caloosahatchee River (C43) West Basin Storage Reservoir. The Early Start project will 
consist of a temporary storage facility located in the southwest corner of the Reservoir 
project site with an objective to provide interim shallow storage on the site.   
 
This phase of the Early Start project involves demolition of existing features (buried 
pipes, underdrains, culverts and above ground facilities) along an east - west alignment 
that is approximately 15,000 feet long and approximately 100 feet wide.  Within the 
same footprint, this phase includes the construction of the north berm, which will be 
approximately 3 miles in length and will provide the northern boundary for the 3,500 
acre impoundment.  The height of the berm will range between 3 feet to approximately 8 
feet and provide a maximum resulting pool depth of 4 feet.   
 
Staff Recommendation 
Board approval is requested at the January Governing Board meeting to initiate 
construction of the north berm of the C-43 Early Start Project. Not implementing the 
Caloosahatchee River (C-43) West Basin Storage Reservoir - Early Start Project will 
delay the ability to capture runoff from the basin and regulatory releases from Lake 
Okeechobee in order to improve timing, quantity, and quality of freshwater flows to the 
river and estuary. 
 
Additional Background 
The Select Committee on Indian River Lagoon and Lake Okeechobee Basin (IRLLOB) 
final report dated November 8, 2013 states the following: “Water storage in the 
Caloosahatchee basin is critical to capture runoff from the basin and regulatory releases 
from Lake Okeechobee. The Caloosahatchee (C-43) West Basin Storage Reservoir 
project will improve timing, quantity, and quality of freshwater flows to the river and 
estuary. The project is included in the WRDA bills of each house of Congress. We must 
include the funding of this project now so that Florida is ready when Congress 
authorizes this important watershed storage project. The Committee recommends 
appropriating $15 million to support construction of the C-43 basin project. Additionally, 

27

Packet Pg. 94



in anticipation of final passage of a WRDA bill, the state should include the C-43 
reservoir project in Florida’s Long-Range Financial Outlook to reduce any delay in 
funding this critical project once it is authorized and receives federal funding. Florida’s 
share of the project cost is estimated at $289 million.”  The final GAA appropriated an 
additional $3 million in operational funds for the Caloosahatchee River (C-43) West 
Basin Storage Reservoir Early Start Project. 
 
Core Mission and Strategic Priorities 
The C-43 Early Start Demolition and Berm supports the District core mission of 
Environmental Enhancement through capturing excessive flows to the Caloosahatchee 
Estuary and supporting the minimum flows and levels.  
 
Funding Source 
Funding in the amount of $1,937,860.00 in dedicated funds (Save Our Everglades Trust 
Fund and/or State Appropriations) are budgeted in FY15. 
 
Staff Contact and/or Presenter 
John P. Mitnik, P.E., Bureau Chief, Engineering and Construction Bureau 
561-682-2679 / jmitnik@sfwmd.gov 

27

Packet Pg. 95



SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

Resolution No. 2015 - 0109  

 

A Resolution of the Governing Board of the South Florida Water 
Management District to authorize entering into a 425 day contract 
with Mitchell & Stark Construction Co., Inc. for the C-43 Reservoir 
Early Start Demolition and Berm Construction Project, in the amount 
of $1,937,860.00 for which $1,937,860.00 of dedicated funds (Save 
Our Everglades Trust Fund and/or State Appropriations) are 
budgeted in FY15; providing an effective date. (Contract number 
4600003193) 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Governing Board of the South Florida Water Management 

District deems it necessary, appropriate and in the public interest to authorize entering 
into a 425 day contract with Mitchell & Stark Construction Co., Inc. the lowest 
responsive and responsible bidder for the construction of the C-43 Reservoir Early Start 
Demolition and Berm Construction Project, in the amount of $1,937,860.00 
  
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE 
SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT: 
 
Section 1. The Governing Board of the South Florida Water Management District 

hereby approves the 425 day contract with Mitchell & Stark Construction 
Co., Inc., for the construction of the C-43 Reservoir Early Start Demolition 
and Berm Project, in the amount of $1,937,860.00 

 
Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 
 
 
PASSED and ADOPTED this 15th day of January, 2015. 
 

27

Packet Pg. 96



 
 
 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
_________________________ 
District Clerk/Secretary 

SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT 
DISTRICT, BY ITS GOVERNING BOARD 
By: 
___________________________________ 

Chairman 
 
Legal form approved: 
By: 
___________________________________ 

Office of Counsel 
 
Print name: 
 
___________________________________ 
 

 

27

Packet Pg. 97



M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 
TO:  Governing Board Members 
 
FROM: Ben Ward, Director, Real Estate Division 
 
DATE:  January 15, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: 2015 Annual Update Contained in Chapter 6A, Volume II of the South Florida 
Environmental Report 
 
 
Summary: 
 
Highlights 
The 2015 SFER - Volume II, Chapter 6A presents the 2015 Florida Forever Work Plan. This 
chapter identifies projects eligible for funding under the Florida Forever Act (Section 259.105, 
Florida Statutes) as well as projects eligible for land acquisition funding from state-appropriated 
accounts or trust funds under Section 373.139(3)(c), Florida Statutes. Land acquisition activity 
during FY2014 is also provided in this chapter, while the land acquisition status of Florida 
Forever/Save Our Rivers (FF/SOR) projects is presented in Chapter 6B of this volume. 
 
Work Plan Updates 
There were 46 eligible projects identified under the Florida Forever Program, Northern 
Everglades and Estuaries Protection Program, Comprehensive Everglades Restoration Plan, 
and other water resource projects.  

 
Four of the projects were added for implementation of Restoration Strategies: 

 Stormwater Treatment Area 1W Expansion 

 Lainhart & Masten Dam Conveyance 

 Bolles Canal (G-341)  

 G-716 Structure Expansion (S-375) 
 

 Several project modifications were made: 

 The Indian River Lagoon - South, Palmar Complex - Natural Storage and Treatment 
Area feature was updated in accordance with the December 11, 2014 adopted 
amendment to 2014 Florida Forever Work Plan modifying the project boundary.  

 The C-111 South Dade Project boundary was modified to incorporate approximately 
6,020 acres associated the Southern Glades, FF/SOR project and approximately 5,274 
acres associated within the Frog Pond, FF/SOR project for the purpose of Everglades 
restoration and flood protection. 

 The Sam Jones/Abiake Prairie has been established as a FF/SOR project, using 
approximately 15,000 acres of previously acquired District-owned lands, to provide 
hydrologic benefits to groundwater, surface water and water supply, once the lands are 
restored as part of the C-139 Annex Restoration Project. 

30

Packet Pg. 98



 
 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Adopt the SFWMD Florida Forever Work Plan, 2015 Annual Update, contained in Chapter 6A, 
Volume II of the 2015 South Florida Environmental Report, providing an effective date. 
 
 
Additional Background 
 
FY2014 Land Highlights 

 SFWMD obtained 3,441 acres of land interests through donations, mitigation, and 
expenditures, totaling $5.21 million. The acquisitions were made with District, state, and 
local government funds. 

 As part of a broad effort to maximize its resources to meet mission-critical 
responsibilities, In September 2014 the District completed the first phase of a 
comprehensive land assessment process to ensure that each fee owned parcel is being 
put to its most effective use. 

 The second phase involving thorough due diligence research on each of the 21,357 
acres of land recommended and approved for further evaluation as potential surplus or 
exchange is currently in progress. 

 
Florida Forever Funding Goals 

 Enhance the coordination and completion of land acquisition projects 

 Increase the protection of Florida’s biodiversity at the species, natural community, and 
landscape levels 

 Protect, restore, and maintain the quality and natural functions of land, water, and 
wetland systems of the state 

 Ensure that sufficient quantities of water are available to meet the current and future 
needs of natural systems and the citizens of the state 

 Increase natural resource-based public recreational and educational opportunities 

 Preserve significant archaeological or historic sites 

 Increase the amount of forestland available for sustainable management of natural 
resources 

 Increase the amount of open space available in urban areas 
 
Funding Source: 
The Plan identifies projects eligible for funding under the Florida Forever Act, as well as projects 
eligible for state acquisition monies from the appropriate account or trust fund under Section 
373.139, Florida Statutes. Additionally, a summary of land acquisition activity as of September 
30, 2014 is provided. Details on the District’s land management activities are presented in 
Volume II, Chapter 6B. 
 
 
Staff Contact and/or Presenter: 
Ray Palmer, rpalmer@sfwmd.gov <mailto:rpalmer@sfwmd.gov>, ext. 2246 

30

Packet Pg. 99



SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

Resolution No. 2015 - 0110  

 

A Resolution of the Governing Board of the South Florida Water 
Management District adopting the SFWMD Florida Forever Work 
Plan, 2015 Annual Update, contained in Chapter 6A, Volume II of the 
2015 South Florida Environmental Report; providing an effective 
date.  

 
WHEREAS,  pursuant to Chapter 2005-36, amending Section 373.199, F.S., by 

March 1st of each year, as part of the consolidated water management annual report 
required by  S. 373.199(7), the South Florida Water Management District is required to 
file a yearly update of the South Florida Water Management District Florida Forever 
Work Plan to further the goals of the Florida Forever Act and to submit the Work Plan to 
the Secretary of the Florida Department of Environmental Protection, the Governor, the 
President of the Florida Senate, and the Speaker of the Florida House of 
Representatives; and 
  

WHEREAS, the South Florida Water Management District Florida Forever Work 
Plan, 2015 Annual Update is contained in Chapter 6A, Volume II of the 2015 South 
Florida Environmental Report; and 
  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 373.139, F.S., a public hearing was duly held 
with regard to the intention of the South Florida Water Management District to adopt the 
South Florida Water Management District Florida Forever Work Plan, 2015 Annual 
Update; and 
  

WHEREAS, on January 15, 2015, the South Florida Water Management District 
Florida Forever Work Plan, 2015 Annual Update, Chapter 6A, Volume II of the 2015 
South Florida Environmental Report, was presented to the Governing Board of the 
South Florida Water Management District adopting the Work Plan 2015 Update;  

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE 
SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT: 
 
Section 1. The Governing Board of the South Florida Water Management District 
hereby adopts the South Florida Water Management District Florida Forever Work Plan, 
2015 Annual Update, contained in Chapter 6A, Volume II of the 2015 South Florida 
Environmental Report. 
 
Section 2. A copy of the report will be made available at 

<http://www.sfwmd.gov/sfer>. 
 
Section 3. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 
 

30

Packet Pg. 100



PASSED and ADOPTED this 15th day of January, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
_________________________ 
District Clerk/Secretary 

SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT 
DISTRICT, BY ITS GOVERNING BOARD 
By: 
___________________________________ 

Chairman 
 
Legal form approved: 
By: 
___________________________________ 

Office of Counsel 
 
Print name: 
 
___________________________________ 
 

 

30

Packet Pg. 101



M E M O R A N D U M

TO: Governing Board Members

FROM: Doug Bergstrom, Director, Administrative Services Division

DATE: January 15, 2015

SUBJECT: Monthly Financial Statement – November 2014

The attached financial status report is provided for your review. This report provides an
overview of District financial activity and includes revenue collections by source and
expenditures by program. Also attached is a summary in the State Program format in
compliance with Chapter 373.536(4)(e) F.S., requiring each District to provide a monthly
financial statement in the form and manner prescribed by the Department of Financial Services
to the District’s Governing Board and make such monthly financial statement available for public
access on its website. This unaudited financial statement is provided as of November 30, 2014,
with 16.7% the fiscal year complete.

Schedule of Sources and Uses – This financial statement compares revenues received and
encumbrances/expenditures made against the District’s FY15 $811.6 million consumable
budget. Encumbrances represent orders for goods and services which have not yet been
received.

• With the fiscal year 16.7% complete, 10.5% of the District’s budgeted operating revenue
(excludes fund balance) has been collected. The primary source of operating revenue
received to date is ad valorem. Ad Valorem taxes comprise 50.1% of the budgeted
operating revenues and drive collections based on the annual cycle of the property tax
bill. The remaining revenue source is fund balance which represents the amount of prior
year residual revenue that is budgeted in the current year and has already been received.
Total FY15 sources collected were 41.4% of budget or $336.3 million.

• 15.3% of budgeted Ad Valorem tax revenue and 5.4% of Agricultural Privilege tax
revenue have been collected to date. Ad Valorem and Agricultural Privilege tax
collections peak November through January driven by the mailing of property tax bills in
October and the 4.0% maximum discount available when paid in full by November 30.
These taxes are budgeted at a discounted rate of 95.0% to allow for the discounts
property owners may take advantage of through early payment options. Historical ad
valorem trends for the past five years through November average a collection rate of
10.8%.

• There is $4 million in budgeted intergovernmental revenue in ad valorem funds, which
includes $1 million in Alligator Alley toll revenue, $2.4 million in USACE reimbursements,
$315K for gate overhaul from other water management districts and $304K in DEP
reimbursements for aquatic plant control activities. Actual revenues earned as of the
end of November amount to $2.7 million.

• There is $200.4 million in budgeted intergovernmental revenue in dedicated funds,
comprised of $132.4 million in SOETF reimbursements, $20 million in Florida Forever
Funds, $18.8 million state appropriations for C-43, Loxahatchee River Initiatives and St.
Lucie Issues Team, $8.7 million in reimbursements from the Florida Fish and Wildlife

31.a

Packet Pg. 102

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
n

th
ly

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

t 
M

em
o

 N
o

ve
m

b
er

 F
Y

15
  (

22
26

 :
 M

o
n

th
ly

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

t 
- 

N
o

ve
m

b
er

 2
01

4)



Governing Board Members
January 15, 2015
Page 2

Conservation Commission (FWC) for aquatic/invasive plant control and $15K for Model
Lands, $7.6 million in Alligator Alley tolls, $6.9 million in WMLTF reimbursements for debt
service expenses related to bonds and $3.9 million for the Corbett Levee, reimbursement
of federal revenues of $1 million for St. Lucie Watershed Water Farming and $497K for
Hillsboro Canal Project, $295K from Indian River Lagoon and Everglades License Tag
proceeds, and $199K reimbursement from FDEP for water quality studies, $55K for Wash
Model Upgrade. FY15 actual revenue as of November amounts to $1.7 million.
Reimbursement requests are submitted to the state based on actual expenses incurred
and usually occur later in the fiscal year.

• Budgeted Ad Valorem Investment Earnings is $3.25 million for FY15. Revenue received
in all funds to date is $923K; $685K or 21.1% of investment earnings in ad valorem funds
and $238K in dedicated funds.

• Lease revenue represents collections from 87 active leases encompassing 109K acres of
real property owned by the District. The timing of revenue received is based on the fee
schedules within the agreements – monthly, semi-annual, or annual payments – and
these varying timing issues impact the collection rate. The District has received $736K
which represents 26.6% of the $2.8 million budgeted lease revenue. The use of lease
revenue collected for lands purchased with State or Federal funds is restricted based on
the guidelines in the acquisition or grant agreement.

• There is $9.1 million in budgeted permit fee revenue, which includes water use permits
($749K), right of way permits ($68K), Environmental Resource Permit (ERP) application
fees ($2 million), and wetland mitigation fees for C-139 Annex Restoration ($6.3 million).
FY15 revenue of $3.6 million received includes $94K from water use permits, $514K from
ERP Application Fees, $3 million in unbudgeted revenues from Lake Belt Mitigation fees,
and $16K from other applications and fees.

• Other budgeted revenue includes $210K in civil penalties and enforcement fees and
$251K in miscellaneous revenues such as cash discounts, insurance reimbursements,
refunds for prior year expenditures, and sale of recycled oil and scrap metal. Fiscal year
collections amount to $82K at the end of November, representing 17.9% of the budgeted
$461K.

• Sale of District Property represents the sale of real property and land. This conservative
budget of $250K due to the uncertainty involved. FY15 revenues received total $37K,
representing 14.8% of the budget.

• Self-insurance premiums represent contributions from the District, active, separated and
retired District employees to the self-funded health benefits program. Also included is the
District’s contribution to the workers compensation, auto and general liability self-
insurance program. Contributions of $4.5 million received through November equate to
13.2% of the $33.8 million budget.

31.a

Packet Pg. 103

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
n

th
ly

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

t 
M

em
o

 N
o

ve
m

b
er

 F
Y

15
  (

22
26

 :
 M

o
n

th
ly

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

t 
- 

N
o

ve
m

b
er

 2
01

4)



Governing Board Members
January 15, 2015
Page 3

Expenditure and Encumbrance Status

As of November 30, 2014, with 16.7% of the year complete, the District has expended $79.0
million or 10.5% and has encumbered $197.6 million or 26.3% of its non-reserve budget. The
District has obligated (encumbrances plus expenditures) $276.6 million or 36.8% of its non-
reserve budget.

Summary of Expenditures and Encumbrances by Program – This financial statement
illustrates the effort to date for each of the District’s program areas. Provided below is a
discussion of the primary uses of funds by program.

• The Comprehensive Everglades Restoration Plan Program has obligated 41.9% and
expended 1% of their $200 million budget. Principal expenditures include personnel
services ($1 million), contractual services ($470K), operating ($54K), and capital outlay
($424K). Capital outlay encumbrances ($77.1 million) and contractual services
encumbrances ($4.7 million) include the following projects: C-43 Basin Storage
Reservoir, C-44 Reservoir/STA Project, L-8 Flow Equalization Basin, Southern CREW,
Biscayne Bay Coastal Wetlands L-31 East Flow Way, Loxahatchee Impoundment
Landscape Assessment, Picayune Strand, WCA3 Decompartmentalization and Sheetflow
Equalization, Ten Mile Creek, Lake Okeechobee Water Retention – Nubbin Slough,
CERP Monitoring and Assessment, Modified Water Deliveries & South Dade C-111
Project, CERP Water Quality Studies, and CERP Data Management.

• The Coastal Watersheds Program has obligated 31.7% and expended 4.4% of their
total $23.9 million budget. Principal expenditures include personnel services ($625K),
contractual services ($308K), operating ($29K), and capital outlay ($84K). Contractual
services encumbrances primarily consist of regional projects ($4.4 million) including: St.
Lucie River and Indian River Lagoon Initiatives, Indian River Lagoon License Tag
projects, Lakes Park Restoration, and Big Cypress Basin Stormwater Projects; remaining
contractual encumbrances ($1.3 million) include: water quality monitoring for Indian River
Lagoon, St. Lucie River, and Loxahatchee River; St. Lucie and Caloosahatchee River
Watersheds nutrient study; water quality monitoring, modeling, nutrient, ecological, and
hydrological studies for the Florida Bay and Coastal Wetlands Project; Dissolved Organic
Nitrogen Bioassay in Mesocosm for C-43 WQ Testing Facility project; Lake Trafford
monitoring; public process to develop a restoration vision of the Caloosahatchee River
and Estuary; hydro model for Naples and Rookery Bay, and Collier County water quality
monitoring. Capital outlay encumbrances ($849K) are for the Lake Hicpochee Hydrologic
Enhancement project.

• The District Everglades Program has obligated 41.2% and expended 4.5% of their total
$111.2 million budget. Principal expenditures include personnel services ($2.8 million),
contractual services ($693K), operating ($1.3 million), and capital outlay ($238K).
Contractual services encumbrances ($7.1 million) primarily include the operations
monitoring, maintenance, and repair of Stormwater Treatment Areas (STA), Lainhart &
Masten Dam project, Restoration Strategies Science Plan projects, STA 1W Expansion,
Diesel Oxidation Catalyst project, STA Structure Inspection Program, S-5AS Divide, and
the Everglades Regulation Source Control. Operating encumbrances ($472K) are in
support of the overall operations and the maintenance of the STA’s. Capital outlay
encumbrances ($33.3 million) include work on Everglades Agricultural Area A1 Flow
Equalization Basin, STA 1W Expansion, G-716 Structure Expansion, and L-8 Divide.

31.a

Packet Pg. 104

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
n

th
ly

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

t 
M

em
o

 N
o

ve
m

b
er

 F
Y

15
  (

22
26

 :
 M

o
n

th
ly

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

t 
- 

N
o

ve
m

b
er

 2
01

4)



Governing Board Members
January 15, 2015
Page 4

• The Kissimmee Watershed Program has obligated 45.0% and expended 15.5% of their
total $31.5 million budget. Principal expenditures include personnel services ($209K),
contractual services ($64K), operating ($4K), and capital outlay ($4.6 million).
Contractual services and operating encumbrances ($581K) primarily consist of
Kissimmee River Restoration Evaluation ($264K), the Oak Creek project ($38K), the
Rolling Meadows project ($4K), hydrologic monitoring ($16K), Orange County Area
Stormwater Improvements ($231K), land acquisition related costs, environmental risk
assessments, engineering services, and electrical services ($28K). Capital outlay
encumbrances ($8.7 million) are primarily for the Kissimmee River Restoration land
acquisition and associated costs.

• The Lake Okeechobee Program has obligated 23.7% and expended 4.3% of their total
$33.1 million budget. Principal expenditures include personnel services ($670K),
contractual services ($689K), operating ($21K), and capital outlay ($53K). Contractual
services and operating encumbrances ($6.2 million) primarily consist of Dispersed Water
Management (DWM) and Florida Ranchland Environmental Services Projects ($3.5
million), Northshore Navigation Canal project ($1.1 million), Lake Okeechobee Watershed
Pre-Drainage Characterization study ($141K), Lake Istokpoga Marsh project ($1.1
million), water quality assessments and reporting ($34K), computer hardware/software
maintenance and support ($279K), and utilities ($63K). Capital outlay encumbrances
($208K) primarily consist of pump stations for DWM temporary storage opportunities
($201K) and computer hardware ($7K).

• The Land Stewardship Program has obligated 17.2% and expended 4.8% of their total
$40.5 million budget. Principal expenditures include personnel services ($652K),
contractual services ($384K), operating ($895K), and capital outlay ($16K). Contractual
services and operating encumbrances ($4.7 million) include the maintenance of
vegetation and exotic plant control, work on the C-139 Annex Mitigation project, provision
of law enforcement services, and management of District owned lands and facilities.
Capital outlay encumbrances ($284K) include work on the C-139 Annex Mitigation project
and Rough Island.

• The Mission Support Program has obligated 26.8% and expended 18.8% of their total
$42.9 million budget. Principal expenditures include personnel services ($3.3 million),
contractual services ($958K), and operating ($3.7 Million). Contractual services
encumbrances ($1.6 million) include legal and technical support services, IT consulting
services and hardware / software, and systems maintenance for the fiscal year, and
facilities maintenance and repair services. Operating encumbrances ($1.8 million)
include utilities and space rental. Capital outlay encumbrances ($114K) include computer
hardware and vehicles.

• The Modeling and Science Support Program has obligated 26.3% and expended
15.6% of their total $13.5 million budget. Principal expenditures include personnel
services ($1.6 million), contractual services ($435K), operating ($50K), and capital outlay
($1K). Contractual services and operating encumbrances ($1.4 million) include water
quality monitoring, sampling and analytical services, field equipment maintenance,
technical assistance and peer reviews, computer hardware/software maintenance and
consulting, and utilities.

31.a

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
n

th
ly

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

t 
M

em
o

 N
o

ve
m

b
er

 F
Y

15
  (

22
26

 :
 M

o
n

th
ly

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

t 
- 

N
o

ve
m

b
er

 2
01

4)



Governing Board Members
January 15, 2015
Page 5

• The Operations and Maintenance Program has obligated 32.9% and expended 9.9%
of their total $168.0 million budget. Principal expenditures include personnel services
($8.7 million), contractual services ($2.6 million), operating ($3.7 million), and capital
outlay ($1.6 million). Encumbrances for contractual services and capital outlay ($37.0
million) primarily relate to the O&M capital program for maintenance and repair of existing
water management system canals and water control structures including, Diesel
Oxidation Catalyst Installation, C-4 Canal Bank Improvements, S-5A Hardening and
Service Bridge Refurbishment, BCB Field Station Design/Build, Miller Weir #3, Hillsboro
Canal Bank Repairs, S-9 Access Bridge Replacement, S-6 Tower Replacement, North
Shore Trash Rake Project, S-13 Repower and Automation, G-94 A-D Refurbishment and
Repairs, S-150 Replacement and Automation, G-151 Structure Replacement, C&SF
Structure Inspection Program, NAVD88 Vertical Datum, S-9A Roof Replacement, S-2, S-
3, S-4 Service Bridge Refurbishment, and G-58 Planning & Design. Operating
encumbrances ($1.7 million) are primarily associated with field station daily operations
and maintenance including vegetation and exotic plant control for the Central and
Southern Flood Control system.

• The Regulation Program has obligated 19.5% and expended 15.6% of their total $23.1
million budget. Principal expenditures include personnel services ($2.6 million),
contractual services ($495K), and operating ($474K). Contractual services and operating
encumbrances ($846K) include application development, permit scanning
contractors/support, computer hardware/software, and advertising services. Capital
outlay encumbrances ($50K) consist primarily of helicopter replacement equipment.

• The Water Supply Program has obligated 24.2% and expended 10.0% of their total
$21.7 million budget. Principal expenditures include personnel services ($904K),
contractual services ($72K), and operating ($1.2 million). Contractual services and
operating encumbrances ($3.1 million) include the MFL Water Reservation Rules Status
($41K), Central Florida Water Initiative ($118K), interagency agreements for Alternative
Water Supply projects ($147K), Big Cypress Basin ($2.2 million), hydrologic data
gathering and analysis ($495K), Water Supply Plan implementation ($25K), and Outreach
and Education ($20K).

• Debt Service expenses amount to $30.2 million of the $42.1 budget. Debt service
principal and interest payments include Land Acquisition Bonds issued through the Water
Management Lands Trust Fund and Certificates of Participation. Scheduled debt service
payments are structured into a single principal payment and partial payment of interest in
October and the balance of interest in April.

• Reserves of $60.0 million are designated as economic stabilization reserves, including
$10.0 million for O&M capital projects. Remaining reserves include $96K in cost savings.

We hope these reports and the associated narrative will aid in understanding the District’s
financial condition as well as expenditure performance against the approved budget. If you
have any questions, please feel free to contact Candida Heater at (561) 682-6486.

DB/CJH
Attachment

31.a

Packet Pg. 106

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
n

th
ly

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

t 
M

em
o

 N
o

ve
m

b
er

 F
Y

15
  (

22
26

 :
 M

o
n

th
ly

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

t 
- 

N
o

ve
m

b
er

 2
01

4)



SOURCES ANNUAL BUDGET

ACTUALS

THROUGH

11/30/2014

VARIANCE (UNDER)

/ OVER BUDGET

ACTUALS AS A

% OF BUDGET

Ad Valorem Property Taxes 265,935,610$ 40,719,146$ (225,216,464)$ 15.3%

Agricultural Privilege Taxes 10,950,000 595,815 (10,354,185) 5.4%

Intergovernmental - Ad Valorem Funds 3,955,843 2,707,942 (1,247,901) 68.5%

Intergovernmental - Non Ad Valorem Funds 200,454,675 1,745,201 (198,709,474) 0.9%

Intergovernmental Total 204,410,518 4,453,143 (199,957,375) 2.2%

Investment Earnings - Ad Valorem Funds 3,250,000 684,453 (2,565,547) 21.1%

Investment Earnings - Non Ad Valorem Funds - 238,399 238,399 -

Investment Earnings Total 3,250,000 922,852 (2,327,148) 28.4%

Leases 2,763,601 736,081 (2,027,520) 26.6%

Permit Fees/Miscellaneous Fees 2,810,999 625,239 (2,185,760) 22.2%

Mitigation Fees - Lake Belt & Wetlands 6,260,053 2,983,816 (3,276,237) 47.7%

Licenses, Permits and Fees Total 9,071,052 3,609,055 (5,461,997) 39.8%

Other 461,200 82,391 (378,809) 17.9%

Sale of District Property 250,000 37,069 (212,931) 14.8%

Self Insurance Premiums 33,834,393 4,482,247 (29,352,146) 13.2%

SUB-TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 530,926,374 55,637,800 (475,288,574) 10.5%

Fund Balance 280,655,443 280,655,443 - 100.0%

TOTAL SOURCES 811,581,817$ 336,293,243$ (475,288,574)$ 41.4%

USES ANNUAL BUDGET EXPENDITURES ENCUMBRANCES1

REPORTED

AVAILABLE

BUDGET

%

EXPENDED

%

ENCUMBERED

%

OBLIGATED2

CERP 199,982,889$ 1,960,284$ 81,903,097$ 116,119,508$ 1.0% 41.0% 41.9%

Coastal Watersheds 23,922,161 1,048,449 6,537,030 16,336,682 4.4% 27.3% 31.7%

District Everglades 111,224,707 5,001,852 40,873,844 65,349,011 4.5% 36.7% 41.2%

Kissimmee Watershed 31,476,114 4,879,330 9,269,551 17,327,233 15.5% 29.4% 45.0%

Lake Okeechobee 33,148,916 1,432,910 6,424,876 25,291,129 4.3% 19.4% 23.7%

Land Stewardship 40,456,992 1,948,286 4,993,228 33,515,478 4.8% 12.3% 17.2%

Mission Support 42,877,488 8,041,068 3,454,303 31,382,118 18.8% 8.1% 26.8%

Modeling & Sci Supp 13,498,388 2,109,845 1,444,098 9,944,445 15.6% 10.7% 26.3%

Ops & Maintenance 168,009,130 16,610,757 38,672,871 112,725,503 9.9% 23.0% 32.9%

Regulation 23,131,053 3,614,761 899,165 18,617,128 15.6% 3.9% 19.5%

Water Supply 21,686,148 2,161,443 3,090,079 16,434,626 10.0% 14.2% 24.2%

Debt Service 42,056,447 30,249,638 - 11,806,809 71.9% 0.0% 71.9%

SUB-TOTAL NON-RESERVES USES 751,470,433 79,058,622 197,562,140 474,849,671 10.5% 26.3% 36.8%

Reserves 60,111,384$ - - 60,111,384 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

TOTAL USES 811,581,817$ 79,058,622$ 197,562,140$ 534,961,055$ 9.7% 24.3% 34.1%

1 Represents unexpended balances of open purchase orders
2 Represents the sum of expenditures and encumbrances as a percentage of the annual budget

South Florida Water Management District
Statement of Sources and Uses of Funds (Unaudited)

For the month ended: November 30, 2014. Percent of fiscal year completed: 16.7%

31.b

Packet Pg. 107

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
te

m
en

t 
o

f 
S

o
u

rc
es

 a
n

d
 U

se
s 

o
f 

F
u

n
d

s_
N

o
v1

4_
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
at

ic
  (

22
26

 :
 M

o
n

th
ly

 F
in

an
ci

al



CURRENT BUDGET

ACTUALS

THROUGH

11/30/2014

VARIANCE (UNDER) /

OVER BUDGET

ACTUALS AS A %

OF BUDGET

Sources

Taxes
1

276,885,610$ 41,314,961$ (235,570,649)$ 14.92%

Intergovernmental Revenues 204,410,518 4,453,143 (199,957,375) 2.18%

Interest on Invested Funds 3,250,000 922,852 (2,327,148) 28.4%

License and Permit Fees 9,071,052 3,609,055 (5,461,997) 39.8%

Other
2

37,309,194 5,337,788 (31,971,406) 14.3%

Fund Balance 280,655,443 280,655,443 - 100.0%

Total Sources 811,581,817$ 336,293,243$ (475,288,574)$ 41.4%

1
Includes Ad Valorem and Agricultural Privilege Taxes

2
Includes Leases, Sale of District Property, and Self Insurance Premiums

CURRENT BUDGET EXPENDITURES ENCUMBRANCES
3

AVAILABLE

BUDGET

%

EXPENDED

% OBLIGATED
4

Uses

Water Resources Planning and Monitoring 52,844,776$ 6,729,402$ 9,973,177$ 36,142,196$ 12.7% 31.6%

Acquisition, Restoration and Public Works 395,533,638 32,466,748 137,559,964 225,506,927 8.2% 43.0%

Operation and Maintenance of Lands and Works 299,517,116 28,420,216 47,542,734 223,554,166 9.5% 25.4%

Regulation 26,791,057 4,162,491 1,118,868 21,509,698 15.5% 19.7%

Outreach 2,278,783 418,811 33,871 1,826,100 18.4% 19.9%

Management and Administration 34,616,447 6,860,953 1,333,526 26,421,968 19.8% 23.7%

Total Uses 811,581,817$ 79,058,622$ 197,562,140$ 534,961,055$ 9.7% 34.1%

3
Encumbrances represent unexpended balances of open purchase orders and contracts.

4
Represents the sum of expenditures and encumbrances as a percentage of the current budget.

This unaudited financial statement is prepared as of October 31, 2014, and covers the interim period since the most recent audited financial

statements.

South Florida Water Management District
Statement of Sources and Uses of Funds (Unaudited)

For the month ended: November 30, 2014. Percent of fiscal year completed: 16.7%

31.c

Packet Pg. 108

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
te

m
en

t 
o

f 
S

o
u

rc
es

 a
n

d
 U

se
s 

o
f 

F
u

n
d

s_
N

o
v1

4_
st

at
e 

 (
22

26
 :

 M
o

n
th

ly
 F

in
an

ci
al

 S
ta

te
m

en
t 

-



Annual Budget Expenditures Encumbrances

Reported

Available

Budget

%

Expended

%

Encumbered

%

Obligated

CERP x

Personnel Services 6,704,841$ 1,010,747$ -$ 5,694,094$ 15.1% 0.0% 15.1%

Contractual Services 20,833,059 469,981 4,709,906 15,653,172 2.3% 22.6% 24.9%

Operating 1,652,759 54,445 112,890 1,485,425 3.3% 6.8% 10.1%

Travel 16,801 1,335 251 15,215 7.9% 1.5% 9.4%

Capital Outlay 167,442,461 423,777 77,080,050 89,938,634 0.3% 46.0% 46.3%

CERP Indirect 3,332,968 - - 3,332,968 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Total CERP 199,982,889 1,960,284 81,903,097 116,119,508 1.0% 41.0% 41.9%
x

Coastal Watersheds x

Personnel Services 3,620,187 625,479 - 2,994,708 17.3% 0.0% 17.3%

Contractual Services 9,511,988 308,338 5,685,295 3,518,355 3.2% 59.8% 63.0%

Operating 145,482 29,055 1,813 114,614 20.0% 1.2% 21.2%

Travel 24,102 1,506 942 21,654 6.2% 3.9% 10.2%

Capital Outlay 10,620,403 84,071 848,980 9,687,351 0.8% 8.0% 8.8%

Total Coastal Watersheds 23,922,161 1,048,449 6,537,030 16,336,682 4.4% 27.3% 31.7%
x

District Everglades x

Personnel Services 18,851,872 2,786,377 - 16,065,495 14.8% 0.0% 14.8%

Contractual Services 23,147,637 692,694 7,090,998 15,363,945 3.0% 30.6% 33.6%

Operating 9,951,621 1,283,441 471,840 8,196,340 12.9% 4.7% 17.6%

Travel 39,125 1,285 568 37,272 3.3% 1.5% 4.7%

Capital Outlay 59,234,453 238,056 33,310,438 25,685,959 0.4% 56.2% 56.6%

Total District Everglades 111,224,707 5,001,852 40,873,844 65,349,011 4.5% 36.7% 41.2%
x

Kissimmee Watershed x

Personnel Services 2,092,230 209,382 - 1,882,847 10.0% 0.0% 10.0%

Contractual Services 3,855,438 64,152 575,276 3,216,010 1.7% 14.9% 16.6%

Operating 48,624 4,255 5,407 38,962 8.8% 11.1% 19.9%

Travel 20,014 1,540 240 18,234 7.7% 1.2% 8.9%

Capital Outlay 25,459,808 4,600,000 8,688,628 12,171,180 18.1% 34.1% 52.2%

Total Kissimmee Watershed 31,476,114$ 4,879,330$ 9,269,551$ 17,327,233$ 15.5% 29.4% 45.0%
x

South Florida Water Management District
Statement of Sources and Uses of Funds (Unaudited)

For the month ended: November 30, 2014. Percent of fiscal year completed: 16.7%

1 of 3

31.d

Packet Pg. 109

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
m

m
ar

y 
o

f 
U

se
s 

o
f 

F
u

n
d

s_
N

o
v1

4 
 (

22
26

 :
 M

o
n

th
ly

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

t 
- 

N
o

ve
m

b
er

 2
01

4)



Annual Budget Expenditures Encumbrances

Reported

Available

Budget

%

Expended

%

Encumbered

%

Obligated

South Florida Water Management District
Statement of Sources and Uses of Funds (Unaudited)

For the month ended: November 30, 2014. Percent of fiscal year completed: 16.7%

Lake Okeechobee x

Personnel Services 4,292,079$ 669,768$ -$ 3,622,311$ 15.6% 0.0% 15.6%

Contractual Services 28,134,178 688,754 6,153,731 21,291,693 2.4% 21.9% 24.3%

Operating 222,720 20,959 63,231 138,531 9.4% 28.4% 37.8%

Travel 6,525 457 110 5,958 7.0% 1.7% 8.7%

Capital Outlay 493,414 52,973 207,805 232,636 10.7% 42.1% 52.9%

Total Lake Okeechobee 33,148,916 1,432,910 6,424,876 25,291,129 4.3% 19.4% 23.7%
x

Land Stewardship x

Personnel Services 4,201,077 652,254 - 3,548,823 15.5% 0.0% 15.5%

Contractual Services 29,006,728 383,741 4,564,727 24,058,260 1.3% 15.7% 17.1%

Operating 1,912,412 894,858 144,528 873,025 46.8% 7.6% 54.3%

Travel 5,328 958 - 4,370 18.0% 0.0% 18.0%

Capital Outlay 5,331,447 16,475 283,972 5,031,000 0.3% 5.3% 5.6%

Total Land Stewardship 40,456,992 1,948,286 4,993,228 33,515,478 4.8% 12.3% 17.2%
x

Mission Support x

Personnel Services 21,079,528 3,327,473 - 17,752,056 15.8% 0.0% 15.8%

Contractual Services 6,804,023 957,639 1,551,040 4,295,345 14.1% 22.8% 36.9%

Operating 17,400,859 3,669,167 1,782,690 11,949,002 21.1% 10.2% 31.3%

Travel 302,823 67,412 6,540 228,871 22.3% 2.2% 24.4%

Capital Outlay 623,223 19,378 114,033 489,812 3.1% 18.3% 21.4%

CERP Indirect (3,332,968) - - (3,332,968) 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Total Mission Support 42,877,488 8,041,068 3,454,303 31,382,118 18.8% 8.1% 26.8%
x

Modeling & Science Support x

Personnel Services 10,376,272 1,618,763 - 8,757,509 15.6% 0.0% 15.6%

Contractual Services 2,374,468 435,097 1,263,882 675,489 18.3% 53.2% 71.6%

Operating 540,753 49,552 178,373 312,828 9.2% 33.0% 42.1%

Travel 47,868 5,406 1,842 40,620 11.3% 3.8% 15.1%

Capital Outlay 159,027 1,027 - 158,000 0.6% 0.0% 0.6%

Total Modeling & Science Support 13,498,388$ 2,109,845$ 1,444,098$ 9,944,445$ 15.6% 10.7% 26.3%
x

2 of 3

31.d

Packet Pg. 110

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
m

m
ar

y 
o

f 
U

se
s 

o
f 

F
u

n
d

s_
N

o
v1

4 
 (

22
26

 :
 M

o
n

th
ly

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

t 
- 

N
o

ve
m

b
er

 2
01

4)



Annual Budget Expenditures Encumbrances

Reported

Available

Budget

%

Expended

%

Encumbered

%

Obligated

South Florida Water Management District
Statement of Sources and Uses of Funds (Unaudited)

For the month ended: November 30, 2014. Percent of fiscal year completed: 16.7%

Operations & Maintenance x

Personnel Services 52,577,443$ 8,678,484$ -$ 43,898,959$ 16.5% 0.0% 16.5%

Contractual Services 39,251,545 2,599,466 18,625,932 18,026,147 6.6% 47.5% 54.1%

Operating 34,372,166 3,741,777 1,659,945 28,970,444 10.9% 4.8% 15.7%

Travel 142,205 13,481 11,045 117,679 9.5% 7.8% 17.2%

Capital Outlay 41,665,771 1,577,549 18,375,948 21,712,274 3.8% 44.1% 47.9%

Total Operations & Maintenance 168,009,130 16,610,757 38,672,871 112,725,503 9.9% 23.0% 32.9%
x

Regulation x

Personnel Services 17,031,136 2,642,838 - 14,388,298 15.5% 0.0% 15.5%

Contractual Services 1,771,765 495,144 635,984 640,637 27.9% 35.9% 63.8%

Operating 4,247,870 473,792 210,309 3,563,769 11.2% 5.0% 16.1%

Travel 30,281 2,987 2,871 24,423 9.9% 9.5% 19.3%

Capital Outlay 50,000 - 50,000 - 0.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Total Regulation 23,131,053 3,614,761 899,165 18,617,128 15.6% 3.9% 19.5%
x

Water Supply x

Personnel Services 5,699,599 904,025 - 4,795,574 15.9% 0.0% 15.9%

Contractual Services 5,611,367 71,541 3,083,431 2,456,394 1.3% 54.9% 56.2%

Operating 10,367,461 1,185,323 6,450 9,175,688 11.4% 0.1% 11.5%

Travel 7,721 554 198 6,969 7.2% 2.6% 9.7%

Total Water Supply 21,686,148 2,161,443 3,090,079 16,434,626 10.0% 14.2% 24.2%
x

Reserves x

Reserves 60,111,384 - - 60,111,384 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Total Reserves 60,111,384 - - 60,111,384 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
x

Debt Service x

Debt Service 42,056,447 30,249,638 - 11,806,809 71.9% 0.0% 71.9%

Total Debt Service 42,056,447 30,249,638 - 11,806,809 71.9% 0.0% 71.9%
x

Grand Total 811,581,817$ 79,058,622$ 197,562,140$ 534,961,055$ 9.7% 24.3% 34.1%

3 of 3

31.d

Packet Pg. 111

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
m

m
ar

y 
o

f 
U

se
s 

o
f 

F
u

n
d

s_
N

o
v1

4 
 (

22
26

 :
 M

o
n

th
ly

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

t 
- 

N
o

ve
m

b
er

 2
01

4)



TABLE OF CONTENTS
INDIVIDUAL PERMITS ISSUED BY

AUTHORITY DELEGATED TO EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
FROM December 1, 2014 TO December 31, 2014

  

              I PERMIT APPLICATIONS           

BROWARD COUNTY
COLLIER COUNTY
GLADES COUNTY
HIGHLANDS COUNTY
LEE COUNTY
MIAMI-DADE COUNTY
ORANGE COUNTY
OSCEOLA COUNTY
PALM BEACH COUNTY

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

PAGE

32.a

Packet Pg. 112

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 IP

 Is
su

ed
 b

y 
E

D
 D

ec
em

b
er

 2
01

4 
 (

22
34

 :
 E

xe
cu

ti
ve

 D
ir

ec
to

r'
s 

R
ep

o
rt

)



1

BROWARD COUNTY

1.

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

SEC 2,4,9,10,11,15,16,17,21,22,28,33,34,35  TWP 

48,49,50S  RGE 42E

ACREAGE:  993.78
HIGHWAY

    PERMIT TYPE: ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCE (CONCEPTUAL APPROVAL MODIFICATION)

    RECEIVING BODY: C-13, C-14, AND NORTH AND SOUTH FORK OF THE NEW RIVER

    LAST DATE FOR AGENCY ACTION: DECEMBER 23, 2014
___________________________________________________________________________________

I-95 EXPRESS LANES PHASE 3A APPL.  NO.
PERMIT NO.

140516-1
06-01465-S

LAND USE:

___________________________________________________________________________________
32.a

Packet Pg. 113

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 IP

 Is
su

ed
 b

y 
E

D
 D

ec
em

b
er

 2
01

4 
 (

22
34

 :
 E

xe
cu

ti
ve

 D
ir

ec
to

r'
s 

R
ep

o
rt

)



2

COLLIER COUNTY

1.

2.

3.

GOLF CLUB OF THE EVERGLADES L T D

GOLF CLUB OF THE EVERGLADES, LTD

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT  OF TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 1

SEC 36  TWP 48S  RGE 26E ACREAGE:   505.95
GOLF COURSE

LANDSCAPE
WATER USE MODIFICATION

    WATER SOURCE: ON-SITE LAKES/PONDS,LOWER TAMIAMI AQUIFER

ALLOCATION: 46 MILLION GALLONS PER MONTH 
    LAST DATE FOR AGENCY ACTION: JANUARY 20, 2015

___________________________________________________________________________________

SEC 31,36  TWP 48S  RGE 26,27E

SEC 13,17,18,20, & 21  TWP 51S  RGE 26,27E

ACREAGE:  

ACREAGE:  

128.84

62.17

RESIDENTIAL

ROADWAY

    PERMIT TYPE:

    PERMIT TYPE:

ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCE (CONCEPTUAL APPROVAL MODIFICATION AND 

CONSTRUCTION/OPERATION MODIFICATION), INCLUDES CONSERVATION 

EASEMENT TO THE DISTRICT)

ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCE (CONSTRUCTION/OPERATION MODIFICATION)

    RECEIVING BODY: 

    RECEIVING BODY: 

CYPRESS CANAL

    LAST DATE FOR AGENCY ACTION: 

    LAST DATE FOR AGENCY ACTION: 

DECEMBER 21, 2014

JANUARY 4, 2015

___________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________

GOLF CLUB OF THE EVERGLADES

GOLF CLUB OF THE EVERGLADES

U S 41/S R 90 FROM GREENWAY ROAD TO SIX LS FARM RO

APPL.  NO.

APPL.  NO.

APPL.  NO.

PERMIT NO.

PERMIT NO.

PERMIT NO.

140214-10

131031-6

140130-13

11-00661-W

11-01714-P

11-03368-P

LAND USE:

LAND USE:

LAND USE:

    PERMIT TYPE:

___________________________________________________________________________________
32.a

Packet Pg. 114

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 IP

 Is
su

ed
 b

y 
E

D
 D

ec
em

b
er

 2
01

4 
 (

22
34

 :
 E

xe
cu

ti
ve

 D
ir

ec
to

r'
s 

R
ep

o
rt

)



3

GLADES COUNTY

1.

GLADES COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

SEC 9,10  TWP 42S  RGE 32E ACREAGE:   37.51

ALLOCATION: NOT REQUIRED
    LAST DATE FOR AGENCY ACTION: FEBRUARY 10, 2015

___________________________________________________________________________________

GLADES COUNTY BUSINESS PARK APPL.  NO.
PERMIT NO.

141112-8
22-00528-W

LAND USE:

    PERMIT TYPE:
    WATER SOURCE: WATER TABLE AQUIFER

WATER USE MODIFICATION/RENEWAL

DEWATERING

___________________________________________________________________________________
32.a

Packet Pg. 115

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 IP

 Is
su

ed
 b

y 
E

D
 D

ec
em

b
er

 2
01

4 
 (

22
34

 :
 E

xe
cu

ti
ve

 D
ir

ec
to

r'
s 

R
ep

o
rt

)



4

HIGHLANDS COUNTY

1.

CFI  USA, INC.

SEC 29-32  TWP 39S  RGE 29E ACREAGE:   1073.00
AGRICULTURAL

ALLOCATION: 172.91 MILLION GALLONS PER MONTH 
    LAST DATE FOR AGENCY ACTION: JANUARY 13, 2015
___________________________________________________________________________________

VENUS 1 GROVE APPL.  NO.
PERMIT NO.

141015-9
28-00136-W

LAND USE:

WATER SOURCE: UPPER FLORIDAN AQUIFER,ON-SITE LAKES

    PERMIT TYPE: WATER USE MODIFICATION

___________________________________________________________________________________
32.a

Packet Pg. 116

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 IP

 Is
su

ed
 b

y 
E

D
 D

ec
em

b
er

 2
01

4 
 (

22
34

 :
 E

xe
cu

ti
ve

 D
ir

ec
to

r'
s 

R
ep

o
rt

)



5

LEE COUNTY

1.

2.

3.

RESOURCE CONSERVATION HOLDINGS, L L C

ADMIRAL LEHIGH RESORT, L P

LEE COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

SEC 4,6,7,11,20,27  TWP 46,47S  RGE 25E ACREAGE:   
PUBLIC WATER 

SUPPLY

    WATER SOURCE: WATER TABLE AQUIFER,SANDSTONE AQUIFER,LOWER HAWTHORN AQUIFER

ALLOCATION: 268.43 MILLION GALLONS PER MONTH
    LAST DATE FOR AGENCY ACTION: DECEMBER 15, 2014

___________________________________________________________________________________

SEC 15, 16  TWP 45S  RGE 27E ACREAGE:   115.00
GOLF COURSE

WATER USE RENEWAL

    WATER SOURCE: SANDSTONE AQUIFER,ON-SITE LAKE(S)

ALLOCATION: 18.87 MILLION GALLONS PER MONTH 
    LAST DATE FOR AGENCY ACTION: DECEMBER 22, 2014

___________________________________________________________________________________

SEC 19,23,24  TWP 46S  RGE 26,27E ACREAGE:   1365.00
AGRICULTURAL

ALLOCATION: 57.66 MILLION GALLONS PER MONTH 
    LAST DATE FOR AGENCY ACTION: JANUARY 6, 2015
___________________________________________________________________________________

FIRST FARMS (FKA CORKSCREW EXCAVATION)

MIRROR LAKES GOLF CLUB

PINEWOODS PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY

APPL.  NO.

APPL.  NO.

APPL.  NO.

PERMIT NO.

PERMIT NO.

PERMIT NO.

131112-18

140923-2

140731-13

36-06874-W

36-00143-W

36-00122-W

LAND USE:

LAND USE:

LAND USE:

WATER SOURCE: WATER TABLE AQUIFER

N/A

    PERMIT TYPE:

    PERMIT TYPE: WATER USE MODIFICATION/RENEWAL

    PERMIT TYPE: WATER USE MODIFICATION/RENEWAL

___________________________________________________________________________________
32.a

Packet Pg. 117

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 IP

 Is
su

ed
 b

y 
E

D
 D

ec
em

b
er

 2
01

4 
 (

22
34

 :
 E

xe
cu

ti
ve

 D
ir

ec
to

r'
s 

R
ep

o
rt

)



6

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY

1.

MIAMI DADE AVIATION DEPARTMENT

SEC 25,30-32,35-36,25,30-32,35-36  TWP 53,53S  RGE 

40,41E

ACREAGE:   2731.00

ALLOCATION: NOT REQUIRED
    LAST DATE FOR AGENCY ACTION: JANUARY 13, 2015

___________________________________________________________________________________

MIAMI INT. AIRPORT MASTER DEWATERING PERMIT APPL.  NO.
PERMIT NO.

141015-10
13-00785-W

LAND USE:

    PERMIT TYPE:
    WATER SOURCE: WATER TABLE AQUIFER

WATER USE RENEWAL

DEWATERING

___________________________________________________________________________________
32.a

Packet Pg. 118

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 IP

 Is
su

ed
 b

y 
E

D
 D

ec
em

b
er

 2
01

4 
 (

22
34

 :
 E

xe
cu

ti
ve

 D
ir

ec
to

r'
s 

R
ep

o
rt

)



7

ORANGE COUNTY

1.

MAURY L CARTER AND ASSOCIATES

SEC 33  TWP 24S  RGE 31E ACREAGE:  403.14
RESIDENTIAL

    PERMIT TYPE: ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCE (CONCEPTUAL APPROVAL AND NEW 

CONSTRUCTION/OPERATION), INCLUDES CONSERVATION EASEMENT TO THE 

DISTRICT)

    RECEIVING BODY: LAKE AJAY VIA EXISTING WETLANDS

    LAST DATE FOR AGENCY ACTION: DECEMBER 13, 2014
___________________________________________________________________________________

SOUTHERN OAKS APPL.  NO.
PERMIT NO.

130930-10
48-02392-P

LAND USE:

___________________________________________________________________________________
32.a

Packet Pg. 119

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 IP

 Is
su

ed
 b

y 
E

D
 D

ec
em

b
er

 2
01

4 
 (

22
34

 :
 E

xe
cu

ti
ve

 D
ir

ec
to

r'
s 

R
ep

o
rt

)



8

OSCEOLA COUNTY

1.

REUNION WEST I L L C

SEC 22,27,34  TWP 25S  RGE 27E ACREAGE:  244.69
RESIDENTIAL

    PERMIT TYPE: ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCE (CONSTRUCTION/OPERATION MODIFICATION)

    RECEIVING BODY: DAVENPORT CREEK SWAMP SYSTEM VIA EXISTING REUNION WEST MASTER 

SYSTEM

    LAST DATE FOR AGENCY ACTION: JANUARY 9, 2015
___________________________________________________________________________________

REUNION WEST MASS GRADING APPL.  NO.
PERMIT NO.

140722-1
49-01107-P

LAND USE:

___________________________________________________________________________________
32.a

Packet Pg. 120

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 IP

 Is
su

ed
 b

y 
E

D
 D

ec
em

b
er

 2
01

4 
 (

22
34

 :
 E

xe
cu

ti
ve

 D
ir

ec
to

r'
s 

R
ep

o
rt

)



9

PALM BEACH COUNTY

1.

2.

ALL ABOARD FLORIDA OPERATIONS L L C

TREETOWN U S A

SEC 1,2  TWP 41S  RGE 37E ACREAGE:   462.20
NURSERY

ALLOCATION: 62.92 MILLION GALLONS PER MONTH 
    LAST DATE FOR AGENCY ACTION: JANUARY 27, 2015
___________________________________________________________________________________

SEC 21  TWP 43S  RGE 43E ACREAGE:  2.15
OTHER

    PERMIT TYPE: ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCE (CONSTRUCTION/OPERATION MODIFICATION)

    RECEIVING BODY: ON-SITE RETENTION

    LAST DATE FOR AGENCY ACTION: FEBRUARY 2, 2015
___________________________________________________________________________________

ALL ABOARD FLORIDA WEST PALM BEACH STATION

TREETOWN U S A

APPL.  NO.

APPL.  NO.

PERMIT NO.

PERMIT NO.

140917-4

140916-20

13-05321-P

50-00069-W

LAND USE:

LAND USE:

WATER SOURCE: SFWMD CANAL (L-8)

    PERMIT TYPE: WATER USE RENEWAL

___________________________________________________________________________________
32.a

Packet Pg. 121

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 IP

 Is
su

ed
 b

y 
E

D
 D

ec
em

b
er

 2
01

4 
 (

22
34

 :
 E

xe
cu

ti
ve

 D
ir

ec
to

r'
s 

R
ep

o
rt

)


	Introduction
	1. Call to Order - Dan O'Keefe, Chairman, Governing Board
	2. Pledge of Allegiance - Dan O'Keefe, Chairman, Governing Board
	3. Local Government Officials - Dan O'Keefe, Chairman, Governing Board
	4. Agenda Revisions - Jacki McGorty, District Clerk
	5. Abstentions by Board Members from items on the Agenda
	6. Water Resources Advisory Commission (WRAC) Report - Jim Moran, Chair

	Consent Agenda
	7. Public Comment on Consent Agenda
	8. Pull Items for Discussion from Consent Agenda
	9. Board Comment on Consent Agenda
	10. Approval of the Minutes for the December 11, 2014, Governing Board Regular Business meeting held in West Palm Beach, Florida.
	11. Waivers for Water Resource Advisory Commission (WRAC) members pursuant to Section 112.313, Florida Statutes.
	12. 2235 : Regulatory Consent Agenda
	a. ca_reg_rm_100_sd (II)

	13. Resolution No. 2015 - 0101  : Release of Reservations
	Printout: Resolution No. 2015 - 0101  : Release of Reservations
	a. ca_re_200_Ex A_Resolution_Massey_Release of Reservations
	b. ca_re_200_18607_Massey_Release of Reservations
	c. ca_re_200_18608_Massey_Release of Reservations

	14. Resolution No. 2015 - 0102  : Approve the release of portions of two irrigation, drainage and crossing easement agreements
	Printout: Resolution No. 2015 - 0102  : Approve the release of portions of two irrigation, drainage and crossing easement agreements
	a. ca_re_202_map_Palmer_BarronC2_C3

	15. Resolution No. 2015 - 0103  : City of Naples Lake Manor Restoration Agreement
	Printout: Resolution No. 2015 - 0103  : City of Naples Lake Manor Restoration Agreement

	16. Resolution No. 2015 - 0104  : C-111 Spreader Canal Western Project - Groundwater Monitoring and Analysis
	Printout: Resolution No. 2015 - 0104  : C-111 Spreader Canal Western Project - Groundwater Monitoring and Analysis

	17. Resolution No. 2015 - 0105  : Recommendation to approve Financial Underwriting firms for COPS refunding
	Printout: Resolution No. 2015 - 0105  : Recommendation to approve Financial Underwriting firms for COPS refunding
	a. Exh A Fin Under

	18. Resolution No. 2015 - 0106  : Information Technology Policy – Chapter 130
	Printout: Resolution No. 2015 - 0106  : Information Technology Policy – Chapter 130

	19. Board Vote on Consent Agenda
	20. General Public Comment
	21. Board Comment

	to show consent agenda votes insert items here
	Discussion Agenda
	22. 2233 : Technical Reports
	23. 2237 : OMC Update (part 3)
	24. Resolution No. 2015 - 0107  : IRL NEP Update
	Printout: Resolution No. 2015 - 0107  : IRL NEP Update
	a. IRL National Estuary Program Interlocal Agreement

	25. 2242 : Status Update on the Kissimmee Basin Water Reservations Rule Development
	Printout: 2242 : Status Update on the Kissimmee Basin Water Reservations Rule Development

	26. Resolution No. 2015 - 0108  : IT Shelters Replacement, Central Package
	Printout: Resolution No. 2015 - 0108  : IT Shelters Replacement, Central Package

	27. Resolution No. 2015 - 0109  : C-43 Early Start Demolition and Berm
	Printout: Resolution No. 2015 - 0109  : C-43 Early Start Demolition and Berm

	28. 2238 : Healthcare Insurance Update
	29. General Public Comment

	Public Hearing
	30. Resolution No. 2015 - 0110  : 2015 Annual Update Contained in Chapter 6A, Volume II of the South Florida Environmental Report
	Printout: Resolution No. 2015 - 0110  : 2015 Annual Update Contained in Chapter 6A, Volume II of the South Florida Environmental Report


	Staff Reports
	31. 2226 : Monthly Financial Statement - November 2014
	a. Monthly Financial Statement Memo November FY15
	b. Statement of Sources and Uses of Funds_Nov14_programmatic
	c. Statement of Sources and Uses of Funds_Nov14_state
	d. Summary of Uses of Funds_Nov14

	32. 2234 : Executive Director's Report
	a. IP Issued by ED December 2014

	33. Board Comment

	Attorney Client Sessions
	34. 2236 : Attorney Client Session - USA
	35. Adjourn

	Appendix
	12.a · ca_reg_rm_100_sd (II)
	13 · Resolution No. 2015 - 0101  : Release of Reservations
	13.a · ca_re_200_Ex A_Resolution_Massey_Release of Reservations
	13.b · ca_re_200_18607_Massey_Release of Reservations
	13.c · ca_re_200_18608_Massey_Release of Reservations
	14 · Resolution No. 2015 - 0102  : Approve the release of portions of two irrigation, drainage and crossing easement agreements
	14.a · ca_re_202_map_Palmer_BarronC2_C3
	15 · Resolution No. 2015 - 0103  : City of Naples Lake Manor Restoration Agreement
	16 · Resolution No. 2015 - 0104  : C-111 Spreader Canal Western Project - Groundwater Monitoring and Analysis
	17 · Resolution No. 2015 - 0105  : Recommendation to approve Financial Underwriting firms for COPS refunding
	17.a · Exh A Fin Under
	18 · Resolution No. 2015 - 0106  : Information Technology Policy – Chapter 130
	24 · Resolution No. 2015 - 0107  : IRL NEP Update
	24.a · IRL National Estuary Program Interlocal Agreement
	25 · 2242 : Status Update on the Kissimmee Basin Water Reservations Rule Development
	26 · Resolution No. 2015 - 0108  : IT Shelters Replacement, Central Package
	27 · Resolution No. 2015 - 0109  : C-43 Early Start Demolition and Berm
	30 · Resolution No. 2015 - 0110  : 2015 Annual Update Contained in Chapter 6A, Volume II of the South Florida Environmental Report
	31.a · Monthly Financial Statement Memo November FY15
	31.b · Statement of Sources and Uses of Funds_Nov14_programmatic
	31.c · Statement of Sources and Uses of Funds_Nov14_state
	31.d · Summary of Uses of Funds_Nov14
	32.a · IP Issued by ED December 2014


